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Corporate Profile

Based in Hong Kong, serving the world

As one of the world's leading international financial centers, Hong Kong is not only the preferred location for financial
services, but also the location of many large financial institutions. Hong Kong is located in the heart of Asia, closely
integrated with Mainland China and connected to all parts of the world. A sound legal system, a simple and low tax
system, free access to funds, a comprehensive range of financial products and services, and a large number of financial
talents are the long-term competitiveness of Hong Kong as a financial center.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited. (“Guotai Junan International” or “"Company”; stock code: 1788.HK) was
established in Hong Kong in 1995. In 2010, it became the first Chinese securities company approved by the China
Securities Regulatory Commission to list its shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange") through an initial public offering ("IPO(s)"). The company is based in Hong Kong and promotes the
development of Southeast Asia through Singapore and Vietnam, becoming a bridge connecting quality Chinese and global
enterprises with the capital market. By providing a series of innovative and pragmatic financial products and services,
the Company meets the investment and financing needs of high-net-worth individual customers, corporate issuers and
financial institutions from Mainland China, Hong Kong and overseas, assisting them with various market opportunities
in different market stages, to realize the preservation and appreciation of their assets.

An integrated financial service provider with diversified businesses

In recent years, as the company's diversified development strategy has been fully implemented, it has successfully
transformed from a "brokerage oriented” securities company to a large “integrated financial service provider" with
diversified businesses. The company's core business now includes seven categories of brokerage, corporate finance, asset
management, loans and financing, financial products, market making and investments, which covers three dimensions
including individual finance (wealth management), institutional finance (institutional investor services and corporate
finance service) and investment management.

Risk management being the edge

The company firmly believes that risk management is the primary core competitive edge of securities companies. Through
an effective risk management system, the Company has penetrated its risk management culture and rules into various
business lines, thereby striving for ideal risk-adjusted investment returns to shareholders and investors. As of the end
of 2020, the Company has been rated "Baa2/Prime-2" and "BBB+/A-2" by Moody's and Standard & Poor's respectively.
The outlook is "stable” and its credit rating is among the leading Chinese peers in Hong Kong.

Strong controlling shareholder

Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (the "parent company") (stock code: 601211.55/2611.HK), the controlling shareholder of
the Company, is a long-term, continuous and comprehensive leading integrated financial service provider in the Chinese
securities industry. With the strong brand advantage of the parent company, extensive customer base and abundant
capital support, we play an important role in Guotai Junan's international development strategy and open the way for
its international development.

Now, the Company's professional team boasts a deep knowledge and understanding of the capital market, and has
established a good reputation. With our effective risk management system and a wide range of financial services and
innovative products, we will stick to the promise of “integrity, responsibility, affinity, professionalism and innovation”
and strive to provide customers with quality services.
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Awards

PRODUCT AND SERVICE

CHINA ASSET MANAGEMENT
ASSOCIATION OF HONG KONG
(CAMAHK) AND BLOOMBERG

2020 Offshore China Fund Awards

e Private Fund: Greater China Fixed Income (1 year)
e Private Fund: Greater China Fixed Income (3 year)
e Best ETF Participating Dealer

- December 2020

REFINITIV STARMINE

2020 Analyst Awards for Asia, Hong Kong and Mainland

China Regions

Mr. Noah Hudson from research department achieved:

® 2nd runner-up in the Overall Analyst Awards category of
Top Earnings Estimators (Hong Kong and Mainland China
Region)

®  4th in the Overall Analyst Awards category of Top Earnings
Estimators (Asia Region)

® st runner-up in the Top Earnings Estimator award for the
Consumer Goods & Services industry (Asia Region)

® 2nd in the Top Earnings Estimator award for the Consumer
Discretionary industry in the Industry Analyst Awards
category (Hong Kong and Mainland China Region)

=

Mr. Richard Cao from research department achieved:

e st place in the Top Earnings Estimator award for the
Financials industry in the Industry Analyst Awards category
(Hong Kong and China Region)

® 2nd runner-up in the Top Earnings Estimator award for the
Banks industry in the Industry Analyst Awards category
(Asia Region)

- November 2020

THE ASSET

Triple A Private Capital Awards
®  Best Bank for Investment Solutions, Equity
® Best Structured Investment and Financing Solutions,
Financing — SWAP Transaction Restructuring for Financing
Purpose, Hong Kong
- October 2020

INTERNATIONAL BUSINESS MAGAZINE
® Best Asset Management Company Hong Kong 2020
e Best Investment Bank Hong Kong 2020

- July 2020
SINA FINANCE
Hong Kong Financial Institutions Awards 2020:
e The Best IPO Advisors

- July 2020

BRANDING AND
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

SRP
e Best International House (offshore)
- December 2020

THE ASSET
ESG Corporate Awards 2020:

e Gold Award
- November 2020

GELONGHUI
Greater China Best Listed Companies 2020
® Best Investor Relations Team
- November 2020

GLOBAL BANKING & FINANCE REVIEW

e Best Securities Brokerage Hong Kong 2020

e Best Financial Services Group Hong Kong 2020

e Best Corporate Governance Company Hong Kong 2020

- October 2020

ASIA RISK MAGAZINE
e House of the Year, Hong Kong
- September 2020

IFENG.COM
e The Most Competitive Wealth Management Platform
- September 2020

BLOOMBERG BUSINESSWEEK MAGAZINE
Financial Institution Awards 2020

e Excellence Service Award in Risk Management

e Excellence Service Award in IPO Sponsors

e Excellence Service Award in FICC

- July 2020
SECURITIES TIMES
Jun Ding Award
e Best Full-Service Broker Hong Kong 2020
- May 2020

INTERNATIONAL FINANCE MAGAZINE
e The Best Securities House

- May 2020
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders,

2020 was an extraordinary year. Despite immense challenges and difficulties including the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic,
fluctuations in external markets and heighted tension of Sino-US relations, with the great support of the parent company,
we adhered to the business philosophy of "growing on risk management basis, creating value through innovations and
pursuing high-quality growth”, evaluated the situation prudently and responded flexibly. While endeavoring to ensure the
health and safety of our staff, we took effective measures to maintain normal and smooth operations and development
of our businesses, optimized business mix, income structure and customer base composition successfully, and achieved
satisfactory operating results.

| am pleased to inform the shareholders of the Company ("Shareholder(s)") that, in 2020, the Company achieved major
breakthroughs in its capital intermediary services focusing on corporate and institutional client services, made significant
progress in forging the wealth management platform focusing on high-net-worth individual/family clients, and expedited
oversea expansion steps focusing on the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area, Southeast Asia and other
“Belt and Road Initiative" regions. By implementing effective control over market risks, credit risks and liquidity risks, and
conspicuously optimizing clientele structure and credit portfolio, the Company hit a record high in terms of operating
results for the year and recorded a robust growth of over 70% in net profit, and outperformed the peers in terms of ROE.

Given that the basic earnings per ordinary share of the Company (“Share(s)") increased by 44.4% to HK$0.169 when
compared with that of last year, the board of directors of the Company (the “Board") recommended a final dividend
of HK$0.051 per Share, bringing the total dividend of the year to HK$0.085 per Share including the interim dividend
of HK$0.034 per Share. The dividend yield amounted to 6.3% based on the closing price of Share on 23 March 2021.
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Chairman’s Statement

The operating results for 2020 demonstrated robust growth resilience and outstanding risk management capability of
Guotai Junan International amidst an extremely complex environment, and indicated that it is an enterprise worthy
of customers' entrustment, employees' devotion and investors' faith, as well as an industry leader with strong core
competitiveness and promising growth prospect.

Looking forward to 2021, it is expected that the PRC economy will return to its rapid growth trajectory and drive
global economic growth, presenting enterprises with significant development opportunities. However, the actual market
development will be subject to uncertainties brought by factors including the lasting COVID-19 pandemic, geopolitical
clashes and the United States (“US") stock market fluctuations. Through our efforts to strengthen research and analysis
and establish base-line principle risk management, we will seize growth opportunities by accelerating the development
of new markets, new businesses and new products and proactively promote risk-neutral income growth to improve
growth resilience.

We will leverage on the resources and advantages of the parent company as a top tier securities firm in China and seize
the opportunities arising from state policy for supporting the development of carrier-level investment bank. Capitalizing
on our forward-looking development strategy, integrated management and control system, outstanding risk management
capability and effective appraisal and incentive system, and focusing on providing services for corporate and institutional
clients and high-net-worth individual clients, the Company (together with its subsidiaries, collectively referred to as the
"Group") will accelerate the development of capital intermediary business and wealth management business, and increase
investments in fintech sector, so as to inject new energy to drive future business development, effectively increase the
risk-adjusted return on capital, and ultimately deliver high quality and sustainable growth to create value for our clients,
staff, Shareholders and the society.

Dr. YIM Fung, JP
Chairman

23 March 2021
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Financial Highlights

For the year ended 31 December

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000

Fee and commission income

-brokerage 649,471 531,233 22.3%

-corporate finance 591,872 809,047 -26.8%

-asset management 153,508 36,439 321.3%
Income from loans and financing 1,007,655 1,134,972 -11.2%
Gain from financial products, market making and investments 2,470,446 1,733,845 42.5%
Revenue 4,872,952 4,245,536 14.8%
Profit for the year 1,567,772 902,559 73.7%
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company 1,562,587 895,303 74.5%
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) 16.9 11.7 44 4%
Diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 16.8 1.7 43.6%
Dividend per share (HK cents) 8.5 6.2 37.1%
Equity per ordinary share (HK$) (Note) 1.58 1.47 7.5%

Note: Based on 9,598,741,244 shares (2019: 7,678,783,690 shares) as at 31 December 2020, being 9,617,228,644 shares issued and fully paid less 18,487,400
shares held under the Company's share award scheme (2019: 7,715,673,090 shares issued and fully paid less 36,889,400 shares held under the
Company's share award scheme).

Fee and Commission 32% REVENUE STRUCTURE 2020
Income: HKD 1,564 million, increased by 10% YQY, record high o
Composition: 1) Brokerage, Corporate finance, Asset management: 2) 8156
fee from Financial products 12% roxerage
Corporate
9, finance
Interest 54% 21%
Income : HKD 2,650 million - increased by 129% YOY 3% quansqnd
Composition: 1) Interest income from Loans and financing; 2) Interest Asset fnancing
income from bank balances of Loans and financing; 3) Coupon interest management
income generated by notes in Financial products; 4) Coupon interest Revenue:
income generated by Market making; 5) Interest income generated by HKD 4.878 million
structured financing products from Investments !
. )
Trading & Investment 14% 10%
g 25% Financial
Income : HKD 659 million Investments? products'

Composition: 1) Trading income from Market making; 2) Financial

derivatives provided to Wealth management; 3) Income from seed

funding from Asset management 16%
Market making?

Note 1:  Financial products income includes both Fee and Interest
income

Note 2: Market making and Investments income includes both
Interest and Trading and Investment income
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Five Years Financial Summary

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is set out below:

Revenue and other income
Profit before tax
Profit for the year

Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the Company

For the year ended 31 December

2020
HK$'000

2019
HK$'000

2018
HK$'000

2017
HK$'000

2016
HK$'000

188,607
026,087

4,878,400  4250,171 3,029,822 3134792 2,521,795
1,814,679 1,005,443 983,272 1,559,112 1
1,567,772 902,559 849174 1334491 1
1,562,587 895,303 796,835 1228174

969,139

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

As at 31 December

2020 2019 2018 2017 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Loans and advances to customers 15,604,244 11,715,902 12,275,375 15,583,573 14,538,144
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss/
other comprehensive income 31,507,050 20,881,154 15,019,421 8,924,271 5,888,774
Financial products 39,512,089 38,110,044 32,842,048 28,246,491 7,424 551
Receivable from reverse repurchase agreements 3,022,800 2,247913 3,109,006 1,513,177 480,782
Derivative financial instruments 1,261,354 155,652 76,832 110,461 122,001
Cash and cash equivalents 5,508,779 7,150,847 4,105,672 2,212,502 1,964,398
Client trust bank balances 18,707,026 11,181,982 14,319,985 12,348,012 12,400,917
Other current assets 5,936,096 4,421,056 5,675,775 4,475,149 1,671,466
Other non-current assets 661,303 873,607 610,177 546,748 509,712
Total assets 121,720,741 96,738,157 88,034,291 73,960,384 45,000,745
Interest bearing borrowings (9,739,397)  (11,249,881)  (9,441,083)  (13,781,721) (8,911,433)
Debt securities in issue (47,919,872) (33,499,582) (25,999,272)  (16,363,891) (5,823,241)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss ~ (6,666,260) (6,810,580 (8,731117)  (9,008,776)  (3,485,520)
Obligations under repurchase agreements (17,396,163)  (18,199,226)  (13,156,517) (6,244,957 (930,958)
Derivative financial instruments (862,429) (149,851) (23,620) (27.722) (130,083)
Other liabilities (23,897,453)  (15,417,250) (19,488,400)  (17,541,891) (15,185,676
Non-controlling interests (121,048) (115,863) (11,567) (36,546) (11,951)
Shareholders' fund 15,118,119 11,295,924 11,182,715 10,954,880 10,521,883
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Management Discussion and Analysis

70

Market Review

The COVID-19 caused unprecedented fluctuations in the global financial market in 2020. Following the historical
meltdown of the US stock market in March 2020, the major economies across the world launched large-scale
quantitative easing measures and economic stimulus packages, driving the liquidity and sentiment of the financial
market to gradually stabilize. During the year, the expectation and performance of the capital market was affected
by various factors such as the increasing number of confirmed COVID-19 cases on a global scale, the US presidential
election, the secondary listing of the China concept stocks in the Hong Kong stock market and the rollout of
mass vaccination programme across the world. The Hang Seng Index ("HSI") closed at 27,231 at the end of 2020,
representing a decrease of 3% year-on-year (“YOY") while the average daily turnover of the Hong Kong stock
market experienced a YOY increase of 499% to HK$129,500 million. In 2020, industries that outperformed the HSI
were in areas of renewable energy, consumption and technology, etc.

Regarding the debt market, the total amount of bonds issued in Asian (ex-Japan) G3 currencies (US dollar, euro
and yen) in 2020 increased by about 3% YOY to US$348.4 billion according to Bloomberg. On the other hand,
the total number of IPOs in Hong Kong primary market in 2020 decreased by 16% YOY to 154, while the amount
of funds raised from IPOs in the Hong Kong market rose by 27% YOY to HK$397.5 billion, setting a record high
since 2011. The total amount of funds raised in the Hong Kong market, including IPOs, increased by 64% YOY to
HK$743.7 billion.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Business Operation Review

The Group firmly believes that risk management is the core competency of securities companies. Since 2017, the
Group took initiatives to make provisions for and divest its risky assets. During the year, the loss allowance of
the Company decreased significantly YOY. In addition, the Group maintained global credit ratings at Standard &
Poor's BBB+ and Moody's Baa2 long-term issuer rating with the outlook of the Company being "stable", which is
not only the leading rating among the Chinese securities houses in Hong Kong and also ranks among the first-
tier global investment banks.

To offer quality products and services tailored for high-net-worth individual clients in a better way, the Group
completed the internal strategic consolidation of wealth management and retail brokerage business in first half of
2020. Currently, the wealth management platform of the Group is equipped with professional teams specialized
in investment consulting, customer service, wealth management for private clients and structured derivatives
products, and offers a variety of asset classes not only covering regular investment portfolios such as equity and
fixed income products, but also including a basket of investment products such as derivative warrants and callable
bull/bear contract (CBBC), customized wealth management products, foreign exchange, futures and private equity,
etc. In addition, leveraging on its expertise in the finance products business, the Group consolidated its resources
and established the structured solutions and derivatives business team in the third quarter of 2020 to cater to
the increasing demands for customized services from corporate and institutional investors and provide flexible
and practical investment and financing solutions continuously, so as to help clients to make optimal investment
decisions and strategies under different market conditions.

As new economy industries driven by technology innovation started to reshape our lifestyle and led the global
financial markets in 2020, the Group established a professional team in 2020 for equity investments, to support
the development of quality new economy enterprises and lay a foundation for offering differentiated and a wider
range of products and investment channels to wealth management clients. During the year, the Group participated
in a number of private equity projects covering various new economy industries, including companies in new energy
battery asset management, recycling platform for electronic devices, artificial intelligence chips, automated driving
technology and other sectors, the substance and prospects of which are highly welcomed by wealth management
clients.

The Group has good reputation and brand credibility with its diversified products and professional services. In
2020, the Company obtained more than 30 awards from both international and local media, not only covering
wealth management, corporate finance, fixed income, structured financial derivatives, asset management and
research services, but also the general management areas such as risk management, corporate governance and
information disclosure which are also highly acclaimed, demonstrating the Company's strength and advantages as
a leading financial service platform.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

72

Results Review

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has recorded a very strong result and robust performance,
summarized as follows:

Revenue and other income (total revenue) reached approximately HK$4,878 million (2019: HK$4,250 million),
which represented an increase of 15% YQY, setting a new high since its establishment;

The Group recorded a profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the Company ("Attributable Profit")
of approximately HK$1,563 million (2019: HK$895 million), which represented a significant YOY increase of
75%, setting a new high since its establishment;

In terms of the nature of revenue, fee and commission income rose by 10% YOY to HK$1,564 million
(accounting for 32% of total revenue), interest and coupon income rose by 12% YQY to HK$2,650 million
(accounting for 54% of total revenue), while trading income rose by 42% YQY to HK$659 million (accounting
for 14% of total revenue);

In terms of revenue from different business lines, the Group's total revenue growth mainly came from: 1)
brokerage income increased by 22% YOY to HK$649 million; 2) asset management income surged by 321%
YOY to HK$154 million; and 3) financial products, market making and investments income increased 42%
YOY to HK$2,470 million;

In terms of segment revenue, the Group's total revenue growth mainly came from: 1) individual finance (wealth
management) income increased by 27% YOY to HK$1,449 million; and 2) institutional finance (including both
institutional investor services and corporate finance services) income increased by 7% YOY to HK$2,779
million. Overall, income from individual finance and institutional finance accounted for 30% and 57% of
total revenue respectively. Please refer to “(ll) Segment Revenue" for details of segment revenue;

The Company's loss allowance decreased by 60% YOY to HK$364 million as a result of prudent risk
management and the significant improvement in assets quality; and

Return on shareholder's equity ("ROE", means Attributable Profit during the year divided by average equity
attributable to holders of the ordinary shares during the year) was 11.8%, representing a YOY increase of
3.7 percentage points.

Total Revenue Attributable Profit
HK$ million HK$ million
4,878 1,563
4,250
3,030
797 895
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(I) " Revenue Structure: Fee and commission income and interest income accounted
for nearly 90% of total revenue

In recent years, the Group has diversified its businesses and covered brokerage, wealth management, corporate
finance, asset management, financial products, market making and investments, and fee and commission
along with interest income accounted for nearly 90% of the total revenue, which has largely enhanced the
Group's financial stability and resilience in the volatile market.

In 2020, the Group recorded total revenue of HK$4,878 million, up by 15% YOY, where:

o Fee and commission income amounted to HK$1,564 million (accounting for 32% of total revenue), up
by 10% YQY, mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from the brokerage, asset management
and financial products businesses;

o Interest income amounted to HK$2,650 million (accounting for 54% of total revenue), up by 12% YQY,
mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from market making and investment businesses; and

o Trading and investment income, recorded by mark-to-market, amounted to HK$659 million (accounting
for 14% of total revenue), up by 42% YQOY, mainly attributable to the YQY increase in the investment
income from the financial derivatives instruments provided to wealth management clients as well as
seed funding of asset management business.

For the year ended 31 December

2020 2019

Business Revenue Nature HK$'000 % HK$'000

Brokerage Fee and commission 649,471 13.3% 531,233 12.5%
Corporate finance Fee and commission 591,872 12.1% 809,047 19.1%
Asset management Fee and commission 153,508 3.2% 36,439 0.9%
Loans and financing Interest 1,007,655 20.7% 1,134,972 26.7%
Financial products Fee and commission: Interest 464,927 9.5% 418,447 9.8%
Market making Interest; Trading and investment 768,200 15.8% 649,252 15.3%
Investments Interest; Trading and investment 1,237,319 25.4% 666,146 15.7%
Revenue 4,872,952 100.0% 4,245,536 100.0%
Other income Other 5,448 - 4,635 -
Total revenue 4,878,400 - 4,250,171 -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Revenue Nature (2020)

32%
Fee and Commission
Interest
O,
54% 14% .
Trading and Investment
1. Brokerage (Fee and Commission)

The Group provides comprehensive brokerage services across multiple securities markets around the
globe to wealth management and institutional clients.

In 2020, the Group's income from brokerage services increased by 22% YOY to HK$649 million (2019:
HK$531 million). As at 31 December 2020, the market share of the Group's brokerage business in the
Hong Kong market recorded an increase as compared with that as at the end of last year. Although
HSI dropped by 3%, the assets under custody of the wealth management platform of the Company
recorded a steady increase of 48% to HK$28.8 billion, while the assets under custody of all clients
recorded an increase of 35% YOY to HK$206.7 billion.

Assets under custody from Assets under custody from
clients of wealth management all clients
As at 31 December As at 31 December

HK$ billion HKS$ billion

288 206.7
19.4 155.7 152.8
4.6
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020
2. Corporate Finance (Fee and Commission)

The Group provides professional services in debt capital market ("DCM"), equity capital market ("ECM")
and consultancy and financial advisory to corporate clients and issuers. In 2020, corporate finance
revenue fell by 27% YQY to HK$592 million. The decrease was mainly due to delayed financing itinerary
of target issuers of the Group caused by the pandemic.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

DCM

In 2020, due to the fact that the business environment was affected by COVID-19 and the policy change
on certain industries, we witnessed a slowdown in bond issuance for financing by corporate clients. The
Group's income from underwriting fees in DCM reduced by 22% YOY to HK$462 million (2019: HK$594
million). However, with our extensive market experiences and high-standard professional services, the
Group continued to maintain its leading position in Chinese-issued US dollar-denominated bond market.
In 2020, our team assisted corporate clients in raising funds of nearly HK$464.3 billion (2019: HK$423.3
billion) in the bond market, and completed a total of 221 bond underwriting and related projects (2019:
189). The Group ranked second in the Bloomberg's Asia (ex-Japan) G3 Currency Corporate High-Yield
Bond Underwritten League Table (1B IpiibE (B BASNGIEEE M E SRS EFRSEHEITEE) in terms
of number of bond issuances underwritten.

Total fundraising amount (DCM) Number of deals completed (DCM)
HK$ billion Deals
464.3
423.3 221
189
319.7 142
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020

ECM, consultancy and financial advisory

In 2020, due to the progress of IPOs of our corporate clients being delayed by COVID-19, the Group's
income from ECM decreased by 38% YOY to HK$85.1 million (2019: HK$136.0 million). In addition,
the Group's consultancy and financial advisory fee income decreased by 42% YOY to HK$45.1 million
(2019: HK$78.3 million). The Group completed a total of 32 equity underwriting deals (2019: 31) in the
Hong Kong stock market, and assisted corporations in raising funds of HK$124.3 billion in aggregate,
up by 182% YQY, including JD.com (9618.HK), JD Health (6618.HK), China Bohai Bank (9668.HK), GDS
(9698.HK) and other large-scale IPO projects in the Hong Kong stock market. During the year, the
team completed a total of four IPO sponsor deals (2019: eight), including Zhongguancun Science-Tech
Leasing (1601.HK), and Financial Street Property (1502.HK) and etc.

Total fundraising amount (ECM) Numbers of deals completed (ECM)
HK$ billion Deals
124.3 31 32
83.4
18
44 1
2018 2019 2020 2018 2019 2020
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Management Discussion and Analysis

76

Asset Management (Fee and Commission)

The Group provides a full range of asset management services to various types of clients, under which,
the Group will strive to achieve ideal risk-adjusted return on investment for clients, according to their
risk appetite and return needs.

Relying on good judgment of global capital market trends and sound risk management capabilities,
the management fee and performance fee income in 2020 from the Group's asset management
increased significantly by 3.2 times to HK$154 million (2019: HK$36.44 million). In spite of the fluctuant
market, the asset management team of the Group remained committed to realizing long-term stable
appreciation of the assets of the clients, and Guotai Junan Asia High Income Bond Fund, under the
Group's management, won the 1st place in the category, namely "Private Funds — Greater China Fixed
Income (both 1 year and 3 vears)" (FLEEEE — KPEETW (1) % (34F)) in Offshore China Fund
Awards 2020 jointly organised by China Asset Management Association of Hong Kong and Bloomberg.
As at 31 December 2020, the total assets under management ("AUM") of the Group rose by 12% YOY
to approximately HK$9.3 billion (2019: HK$8.3 billion), of which, the sizes of the fixed income funds
and equity funds reached approximately HK$4.9 billion and HK$4.4 billion, respectively.

AUM of asset management

HK$ billion
9.3
8.1 8.3
2018 2019 2020

Loans and Financing (Interest Income)
The Group's loans and financing income mainly came from services to clients, such as margin financing
and IPO financing.

In 2020, income from loans and financing decreased by 11% YQY to HK$1,008 million, which was
mainly due to:

° The YOY decline in Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate under the global low interest rate
environment; and

° In recent years, the quality of collaterals for loans and financing businesses has continued to
rise, and the effective interest rate has been adjusted downwards according to its risk level.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

As at 31 December 2020, the balance of loans and advances to the customers by the Group increased
by 33% YOY to HK$15.6 billion. Client trust bank balances amounted to HK$18.7 billion. In 2020,
the Group expanded its quality high-net-worth client base. Meanwhile, driven by the active trading
activities in the Hong Kong stock market and robust financing demands from the clients in 2020, the
Group continued to optimize the loans and financing business structure, leading to steady increase in
the proportion of loans with large and mid-cap stocks and US dollar-denominated bonds as collaterals
and continuous improvement in the quality of assets and earnings.

Balances of loans and advances to customers

As at 31 December

HKS$ billion
15.6
12.3 11.7
2018 2019 2020

Financial Products (Fee and Commission, Interest Income)

The Group provides diversified financial products and solutions to institutional and wealth management
clients, income from which includes 1) fee and commissions from business such as holding financial
products on behalf of clients; 2) coupon income from various types of notes.

In 2020, overall revenue from financial products increased by 11% YOY to HK$465 million, mainly
due to the reason that the handling fees from provision of financial products to institutional clients
increased by 299% YOY to HK$169 million.

Market Making (Interest Income, Trading and Investment Income)

The Group provides bond market making services to institutional clients to support the development
of its DCM underwriting business in the long run. In 2020, the Group's bond market making income
increased by 18% YQY to HK$768 million, mainly due to the interest income from bond market making
that increased by 24% YQY to HK$819 million. On the other hand, trading and investment income
(recorded by mark-to-market) related to bond market making recorded a loss of HK$51 million, mainly
due to the fluctuations in the US dollar bond market caused by the pandemic in 2020.

Investments (Interest Income, Trading and Investment Income)
The Group's investment business income derived from seed funding in asset management, the financial
derivatives provided to wealth management clients as well as structured financing products.

In 2020, the Group's total investment income was HK$1,237 million (2019: HK$666 million). The increase
was mainly due to the substantial increase in interest income from structured financing products by
161% to HK$529 million. Trading income (recorded by mark-to-market) was HK$708 million, which was
mainly from asset management seed funding and financial derivatives issued to wealth management
clients, accounting for 15% of the Group's total revenue.
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(1

Segment Revenue: Jointly driven by institutional finance and individual finance

In recent years, the Group has successfully transformed from a "brokerage-oriented” securities company at
early stages to a large "integrated financial service provider" with diversified businesses. At the same time,
starting from the needs of clients, the Group has built the dual engines of institutional finance and individual
finance (wealth management) business as well as based itself on strong risk management capabilities to
create a quality profit model. In 2020, the Group's income from institutional finance in capital intermediary
businesses (including corporate financing services and institutional investor services) has steadily increased by
7% YQY to HK$2,779 million, accounting for 57% of total revenue. Individual finance - wealth management
income increased by 27% YOY to HK$1,449 million, accounting for 30% of the Group's total revenue.

2020

HK$'000 HK$'000

Institutional finance

- institutional investor services 2,168,488 45% 1,739,590 41% 250%

- corporate finance services 610,481 12% 863,394 20% -29%
Individual finance

- wealth management 1,449,216 30% 1,142,323 27% 27%
Investment management 644,767 13% 500,229 12% 29%
Total 4,872,952 100% 4,245,536 100% 15%

The Group believes that the evolution to a large "integrated financial service provider" has brought diversified
business incomes and a balanced risk portfolio to the Group, which will continuously strengthen the stability
and growth potential of Group's earnings. To provide clear presentation on strategic development direction,
the Group has re-presented its segment revenue as follows:

° Revenue from institutional investor services mainly arises from: 1) financial products (institutions); 2)
market making; 3) brokerage (institutions); and 4) loans and financing (institutions);

o Revenue from corporate finance services mainly arises from: 1) DCM, ECM and consultancy and financial
advisory services; 2) brokerage services provided to corporate finance clients;

° Revenue from wealth management mainly arises from: 1) brokerage (wealth management); 2) loans and
financing (wealth management); and 3) financial products (wealth management); and

o Revenue from investment management mainly arises from: 1) asset management; and 2) proprietary
investment.
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Institutional Finance - Institutional

Investor Services and Individual Finance - Wealth
Corporate Finance Services Revenue Management Revenue
HK$ million HK$ million
2,779 1,449
2,603 1,142
2019 2020 2019 2020

() Cost Structure

HK$'000 HK$'000
Staff costs 1,148,710 38% 842,912 26% 36%
Commission to account executives 188,382 6% 124,278 400 520
Depreciation 68,859 2% 65,078 2% 6%
Loss allowance provision 363,565 12% 908,714 28% -60%
Other operating expenses 463,949 15% 424,452 13% 9%
Finance costs 830,256 27% 879,294 27% -6%
Total costs 3,063,721 100% 3,244,728 100% -6%

Total costs of the Group in 2020 decreased by 6% YOY to HK$3,064 million, which was mainly benefitted from
the combined effects of multiple decreases in loss allowance and finance costs, etc., where during the year:

° Staff costs (including salaries, bonuses and allowances, share-based compensation expense and pension
scheme contributions) increased by 36% YOY to HK$1,149 million. As the Attributable Profit of the
Group during the year increased YOY, staff costs were adjusted accordingly;

° Commission to account executives increased by 52% YOY to HK$188 million, mainly due to the increase
in the income of securities transaction commissions;

° Loss allowance amount decreased by 60% YOY to HK$364 million. The loss allowance of the Group
during the year was primarily derived from the high-risk financing business in and prior to 2017.
The diversity and liquidity of the collateral from clients of the financing business were enhanced
significantly as compared to previous years, by virtue of unwavering optimization of the financing
business structure by the Group over the past few years. In 2019, the Group prospectively increased
the loss allowance for high-risk loan assets, thereby strengthening the Company's capacity in credit
risk control against fluctuations in the financial markets during the year; and
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o Finance costs (including bank loans, debt securities in issue, securities borrowing and lending,
repurchase agreements and other financial expenses) fell by 6% to HK$830 million, which was primarily
attributable to the corresponding decrease in Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate resulting from the
further implementation of the loose monetary policy, and downward adjustment to interest rate and
maintaining of low interest rate by the US Federal Reserve during the year to support economic
recovery.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2020, total assets of the Group reached HK$121.7 billion, representing an increase of 26%
YOY, while the total liabilities of the Group was HK$106.5 billion, representing an increase of 250% YQY. As at 31
December 2020, total equity amounted to HK$15.2 billion, up by 349% YQY, of which, the Attributable Profit was
HK$15.12 billion, up by 34% YOY.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's asset and liability structure mainly consists of the followings: 1) regarding
assets, the financial assets from the financial products held on behalf of the clients reached HK$39.51 billion,
accounting for 32% of the total assets; other financial assets (mainly market making bonds) were HK$31.51
billion, accounting for 26% of the total assets; the trust bank balances held on behalf of the clients amounted
to HK$18.71 billion, accounting for 15% of the total assets; and loans and advances to customers were HK$15.60
billion, accounting for 13% of the total assets; 2) regarding liabilities, financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss were HK$39.24 billion, accounting for 37% of the total liabilities; obligations under repurchase agreements
reached HK$17.40 billion, accounting for 16% of the total liabilities; and interest bearing bank borrowings were
HK$9.72 billion, accounting for 9% of the total liabilities.

The Group's assets are of sound liquidity and reasonably structured. In addition, due to the stringent risk
management measures, the Group has made corresponding impairment allowance for assets which show any
indication of impairment, as a result of which, the assets are of high quality.

As at 31 December 2020, the leverage ratio (defined as total assets less accounts payable to clients divided by total
equity) was 6.81 times (2019: 7.46 times), and, excluding the financial assets from the financial products held on
behalf of the clients, was 4.22 times (2019: 4.12 times). The gearing ratio (defined as the sum of interest bearing
borrowings and debt securities in issue at amortised cost divided by total equity) was 1.64 times (2019: 1.57 times).

The Group's current ratio was 1.10 times (2019: 1.12 times).

Current Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's current assets were HK$104.08 billion, increasing by 20% YOY, which was
mainly attributable to the increase of HK$4.8 billion in loans to clients and the increase of HK$7.5 billion in client
trust bank balances driven by the growth of the wealth management business. In particular, the bank balances of
the Group as at 31 December 2020 were HK$5.51 billion (2019: HK$7.22 billion). For the year ended 31 December
2020, net cash outflow of the Group was HK$1.71 billion (2019: inflow of HK$3.11 billion).

Non-current Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the non-current assets of the Group were HK$17.64 billion, up by 82% YQY, primarily
due to the increase of HK$9.1 billion in non-current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
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Current Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the current liabilities of the Group were HK$94.61 billion, increasing by 22% YQOY, which
was mainly attributable to the increase of HK$6.3 billion in payables by clients and the increase of HK$10.3 billion
in debt securities in issue.

Non-current Liabilities
As at 31 December 2020, the non-current liabilities of the Group were HK$11.87 billion, up by 54% YQY, primarily
due to the increase of HK$4.2 billion in non-current debt securities in issue.

The Company, through its subsidiaries, maintained a US$15,000 million Guaranteed Structured Note Programme
under which unlisted notes denominated in any currency as determined by the issuer may be issued from time
to time. On 16 July 2020, the Company also successfully renewed the Medium Term Note Programme of up to
HK$15,000 million (or the equivalent in other currencies at the date of issue), pursuant to which both listed and
unlisted notes may be issued. On 31 December 2020, the structured notes and medium term notes issued and
outstanding amounted to US$3,800 million (31 December 2019: US$3,500 million) and HK$9,800 million (31
December 2019: HK$5,800 million), respectively. On 18 February 2021, the Company has increased the size of the
Medium Term Note Programme from HK$15,000 million to HK$25,000 million.

On 3 March 2021, the Company issued USD400 million 2% medium term note due 2026 under the Medium Term
Note Programme.

Taking into account the un-utilized facilities from various financial institutions and sufficient un-issued limit of
the above-mentioned note programmes, we believe our operating cash flow is adequate and sufficient to finance
our recurring working capital requirements and to meet any investment opportunities that may arise in the future.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other debt instruments issued by the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Capital Structure

On 17 March 2020, the Rights Issue (as defined hereafter) was completed and a total of 1,919,219,266 Shares
were allotted and issued by the Company. The gross proceeds raised from the Rights Issue (as defined hereafter)
was approximately HK$2,783 million.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company bought back and cancelled a total of 20,000,000 Shares
at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$19,903,454.35 (inclusive all expenses) on the Stock Exchange

at the prices ranging from HK$0.92 to HK$1.05 per Share.

During the year, a total of 2,336,288 Shares were allotted and issued by the Company in respect of share options
exercised under the share option scheme of the Company (the "Share Option Scheme").

As at 31 December 2020, there were 9,617,228,644 Shares in issue. Save as disclosed above, there was no other
movement in the number of issued Shares during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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The Group monitors its capital structure from time to time to ensure the compliance of the capital requirements
under the Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap. 571N) for its licensed subsidiaries and to support
the development of new business. All licensed corporations within the Group have complied with their respective
liquid capital requirements during the year and up to the date of this report.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group had no material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries, associated
companies and joint ventures.

Significant Investments Held
The Group did not hold any significant investment with a value greater than 5% of its total assets as at 31
December 2020.

Charges on the Group’s Assets
No asset of the Group was subject to any charge as at 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Capital Commitments, Other Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Details of capital commitments and other commitments of the Group are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements.

The Group did not have any contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

Prospects

Entering into 2021, with the introduction of COVID-19 vaccines, it is expected that the global economy will gradually
return to the recovery track. Low interest rate and sufficient liquidity may become the "New Norm" for the major
Western economies, but the rising potential risks such as US dollar depreciation, governmental debts and corporate
debts could subject the global market to uncertainties.

As one of the major economies to achieve economic growth in 2020, and supported by its moderately loose
monetary policy and proactive fiscal policy, China is expected to expedite economic recovery and become the
core growth engine for the global economy. The year 2021 unveils the implementation of the nation's "Dual
Circulation” new development strategy, which aims to stabilise economic growth by focusing on developing a
domestic circulation economy, boosting domestic consumption and increasing investments. As it is expected that
the trend of the China concept stocks returning to the Hong Kong market for secondary listing will continue,
the participants in the Hong Kong capital market will have more opportunities to invest in an increasing number
of listed companies that are engaged in new economy, and owing to the further implementation of the stock
connect mechanism, the investment sentiment and interest will be further revived. During the process, investors
will seek more quality investment channels and wealth management platforms and explore various development
opportunities to participate in the development of the Chinese economy.
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In 2021, the Group will continue to step up efforts in implementing operational strategies to promote effectiveness:
° Leveraging fintech in the securities trading platform to provide better trading experience to clients;

° Taking proactive initiatives to optimise wealth management services, enhance products and services as well as
investment channels for clients and strengthen the interconnectivity among wealth management and private
equity, asset management, corporate finance and other businesses, continuing to create one-stop financial
services for clients;

° Stepping up efforts to develop financial institutions and corporate clients and leveraging on the core competencies
of financial products and trading system to provide clients with differentiated and customized products and
services; and

° Enhancing cooperation with parent company to explore new opportunities in the cross-border financial market.

Over the mid-to-long run, the Group will take the Belt and Road Initiative as an opportunity to expedite its pace in
exploring the Southeast Asian markets, and further facilitate the business development in Southeast Asia through
its subsidiaries in Singapore and Vietnam. The Group determines to be the professional partner for domestic clients
who invest globally and for overseas clients who invest in China.

The Group has been implementing a solid and steady operational strategy. As always, the Company will continue
to improve its risk management measures and strengthen its execution, as well as consolidate and enhance its
outstanding risk management capabilities through timely identification, measurement, hedging and mitigation
of risks, so as to lay a solid foundation for further business development. The Group always aims to increase
the risk-adjusted return on net asset with steady and solid compound growth to reward our investors for their
continuous supports.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

Staff is an integral part of the success of the Company. Competitive remuneration packages are offered to employees
by reference to prevailing market rate and individual merits. As at 31 December 2020, we had 591 employees in
total (excluding our self-employed account executives). Salaries are reviewed on an annual basis and discretionary
bonus is paid on an annual basis with reference to the Group's performance and individual performance. Other
benefits offered by the Group include mandatory provident fund scheme and medical and dental insurance. Details
of the remuneration of employees are set out in note 6 to the financial statements in this report.

We adhere to fostering a working environment with opportunities for learning and career development for our
employees, and the Group provides employees with a comprehensive range of staff training scheme, including
financial knowledge, compliance and leadership management, so as to help them achieve both their personal and
professional development goals.
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Major Risks Faced by the Company and Risk Mitigation Measures

In the first quarter of 2020, the global economy has been greatly impacted by the global outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic
and the tension between China and the US, with a steep decline in stock and bond indices. The stock and bond indices
rebounded after falling to a low level in March. In summarizing the HSI performance in 2020, the highest was 29,174
points in mid-January with the lowest of 21,139 points in mid-March, and the HSI closed at 27,231 points as at 31
December, with a year-on-year drop of 958 points or 3.4%.

The Group strictly managed its business risks and implemented its risks management measures during the year. Due to
the prudent risk management and effective asset quality improvement, the Company successfully overcame the market
crisis in March with effective risk management controls, whilst the risks taken by us were within the risk appetite of
the Group, and a satisfying increase in profits was achieved. In 2021, lack of effective containment of the pandemic
worldwide and the ongoing tension between China and the US exposed the market to a certain pressure. The Group will
continue to adopt a prudent approach towards the market, as well as strengthen the risk management system.
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Risk Management Structure

Our Company has established an organizational risk management hierarchy. The Board, at the top of the organizational
risk management hierarchy, is responsible for overseeing the firm-wide risk management framework and risk management
policy. The Board has established and delegated the Risk Committee to assist in the implementation of risk management
framework, review and approve the Group's risk management strategies, risk appetite, risk tolerance and material risk
limits. The Risk Committee holds meetings at least twice a year to review the effectiveness of the overall risk management
framework and strategies and material risk-related issues. The management shall, when necessary, report to the Board
from time to time on material risk issues which may affect the Group's performance. The Risk Management Committee,
a management-tier committee under the Risk Committee, shall report to the Risk Committee on all potential material
risks and changes it identified in business activities as well as actions taken to enhance the risk management process
and mitigate relevant risks.

The Risk Management Department is the key department for risk management and responsible for identifying, assessing,
monitoring and reporting risks associated with the business activities of the Group. The Risk Management Department
measures and quantifies the business risks through the risk management systems and internal risk measurement models,
including but not limited to the value at risk (VaR), stress testing, internal rating and sensitivity analysis. The Group
develops a limit-focused risk index system that sets top-down risk limits covering various specific risks and businesses
to reflect different levels of authorization, risk appetite and risk tolerance of the Company.

Credit Risk

Credit risk occurs when the Group commits to, or enters into, an agreement with any borrower or counterparty. The
Group manages credit risk by conducting risk assessment on borrowers or counterparties, which may include, but not
limited to, assessing their repayment sources, underlying collaterals, and the expected impact of current and future
economy on the borrower or counterparty.

The Group formulates credit risk policies, risk indicators and key risk thresholds, and performs independent risk monitoring
and limit management. The Risk Management Department assesses the key credit risk exposure under both normal and
stress scenarios, and manages credit risk by establishing and monitoring loan exposure/credit limits, internal credit
ratings and the hierarchical indicator system to reflect the different levels of authorization and reporting mechanisms
from top to bottom.

The Group established monitoring measures for loan business, including pre-lending limit approval, real-time post-lending
monitoring, executing margin calls and forced liquidations, setting single client and single stock collateral loan limit, and
conducting regular stress tests, etc. Should the borrowers fail to fulfil their obligations, the business line and control
units will firmly carry out the loss recovery actions under the procedures of the Group. Where losses are unlikely to
be recovered or provisions for impairment of expected losses are required pursuant to relevant accounting standards,
such provisions for impairment would be made in the financial statements of the Group. For details of the analysis of
the total book value of margin and term loans based on the Group's internal credit ratings as well as the total value
of pledged securities used as collateral for margin loans, please refer to note 16 to financial statements in this report.

Regarding the risk of the counterparties, the Group monitored the margin call process in accordance with the credit terms
under the trading master agreement entered into with the counterparties. In addition, the Group assesses counterparty's
credit risk through assigning internal credit ratings and set counterparty limits according to counterparty's types, credit
ratings and business demand.
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Listed Fixed Income Securities Credit Rating
The carrying amounts of the listed fixed income securities of financial assets at the end of the year are categorised by
rating distribution as follows:

As at 31 December 2020

Financial assets held for trading — listed fixed income securities HK$'000

AAA to A- 2,029,282 13%
BBB+ to BBB- 5,656,672 36%
BB+ to BB- 3,435,952 22%
B+ and below 3,128,325 20%
No rating 1,392,822 9%
Total 15,643,053 100%

Note:

The ratings refer to the credit ratings of the listed fixed income securities or the securities issuers granted by three well-known rating agencies.
The ratings are the average ratings granted by three well-known rating agencies (if any); “No Rating" is recorded when no rating has been
granted by any of the three rating agencies.

Market Risk

The Group is exposed to market risk, which refers to the risk on the changes of fair value or future cash flows of a
financial instrument due to market price fluctuations. Market risk is originated from open positions which are exposed to
the volatility of general and specific market movements such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and securities prices.

In response to this risk, the Risk Committee is responsible for reviewing and approving the overall risk management
strategies, risk appetite, risk tolerance, key risk limits and the risk management policy of the Group. The Company sets
appropriate risk limits based on the nature of different businesses, such as transaction limits, size limits, VaR limits,
concentration limits, sensitivity limits and stop loss limits. The Risk Management Department is responsible for day-to-
day identification, measurement, monitoring and control of the overall market risk, and report to the Risk Management
Committee and Risk Committee on a regular basis. The Group has established policies and procedures for monitoring
and controlling the market risk which is originated from the ordinary and usual course of business. Stress tests are
conducted on a regular and case by case basis.

The Group's interest rate risk mainly sources from the volatility of fair value of financial instruments held by the Group
which are sensitive to the interest rate risk, resulting from market interest rate negative fluctuation. Other price risk is
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of change in market
price. The Group adopts sensitivity analysis to measure the interest rate risk and other price risk. Please refer to note
42 to the financial statements in this report for details of interest rate sensitivity and price sensitivity analysis.

For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group hedges the majority of the client positions through

back-to-back transactions with external counterparties. As the Group adopts a stringent control over its positions, it is
considered that foreign exchange risk exposure is manageable.
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The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong Kong dollar, US dollar and Renminbi. The Group
is not exposed to material foreign exchange risk because HK dollar is pegged with US dollar. The Group also conducts
appropriate hedging activities when it is exposed to material exchange risk in RMB. Other foreign currency exposure
is relatively minimal to its total assets and liabilities. The foreign exchange risk is daily managed and monitored by
the Treasury Department and Finance Department. As a result, it is considered that foreign exchange risk exposure is
manageable.

Operational Risk

Operational risk refers to losses resulting from inadequate or ineffective internal processes, personnel and systems,
or from other events. Since operational risk is embodied in every activity within the Group, the Group relies on all
employees to maintain an effective internal control environment and manage operational risk within their respective
roles. Operational risk must be managed by all employees as part of our day-to-day activities.

The Risk Management Committee, the management-tier committee, is responsible for defining the group-wide operational
risk strategy, approving and periodically reviewing the corporate Operational Risk Management Framework, and ensuring
the operational risks are managed properly. Each business line and supporting function is responsible for identifying,
assessing, monitoring, controlling, mitigating and reporting operational risk specifically from its business, products and
activities under the Group's Operational Risk Framework. The Risk Management Department assists the management in
discharging their responsibilities of understanding and managing operational risk and ensuring the consistent application
of operational risk policies, processes and procedures throughout the Group.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is originated from the Company's inability to meet contractual or contingent financial obligations when they
fall due. Such risk also involves all operations and activities of the Company. Hence, Asset and Liability Committee is
designated to oversee liquidity risk and the Risk Management Department, Finance Department and Treasury Department
are designated to perform daily monitoring and control of liquidity position.

The Group has asset and liability management measures in place in managing its liquidity through its diversified sources
of funding (both short-term and long-term), such as bank loans, rights issue, placement, debt issuance and medium
term note program, etc.

The Group's licensed subsidiaries are subject to specific statutory liquidity requirements as prescribed in the Securities
and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (Cap.571N of the Laws of Hong Kong). The Group has put in place a monitoring
system to ensure that it maintains sufficient liquidity to fund its financial obligations. As a safeguard measure, the
Group has also maintained stand-by banking facilities to meet any emergent operational needs.

Model Risk

Model refers to a quantitative method, system or approach that applies statistical, economic, financial, or mathematical
theories, techniques, and assumptions to process input data into quantitative estimates. The use of models invariably
presents model risk, which is the potential for adverse consequences from decisions based on incorrect or misused model
outputs and reports. Model risk can lead to financial loss, poor business and strategic decision-making, or damage to
organization's reputation. As models were increasingly complex and widely used, we were also exposed to more significant
model risks amid business development and risk management.
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We were fully aware of the importance of model risk and had developed a corporate model management framework.
We specified the responsibilities of each department in our three-line defense management mechanism, and categorized
the models in accordance with the complexity and impact of them. We also strengthened model management step by
step, and managed the model life cycle, from the development, validation, use limitation and update, through a series
of internal control measures such as approval, review and testing.

Legal and Compliance Risks
Legal risk includes the financial and reputational impacts on the Company which is originated from (1) defective contracts,
documents or deal structures which may lead to contractual or legal claims against the Group; (2) the inability or failure
to manage litigation or other dispute proceedings effectively; and (3) legal consequences of compliance risk. These risks
may also be caused by change of laws.

Compliance risk refers to the risk of impairment of our integrity. It is originated from failure to comply with our values
and laws and regulations relating to compliance risk as well as standards relating to specific financial services provided
by the business units, which may damage our reputation and lead to legal or requlatory sanctions and/or financial losses.

The Group manages legal and compliance risks through a comprehensive set of control systems and procedures to
deal with external and internal risks. Business and operational departments are responsible for proactive identification
and management of legal and compliance risks within the Group. Legal Department and Compliance Department are
responsible for setting policies and procedures for the Company and providing independent supervision on and guidance
to business departments. The Risk Committee is the primary body to oversee the legal and compliance risks, while
Legal Department and Compliance Departments prepare reports on key risks regularly for the Risk Committee's and the
Board's review.

Concentration Risk

Concentrations may arise with respect to specific risk exposures, industries, countries, geographic regions, products, asset
classes, and any other category that falls within the Group's definition of concentration risk. The Group's concentration
risk management covers all businesses with risk exposures, including margin financing, financial products, corporate
finance, asset management, and sales and trading.

The concentration risk management is one of the key concerns as the Group's businesses and products have become much
more sophisticated and diversified. The Risk Management Department monitors the key and relevant concentration risk
regularly and reports the material ones to the Risk Committee. Risk appetite and tolerance are set for relevant and material
concentrations and concentration risk is identified, measured, monitored and controlled continuously and effectively.

Strategic Risk

Strategic risk refers to factors which may affect the development direction, corporate culture, competitiveness or
corporate efficiency of an enterprise as a whole. Such risk is embedded in every operating unit while other key types of
risk may also affect strategic risk. We manage strategic risk by the following principles: (1) proactively consider strategic
risk during the strategic planning process; (2) set strategies within the context of our overall risk appetite; and (3) monitor
the performance of our strategic plan and analyze the yearly progress.

Our strategic plan, capital plan, financial operating plan and risk appetite are reviewed and approved annually by the

Board. Major strategic actions, such as capital activities, material acquisitions and disposals must be reviewed and
approved by the Board.
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Reputational Risk

Reputational risk refers to negative public opinions or comments in relation to the Company's operations, management
and other behaviors or external events, which cause/may cause damage of, and have adverse impact on, the Company's
reputation and brand image ultimately.

The Group continues to proactively optimize its policies, systems and process of reputational risk management by adhering
to the principles of comprehensiveness, transparency, prospectiveness and effectiveness. By inclusion of reputational
risk management into its comprehensive risk management system, the Company ensures preventive approach and
contingency plan of reputational risk are in place. The Company applies accurate identification, prudent assessment,
dynamic monitoring, prompt responses to and full controls of reputational risk in terms of operating management, with
an aim to prevent any incidents that may affect the reputation of the Company.

Unknown Risk

Unknown risk refers to a situation where we are unable to identify or not even aware of certain risks which we are
exposed to. Such risks are generally referred to as "unknown unknowns" and the Company needs to continuously
review and examine its risk identification and assessment ability, and cultivate a robust risk culture (i.e. managing risk
is everyone's duty) and encourage discussions and recommendations for improvement of risk management.
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The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate governance. The directors of Company (the
“Director(s)") strongly believe that good corporate governance is essential for effective management, a healthy corporate
culture, sustainable business growth and enhancing Shareholders' value. The Company adopted all principles and code
provisions of the Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 (the "CG Code") to the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules") on the Stock Exchange as its own code of corporate governance. Throughout the year
2020, the Company has complied with all principles and code provisions of the CG Code, except for code provision A.2.1
and code provision E.1.2, details of which are set out in the paragraphs headed “"Chairman and Chief Executive Officer"
and "Communication with Shareholders" in this Corporate Governance Report, respectively.

Looking ahead, we will keep our corporate governance practices under continual review to ensure consistent application,
make updates and improvements following the developments of the CG Code.

Board of Directors

The Board currently comprises four executive directors (the "Executive Director(s)"), being Dr. YIM Fung (the "Chairman”),
Mr. WONG Tung Ching, Ms. QI Haiying and Mr. LI Guangjie, two non-executive directors (the “Non-executive Director(s)"),
being Dr. XIE Lebin and Mr. LIU Yiyong and four independent non-executive directors (the “Independent Non-executive
Director(s)"), being Dr. FU Tingmei, Dr. SONG Ming, Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer. There
is a balanced composition of executive and non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors)
with a strong independent element on the Board, non-executive Directors constitute more than half of the Board and
independent non-executive Directors constitute not less than one-third.
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The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive Director a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to the criterion set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers that all Independent Non-executive Directors are
independent.

Dr. FU Tingmei, Dr. SONG Ming and Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung, our Independent Non-executive Directors, have served the
Board for more than nine years. The Board considers that they have continued to exercise independent judgment on
the matters of the Company and there is no evidence that the length of tenure is having adverse impact on their
independence. The Board therefore considers that Dr. FU Tingmei, Dr. SONG Ming and Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung remain
independent, notwithstanding the length of their tenure.

None of the Directors has any financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship with each other. Brief
biographical particulars of the Directors are set out from pages 103 to 106 of this annual report.

Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board, under the leadership of Chairman, is accountable to Shareholders and the Company as a whole, and primarily
responsible for formulating overall strategic plans and key policies of the Group, supervising business and financial
performance, and ensuring effective corporate governance practices with appropriate risk and control measures in place
so as to enhance Shareholders' value. The Board has delegated certain of the functions to its committees, while the
duties of managing daily operations of the Group are vested in Executive Directors and senior management. Matters such
as approval of financial statements, declaration of dividend, capital restructure and issuance of securities, merger and
acquisitions, major investments, connected transactions, appointment and removal of directors and auditors, remuneration
policies, etc. are specifically reserved to the Board.

The Company has arranged Directors' & Officers' Liability Insurance for its directors and officers in respect of possible
legal proceedings and other claims against them arising from their office and execution of their powers, duties and
responsibilities. The directors and officers shall not be indemnified where there is any negligence, fraud, breach of duty
or breach of trust proven against them.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All Directors, including Non-executive Directors, have a specific term of appointment which is not more than three years.
Each of the Directors has entered into a service agreement or a letter of appointment with the Company and shall be
subject to retirement by rotation for re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company (the "AGM") at least
once every three years. In accordance with the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”),
one-third of the Directors (if the number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-third) shall
retire from office at each AGM and be eligible for re-election by Shareholders. The retiring Directors should be those
who have been the longest in the office since their last re-election. In addition, any director appointed either to fill a
casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold the office only until the next following AGM and shall then
be eligible for re-election by Shareholders.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited e 2020 Annual Report 91



Corporate Governance Report

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Dr. YIM Fung has been performing both of the roles of the Chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company
(the "Chief Executive Officer") since 24 August 2012. Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual. The Directors
believe that Dr. YIM can provide strong and consistent leadership in the development and execution of the Group's
business strategies which is beneficial to the Group. Notwithstanding the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer are vested in the same individual, all major decisions are either made by the Board or in consultation with the
Board and the senior management of the Company. As there are four Independent Non-executive Directors in the Board,
the Directors consider that there is sufficient balance of power and the current arrangement maintains a competitive
position of the Company.

Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four times a year and at about quarterly interval. Notice of at least 14 days is given for a regular
Board meeting so as to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. Agenda accompanying board papers are circulated to
all Directors normally a week before the meeting and in any event not less than 3 days before the meeting. Draft and
final version of minutes of each Board meeting are circulated to Directors for their comment and record respectively.

All Board members have separate and independent access to management, and are provided with full and timely
information about the Group for them to perform their duties and responsibilities. Besides, all Board members are
provided with monthly management updates and accounts which contain periodic financials with summaries of key
events, outlook and business related matters of the Group. All Directors are entitled to seek independent professional
advice on performing their duties at the Company's expense.

Attendance Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General
Meetings

The number of meetings of the Board, the Board committees and the general meeting held in 2020 and the attendance
record of each Director at the meetings is set out below:

Audit Nomination Remuneration Risk
Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
No. of meetings held 4 4 1 1 2 1
Executive Directors
Dr. YIM Fung 4[4 - 1 - 2/[2 o/
Mr. WONG Tung Ching 4/4 - - - — 11
Ms. QI Haiying 4[4 - - - 2/[2 1
Mr. LI Guangjie 4/4 - - - - 11
Non-executive Directors
Dr. XIE Lebin 3/4 - - 1M1 - 1/1
Mr. LIU Yiyong 4[4 — — — 2/[2 1
Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei 4[4 4/4 — 11 2/2 1
Dr. SONG Ming 3/4 44 1/1 1/1 2[2 11
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung 4[4 4/4 11 11 2/2 1
Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer 4[4 4/4 11 1 2/[2 1
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In addition to the above-mentioned meetings, the Chairman of the Board also had a meeting with the Independent
Non-executive Directors without the Executive Directors presence during the year.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director will be provided with a comprehensive and tailored induction training which covers,
among others, information about the Group's operations and business, the roles and responsibilities of the Board and its
key committees, the Company's governance structure and practices, and relevant rules and regulations. On an ongoing
basis, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company also updates the Directors from time to time on the development of the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws, rules and regulations, news on corporate governance issues and development trend of
corporate governance, in order to enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices. During the year,
the Company has arranged an in-house training for the Directors on regulatory matters and breach and sanction cases
relating to listed companies and directors.

A summary of the training record received from each Director for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

Type of training
Attending seminars/

Reading  workshops/forums/
Name of Director materials® conferences®

Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung v v
Mr. WONG Tung Ching v v
Ms. QI Haiying v v
Mr. LI Guangjie v v
Non-executive Directors
Dr. XIE Lebin v v
Mr. LIU Yiyong v v
Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. FU Tingmei v v
Dr. SONG Ming v v
Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung v v
Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer v v

Notes:

(1) Reading materials relevant to the industry, regulatory updates and monthly management reports, etc.

2) Attending seminars/workshops/forums/conferences relevant to the industry, business and directors’ duties.
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Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for, and has reviewed and performed during the year, the corporate governance duties, including:

(a) to develop and review the Company's policies and practice on corporate governance;
(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development of Directors and senior management;
()  to review and monitor the Company's policies and practice on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d)  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual which applicable to employees and
Directors; and

(e)  to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.

Board Committees

Under the Board, there are Board committees, namely Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Risk Committee as well as a functional committee, namely Environmental, Social, and Governance ("ESG") Committee.
All these committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of reference.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises four Directors, including one Executive Director, being Dr. YIM Fung and three
Independent Non-executive Directors, being Dr. SONG Ming (chairman), Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and Professor CHAN Ka
Keung Ceajer.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Nomination Committee include, but not limited to, setting out the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria to select and recommend candidates for directorship, reviewing the
structure and size and composition of the Board, assessing the independence of independent non-executive directors,
and making recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships. The full terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee are available on the websites of both the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee is set out in the paragraph headed "Attendance
Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings" of this report.

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and opined
that it has the skills, experience and diversity perspective appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business.
The Nomination Committee also reviewed and recommended to the Board in relation to the re-election of the retiring
Directors at the AGM held in 2020 as well as assessed the independency of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

Nomination Policy

The Board has adopted the nomination policy, with a view to give an adequate consideration on a balanced composition
of the Board, the policy sets out the ways to identify potential candidates, selection criteria, selection process and
appointment or re-appointment procedures with regard to the nomination and appointment of directors. The selection
criteria in assessing the suitability of potential candidates includes, but not limited to, their professionalism and personal
ethics, board experience, expertise, time commitment, measurable objectives set out in the board diversity policy. The
Nomination Committee may use any process it considers appropriate for evaluating and shortlisting candidates, which
may include, personal interviews, background checks, written submission by the candidates and third party references.
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The selection process for each of their appointments shall be evaluated using a substantially similar process and shall
be fair and transparent. The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing this policy to ensure the effectiveness
of this policy.

Board Diversity

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy, which is available on the Company's website. The Company recognises
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view to achieving a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company seeks to achieve board diversity with a number of aspects includes, but not
limited to, gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. All Board appointments shall be based on meritocracy, and candidates shall be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing this policy to ensure the effectiveness of this policy. During the year, the Nomination Committee has
reviewed the board diversity based on these aspects and considered that it has a balanced diversity. The diversity aspects
of the Board are analysed as follows:

Executive Director Non-executive Director Independent non-executive Director
Designation
40 or below 41-50 51-60 61 or above
Age Group
Male Female
Gender
Bachelor's degree
. Doctorate degree Master's degree and others
Education
Background* —
Chinese
Ethnicity |
Below 5 5-10 Above 10
Years of Service
| ! | | | | | | | j  Number of
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 Directors

*

Including Economics, Engineering, Business and Administration, International Trade, Finance, Law, Mathematics, Accounting and Taxation

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises five Directors, including four Independent Non-executive Directors, being Dr.
FU Tingmei (chairman), Dr. SONG Ming, Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung, Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer and one Non-executive
Director, being Dr. XIE Lebin.

The Company adopted the model whereby the Remuneration Committee is responsible for determining, with delegated
responsibility, the remuneration package of individual executive director and senior management according to the terms
of its terms of reference. Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Remuneration Committee also include, but not
limited to, making recommendation to the Board on the remuneration matters for non-executive directors, setting up of
formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy. The full terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee are available on the websites of both the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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No Director or any of his/her associates is allowed to determine his/her own remuneration. In determining the
remuneration of Executive Directors and senior management, the Remuneration Committee shall consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and their responsibilities, employment conditions, desirability
of performance-based remuneration and the performance of the Company as well as the individual Executive Director
or senior management.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee is set out in the paragraph headed "Attendance
Record at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings" of this report.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee assessed the performance of Executive Directors, reviewed and approved
the proposal for 2020 remuneration of Executive Directors and senior management.

The remuneration of senior management by band for the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out below:

Number of
Remuneration Bands individuals
HK$11,000,000 or below 3
HK$11,000,001 to HK$15,000,000 2

The particulars regarding Directors' and chief executives' emoluments are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung (chairman), Dr.
FU Tingmei, Dr. SONG Ming and Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer, all of them are equipped with commercial and financial
skills and experiences required for understanding of accounting information. The chairman of the Audit Committee has
professional accounting qualification.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Audit Committee include, but not limited to, making recommendations
on the appointment of external auditor and monitoring the independence and objectivity of external audit, overseeing
the integrity of financial information and financial reporting system, supervising the internal control system and internal
audit functions and ensuring such functions are adequately resourced. The full terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of both the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the paragraph headed "Attendance Record
at Board Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings" of this report.

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the year included:

(a) reviewed the 2019 annual results (including annual financial statements, annual report and final results
announcement) and 2020 interim results (including interim financial statements, interim report and interim results
announcement) and recommended the same to the Board for approval;

(o)  reviewed reports submitted by external auditors on their statutory audit of the 2019 annual financial statements

and their review of the 2020 interim financial statements, and made recommendations on the control matters in
relation to accounting, internal audit, financial reporting functions;
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()  reviewed the external auditor's statutory audit plan for 2020, reporting obligations and the terms of engagement;

(d) reviewed the independence and objectivity of the external auditor, the scope and nature of audit and non-audit
services and audit-related and non-audit fees;

(e)  reviewed the representation letters submitted by each departments on its effectiveness of internal control functions;

(f) reviewed reports submitted by internal auditor on the efficiency of internal control system of the Group, including
the audit findings and recommendations, and the implementation status of audit-related recommendations;

(g) reviewed the adequacy on staffing and resources of the internal audit function and the internal audit plan for
2021;

(h)  reviewed the adequacy on staffing and resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the accounting and financial reporting function; and

(i) reviewed the continuing connected transactions undertaken by the Group and the letter on continuing connected
transactions issued by the external auditor.

Internal Control

The Board acknowledges its responsibility of overseeing the Group's systems on risk management and internal control
and reviews their effectiveness through meetings of the Risk Committee and the Audit Committee at least twice a year
and at least three times a year respectively. To facilitate the effective and efficient operations and to ensure compliance
with relevant laws and regulations, the Group emphasizes the importance of a sound internal control system which is
also indispensable for mitigating the Group's risk exposures. The Group's system of internal control is designed to provide
a reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of
failure in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives. The internal control system is reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing reasonable assurance in relation to
protection of material assets and identification of business risks. The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring
and management of risks associated with business activities and has implemented a practical and effective control system
which includes a defined management structure with limits of authority, a sound risk management system and periodic
review of the Group's performance by the Audit Committee and the Risk Committee.

Internal Audit

The Company has an independent internal audit team, which plays an important role in providing objective assurance
to the Board that a sound internal control system is maintained and operated by management. The head of the internal
audit team directly reports to the Audit Committee on audit matters. By adopting a risk-based approach to evaluate
risk level on control environment, the internal audit team makes their audit schedules annually in consultation with, but
independent of, the management, and the audit plan is submitted to the Audit Committee for approval. The head of the
internal audit team shall periodically present audit reports and express opinion to the Audit Committee on the internal
control of the audit units. The annual audit work plan covers major activities and processes of the Group's operating
business. Moreover, special reviews shall be conducted on request of the Audit Committee or the management.
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The Audit Committee has reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the internal
audit functions, and their training programmes and budget, and considered that the staffing is adequate and the staffs
are competent to carry out their roles and responsibilities, and the performance of the internal audit functions for the
year under review was efficient.

External Auditor

Following the retirement of Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company at the AGM held on 21 May 2020, KPMG,
Certified Public Accountants, was appointed as the new auditor of the Company by the Shareholders. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the remunerations paid/payable by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

Fees paid/payable
Other external

Services rendered KPMG Ernst & Young auditor Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Audit services 2,092 189 44 2,325
Interim review 1,008 - - 1,008
Tax and other consultancy services 2,119 897 - 3,016
5,219 1,086 44 6,349

Risk Committee

The Risk Committee comprises seven Directors, including two Executive Directors, being Dr. YIM Fung and Ms. QI Haiying,
and four Independent Non-executive Directors, being Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer (chairman), Dr. FU Tingmei, Dr.
SONG Ming and Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung, and one Non-executive Director, being Mr. LIU Yiyong. On 20 March 2020, Dr.
YIM Fung was redesignated as member from chairman of the Risk Committee while Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer
was redesignated as chairman from member of the Risk Committee.

Under its terms of reference, the duties of the Risk Committee include, but not limited to, overseeing management in
design, implementation and monitoring of risk management system and ensuring it has an effective system, advising
the Board on the Group's overall risk appetite and principles, approving the Group's risk policies and risk tolerance, and
reviewing major investigation findings on risk management matters as well as significant risk control failing or weakness
where identified.

The meeting attendance of each member of the Risk Committee is set out in the paragraph headed "Attendance Record
at Board meetings, Board Committee Meetings and General Meetings" of this report.

During the year, the Risk Committee has discussed with the management to ensure that the management has performed
its duty to have effective risk management system, including the changes, since last review, the nature and extent of
significant risks faced by the Group and its ability to respond to the changes.

Risk Management

The Board has overall responsibility of evaluating and determining the risk appetite and risk tolerance that the Group
is willing to take in achieving its strategic objectives, maintaining a sound risk management system and reviewing its
effectiveness on regular basis.
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The Risk Committee has approved the amendments of the risk framework of the Group this year, which sets out the risk
culture and governance, defining the risk appetite and risk limit, key risk types and overall risk management process.
The risk framework serves as an outline of the Group's overall risk management system and process, which facilitates
the Board to identify and assess the nature and extent of significant risks, the Group's ability to respond to changes in
its business and the external environment, as well as the scope and quality of management's ongoing risk monitoring
and related internal control measures.

The Group's risk management framework is embodied by the three-tier system, the Risk Committee, which delegated by
the Board, being the first-tier level, whereas the Risk Management Committee, the Asset and Liability Committee, the
Investment Committee, the Corporate Finance and Equity Capital Markets Committee, and the Credit Committee, consist
of management members from frontline and internal control functions, being the second-tier level, along with the
third-tier level under the Risk Management Committee, i.e. Risk Management Department, other risk control departments
and working groups, which manage day-to-day specific risks, shall report to the Risk Committee through the chief risk
officer of the Company on all significant risks, material changes and the associated mitigating actions to enhance the
accountability and quality of risk management process. For details, please refer to the section headed "Risk Management
Report" in this annual report.

Review of Risk Management and Internal Control Effectiveness

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has conducted reviews of the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems through two meetings of the Risk Committee and three meetings of the Audit
Committee respectively, covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls, and is
of the view that the Group's risk management and internal control systems are effective and adequate to safequard the
interests of Shareholders and the Company as a whole.

ESG Committee

The ESG Committee was established by the Board as a functional committee on 14 December 2020. The ESG Committee
comprises six members, including one Independent Non-executive Director, being Dr. FU Tingmei (chairman), one Executive
Director, being Mr. LI Guangjie, together with other senior management and heads of relevant functions. The ESG
Committee shall assist the Board in overseeing matters relating to sustainability development and ESG of the Group,
covering governance, policies, objectives and strategy, performance and reporting, and report to the Board reqularly. For
details of ESG of the Group, please refer to the 2020 ESG Report" to be issued by the Company.

Whistleblowing

The Company has its internal complaint handling policy sets out in the compliance manual which provides employees with
reporting channels and guidance to raise concerns about possible improprieties in any matter related to the Company.

Handling and Dissemination of Inside Information

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in accordance with the Listing Rules and the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the "SFQ"), the Group has a policy on disclosure of inside
information with various procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness to preserve confidentiality of inside
information within the Group, sending blackout period and securities dealing restrictions notification to the Directors
and relevant employees, and disseminating information to specific persons on a need-to-know basis. In all cases, great
care must be taken to ensure that no inside information will be disclosed to selected outsiders.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code")
sets out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.
On specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the required standards
as set out in the Model Code throughout the year of 2020.

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary, Ms. FENG Zheng Yao Helen was appointed by the Board. She is an employee of the Company
and responsible for facilitating the Board's processes and communications among Board members, Shareholders and
management. She has confirmed her compliance with the requirements of at least 15 hours of relevant professional
training under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules during the year of 2020.

Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of effective communication with Shareholders and maintains an on-going dialogue
to ensure Shareholders are provided with timely information about the Company. Shareholders are encouraged active
participation in communication with the Company and exercise their Shareholders' rights in an informed manner.

We also encourage two-way communications with both Shareholders and investors through social media platforms such
as WeChat, LinkedIn, Facebook as well as YouTube, while the Company's general meetings remain the most traditional
platform for face-to-face communication between the Board and Shareholders. Separate resolutions are proposed on
each motion at the general meetings.

In respect of code provision E.1.2, Dr. YIM Fung, the Chairman, was not able to attend the AGM held on 21 May 2020
due to other business commitment. Mr. LI Guangjie, the Executive Director, chaired the AGM and, together with the
chairman of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk Committee and other
Directors, were present to answer the Shareholders' questions.

The Company endeavors to disclose all material information to public in a timely manner. The Company maintains a
corporate website (www.gtjai.com) where important information about its activities such as annual and interim reports,
announcements, business development and operations, corporate governance practices and other information are available
for public's access. The Company has adopted its investor relations policy which sets out the communication methods
to accelerate its relationship with investors, media and the public.

Dividend Policy

The Company endeavors to reward Shareholders with stable dividend income whist retain adequate reserves for its future
development. We aim to distribute to Shareholders with regular dividends semi-annually with a certain percentage of
Attributable Profit and may be supplemented by special dividends from special income. The Board considers that it would
be appropriate to target a payout ratio between 30% and 50%, and subject to the economic conditions as well as the
Company's position. From 2017 to 2020, the annual dividend payments amounted to 51% to 57% of Attributable Profit.
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Constitutional Documents

There was no change to the constitutional documents of the Company during the year 2020.

Directors’ Responsibilities on Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising the preparation of financial statements of each financial
period which shall consistently adopt suitable accounting policies and to comply with the accounting standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and to reflect the financial position, the results and cash
flow of the Company during the year in a true and fair manner.

Shareholders’ Rights

Subject to applicable laws and regulations, including but not limited to, the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “CO"), the Listing Rules, and the Articles of Association as amended from time to time,
Shareholder(s) may call general meeting, put forward proposals at AGM and direct enquiries to the Board in accordance
with the following procedures:

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-twentieth of the paid up capital
of the Company may request the Directors to convene an extraordinary general meeting pursuant to Section 566 to
568 of the CO.

In accordance with sections 566 of the CO, the Directors are required to call a general meeting if the Company has
received requests to do so from Shareholder(s) representing at least 5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders
having a right to vote at general meeting. Such requests must state the general nature of the business to be dealt with
at the meeting; and may include the text of a resolution that may properly be moved and is intended to be moved
at the meeting. Such requests may be sent to the Company and attention to the Board or the Company Secretary in
hard copy form (by depositing at the registered office of the Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181
Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong) or in electronic form (by fax: 2509-0030); and must be authenticated by the person
or persons making it. In accordance with Section 567 of the CO, the Directors must call a meeting within 21 days after
the date on which they become subject to the requirement under Section 566 of the CO and such meeting must be
held on a date not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Putting Forward Proposals at AGM
To put forward a resolution at AGM, Shareholder(s) isfare requested to follow the requirements and procedures set out
in Section 615 and 616 of the CO.

Section 615 of the CO provides that the Company must give notice of a resolution if it has received requested to do
so from (a) the Shareholder(s) representing at least 2.5% of the total voting rights of all the Shareholders who have a
right to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate; or (b) at least 50 Shareholders who have the
rights to vote on the resolution at the AGM to which the requests relate.
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Such requests (a) may be sent to the Company and attention to the Board or the Company Secretary in hard copy form
(oy depositing at the registered office of the Company at 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road
Central, Hong Kong) or in electronic form (oy fax: 2509-0030); (b) must identify the resolution of which notice is to be
given; (c) must be authenticated by the person or persons making it; and (d) must be received by the Company not later
than (i) 6 weeks before the AGM to which the requests relate; or (i) if later, the time at which notice is given of that
meeting. Section 616 of the CO provides that the Company that is required under Section 615 of the CO to give notice
of a resolution must send a copy of it at the Company's own expense to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of
the AGM (a) in the same manner as the notice of the meeting; and (b) at the same time as, or as soon as reasonably
practicable after, it gives notice of the meeting.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as a Director can be found on the website of the
Company at www.gtjai.com.

Procedures for Directing Shareholders’ Enquiries to the Board

Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the Board in writing through the Company Secretary
at the contact details below:

Registered office: 27/F., Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181 Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong
Email: comsec@gtjas.com.hk

Tel: (852) 2509-9118

Fax: (852) 2509-0030

Share Registration Related Matters
For share registration related matters, such as share transfer and registration, change of name or address, loss of share
certificates or dividend warrants, Shareholders can contact the Share Registrar, at the contact details below:

Name: Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Address: Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, No. 183 Queen's Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Website: https://www.computershare.com/hk/zh/contact-us

Tel: (852) 2862-8555

Fax: (852) 2865-0990
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Executive Directors

Dr. YIM Fung, JA aged 58, the Chairman since August 2012 and an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer
since March 2010. He was the vice-chairman of the Company during the period from March 2010 to August 2012.
Dr. YIM is concurrently a member of the Risk Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Dr. YIM is
a director of various subsidiaries of the Company, including Vietnam Investment Securities Company (stock code: IVS.
HN), which is listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange in Vietnam. In addition, He is also a director, and a director and the
general manager of the controlling shareholders of the Company, namely Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and Guotai
Junan Financial Holdings Limited, respectively, and a director of its subsidiary. Dr. YIM joined the Group in 1993. He
has over 29 years experience in the securities industry. Dr. YIM is a Senior Economist and holds a doctorate degree in
Economics from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy of Social Sciences and a bachelor's degree in Environmental
Engineering from the Tsinghua University. Dr. YIM was an independent non-executive director of Shenzhen International
Holdings Limited (stock code: 152.HK) during the period from 2017 to 15 May 2020 and Beijing Urban Construction
Design & Development Group Co., Limited (stock code: 1599.HK) during the period from 2013 to 30 December 2019.
At present, he is a member of the 13th National Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference,
a director and vice chairman of the Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association, the honorary life president of Chinese
Securities Association of Hong Kong, a deputy director of International Strategy Committee of Securities Association of
China, a director and standing committee member of the Chinese General Chamber of Commerce Hong Kong and the
life president of Tsinghua Alumni Association of Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG Tung Ching, aged 49, an Executive Director since March 2010 and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since December 2013. He is responsible for overall business and management of corporate finance, equity capital
markets and institutional business of the Group. Mr. WONG is also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. WONG joined the Group in 2000. He obtained a master's degree in Business Administration from the University
of Lincolnshire & Humberside (now known as the University of Lincoln) in 2001 and a higher diploma in International
Trading from the Shenzhen University in 1992.

Ms. QI Haiying, aged 39, an Executive Director and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company since March
2015 and is responsible for the overall operation of the fixed income, principal investment, structured solutions and
derivatives, asset management businesses as well as Singapore business of the Group. Ms. Ql is concurrently a member
of the Risk Committee of the Company and a director of various subsidiaries of the Company. Between 2004 and 2012,
Ms. QI worked for Shenzhen Supervision Bureau of the China Securities Regulatory Commission and was responsible
for regulatory supervision of securities companies and listed companies. In 2012, Ms. QI joined Guotai Junan Securities
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2611.HK; 601211.SS), the parent company, and held the positions as deputy general manager in
Compliance Department and Strategic Management Department respectively and subsequently joined the Group in March
2015. Ms. QI holds a master's degree in Financial Economics from the London School of Economics and Political Science
(LSE) and a bachelor's degree in International Economics and Trade from the University of International Business and
Economics (UIBE) in China.

At present, Ms. Ql is a member of the 13th committee of All-China Youth Federation, a member of the 3rd committee
of All-China Financial Youth Federation, a director and vice president of Chinese Securities Association of Hong Kong
Company Limited, a director and vice president of Chinese Asset Management Association of Hong Kong, a member of
the Chinese Financial Association of Hong Kong and a committee member of the Tianjin Youth Federation.
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Mr. LI Guangjie, aged 52, an Executive Director since March 2010 and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company since
December 2017. He is currently a member of the ESG Committee of the Company. In addition, Mr. LI is also a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company including as a director and the chairman of Vietnam Investment Securities Company
(stock code: IVS.HN), which is listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange in Vietnam. Mr. LI joined the Group in 2001. Mr. LI
used to work for Shenzhen Jinpeng Certified Public Accountants as the deputy head of appraisal department. He has over
29 years experience in accounting, audit, taxation and asset appraisal. Mr. LI holds a master's degree in Economics from
the Central University of Finance and Economics and a bachelor's degree in Economics from the Shenzhen University.
He is an Economist and a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chinese Certified
Tax Agents Association.

Non-executive Directors

Dr. XIE Lebin, aged 53, a Non-executive Director since June 2017. Dr. XIE is concurrently a member of Remuneration
Committee of the Company. At present, Dr. XIE is also the chairman and the secretary of party committee of Investment
Banking Business Unit, and a director of executive committee of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2611.
HK/601211.SS) (“Guotai Junan Securities"), the parent company and a director of the controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Guotai Junan Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and its various subsidiaries.
Dr. XIE used to work at the Investment Banking Department of Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. from 1993 to 1995 and
served as an executive director of the Investment Banking Department of J&A Securities Co., Ltd from 1995 to 1999,
respectively. He held various positions at Guotai Junan Securities since 1999, including as a deputy general manager of
the Shanghai Investigation and Auditing Department, a deputy general manager, an executive deputy general manager
and the general manager of the Investigation and Auditing Headquarters, the deputy chief financial officer and the
general manager of the Planning and Finance Department, the chief financial officer, the chief operating officer and
the chief risk officer, respectively.

Dr. XIE obtained a doctorate degree and a master's degree in Economics from the East China Normal University in
Shanghai in 2010 and 1993 respectively, and a bachelor's degree in Economics from the Shanghai Fisheries University
(currently known as the Shanghai Ocean University) in 1990. Dr. XIE was accredited the International Certified Internal
Auditors' Certificate by the International Institute of Internal Auditors in 2009.

Mr. LIU Yiyong, aged 57, a Non-executive Director since June 2017. Mr. LIU is also a member of Risk Committee of the
Company. At present, Mr. LIU is the general manager of the Internal Review (Investment Banking) Department of Guotai
Junan Securities Co., Ltd (stock code: 2611.HK/601211.SS) (“Guotai Junan Securities"), the parent company. Mr. LIU served
as a senior staff member of the Securities Supervisory Division of Shenzhen Branch of the People's Bank of China from
1994 to 1997, a principal staff member of the Non-bank Financial Institutions Department of Shenzhen Branch of the
People's Bank of China from 1997 to 1998, a principal staff member of the Institutions Inspection Office of Shenzhen
Supervision Bureau of China Securities Regulatory Commission from 1998 to 2002, and a staff member of the Market
Division Il of China Foreign Exchange Trade System from 2006 to 2009, respectively. Since 2009, Mr. LIU held various
positions at Guotai Junan Securities, including a deputy general manager, an executive deputy general manager and the
general manager of the Compliance Department, respectively.

Mr. LIU studied in the Graduate School of the People's Bank of China from 1991 to 1994 and obtained a master's degree

in Economics. Mr. LIU subsequently obtained a master's degree in Public Administration from the Columbia University
in 2003.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. FU Tingmei, aged 54, an Independent Non-executive Director since June 2010. Dr. FU is currently the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee as well as a member of the Audit Committee and the Risk Committee of the Company.
He is also the chairman of the Environmental, Social and Governance Committee of the Company. Dr. FU has extensive
experiences in investment, finance, law and business management. Between 1992 and 2003, he conducted many corporate
finance transactions in several investment banking firms based in Hong Kong, including serving as a director of Peregrine
Capital Limited, and a deputy managing director and subsequently a managing director of BNP Paribas Peregrine Capital
Limited. Dr. FU is currently engaged in private investment business. Presently, he is also an independent non-executive
director of Postal Savings Bank of China Co., Ltd (stock code: 1658.HK), China Resources Pharmaceutical Group Limited
(stock code: 3320.HK) and COFCO Joycome Foods Limited (formerly known as COFCO Meat Holdings Limited) (stock
code: 1610.HK). He was an independent non-executive director of CPMC Holdings Limited (stock code: 906.HK) during
the period from 2008 to 2 July 2019 and Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (stock code: 392.HK). Dr. FU graduated
from the University of London with a doctorate degree and a master's degree in Law in 1993 and 1989, respectively.

Dr. SONG Ming, aged 59, an Independent Non-executive Director since June 2010. Dr. SONG is also the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Risk Committee
of the Company. Dr. SONG has over 26 years experience in research of banking regulations and management, financial
market, and macroeconomics. Dr. SONG is currently the dean of the School of Economics and Management at the Wuhan
University. He is also an independent non-executive director of The United Laboratories International Holdings Limited
(stock code: 3933.HK), Great Wall Pan Asia Holdings Limited (formerly known as Armada Holdings Limited) (stock code:
583.HK), and an independent director of Tande Co., Ltd (stock code: 600665.SS), respectively. In addition, he was an
independent non-executive director of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (previous stock code: 1369.HK) during the
period from 2013 to 20 December 2020, the listing of its shares on the Stock Exchange was cancelled on 8 December
2020. Dr. SONG holds a doctorate degree in Economics from the Ohio State University, a master's degree of Science in
Mathematics from the Huazhong University of Science and Technology and a bachelor's degree of Science in Mathematics
from the Zhejiang University.

Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung, aged 67, an Independent Non-executive Director since 2010. Mr. TSANG is also the chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Risk Committee
of the Company. Mr. TSANG joined KPMG in 1975 and retired as a senior banking partner in 2003. At present, Mr. TSANG
is an independent non-executive director of L. K. Technology Holdings Limited (stock code: 558.HK). Mr. TSANG was an
independent non-executive director of China CITIC Bank International Limited, a licensed bank in Hong Kong, and CITIC
International Financial Holdings Limited, from 2004 to 2017. Mr. TSANG holds a higher diploma in Accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
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Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer, GBS, SBS, JF aged 64, an Independent Non-executive Director since August 2018.
Professor CHAN is concurrently the chairman of the Risk Committee and a member of the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. At present, he is also an adjunct professor
and the senior advisor to the dean of the Business School of the Hong Kong University of Science and Technology
("HKUST"). He was appointed as the secretary for Financial Services and the Treasury of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region from 2007 to 2017. Prior to that, he was the dean of the HKUST Business School.
Before joining the HKUST in 1993, Professor CHAN taught for nine years at the Ohio State University in the United
States. Professor CHAN was a non-executive director of MTR Corporation Limited (stock code: 66.HK). He is currently an
independent non-executive director of Langham Hospitality Investments and Langham Hospitality Investments Limited
(stock code: 1270.HK) and China Overseas Land & Investment Ltd. (stock code: 688.HK). He is also a chairman of Welab
Bank Limited (formerly known as Welab Digital Limited), a senior advisor of Welab Holdings Limited, an independent
non-executive director of CMB International Capital Corporation Limited and Greater Bay Area Homeland Investments
Limited, a non-executive director of The Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited and Trivium Holdings Limited and a
member of the Competition Commission of Hong Kong.

Professor CHAN holds a bachelor's degree in Economics from the Wesleyan University and followed by M.B.A. and Ph.D.
in Finance from the University of Chicago. He has expertise in asset pricing analysis, trading strategy evaluation and
market efficiency and has published numerous articles on these topics.

Senior Management

Mr. LAl Changhua, aged 54, the Chief Risk Officer of the Company since December 2017 and responsible for overall
risk management of the Group (including compliance and legal matters). He joined the Group in October 2015. Before
that, Mr. LAl held a management role in the risk management departments of several international investment banks,
with over 20 years' experience in financial markets and risk management. Mr. LAl holds a master's degree in Economics
from the Nankai University, a master's degree in Business Administration from the Western Sydney University, and a
bachelor's degree in Engineering from the Sichuan University. He is also a certified FRM (Financial Risk Manager) and
PRM (Professional Risk Manager).
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting to Shareholders this annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in wealth management,
brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans and financing, financial products and market making and
investments. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Further discussion and analysis of the business review as required by Schedule 5 of the CO, including a description of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group, important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of this financial year and an indication of likely future development in the Group's business are set out in the
sections of "Chairman’s Statement”, "Management Discussion and Analysis", "Risk Management Report” and "Notes to
the Financial Statements” in this annual report.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income on page 136 of this annual report.
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The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.051 per Share for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: a final dividend of HK$0.020 per Share), subject to the approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, and
will be payable on Wednesday, 16 June 2021 to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
company on Monday, 31 May 2021. Together with an interim dividend of HK$0.034 per Share which was paid on 10
September 2020, the total dividends for the year ended 31 December 2020 will amount to HK$0.085 per Share (2019:
HK$0.062 per Share). Details of the dividend amount are set out in note 10 to the financial statements of this annual
report.

Segment Information

Detailed segment information of the Group's revenue and segment results is showed in note 4 to the financial statements
of this annual report.

Summary of Financial Information
A summary of the published results, assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extract from the audited financial statements as appropriate, is set out on page 69 of this annual report. This

summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserves available for distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions
of Sections 291, 297 and 299 of the CO, amounted to HK$86,021,000. Details of movements in the reserves of the Group
during the year are set out in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity on pages 140 to 141.

Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting to HK$80,000.

Particular of Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the financial statements of this annual report.

Shares/Debentures Issued

Details of movements in share capital of the Company and the number of Shares in issue during the year are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements of this annual report.

On 17 March 2020, a total of 1,919,219,266 Shares were allotted and issued by the Company pursuant to the Rights
Issue (as defined hereafter). Details are set out in this report under the section headed "Rights Issue".
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During the year, a total of 2,336,288 Shares were allotted and issued by the Company in respect of share options exercised
under the Share Option Scheme. Details are set out in this report under the section headed "Share Option Scheme".

Details of issued debentures of the Company during the year are set out in note 27 to the financial statements and the
section headed "Financial Position" under "Management Discussion and Analysis" of this annual report.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed Securities

During the year, the Company bought back a total of 20,000,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate
consideration of HK$19,903,454.35 (inclusive all expenses). All these Shares were cancelled during the period
correspondingly.

Details of the Shares bought back during the year are as follow:

Aggregate

Number of consideration

Shares bought Price paid per Share (inclusive

back Highest Lowest transaction costs)

HK$ HK$ HK$

April 2020 4,313,000 1.05 0.97 4,389,318.18
May 2020 14,511,000 1.01 0.92 14,297,386.25
June 2020 1,176,000 0.99 0.94 1,146,549.92

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company's listed securities during the year ended 31 December 2020 other than acting as an agent for the trustee of
the share award scheme of the Company (the "Share Award Scheme").

Rights Issue

In order to support the Group's long term development, considering that capital raising will not increase financing costs,
while it could strengthen its financial position, on 14 January 2020, the Company announced a proposal for rights issue
of rights shares at the subscription price of HK$1.45 each on the basis of one rights share for every three existing Shares
on the record date of 7 February 2020 (the “Rights Issue") with underwriting arrangement by underwriters, namely China
Tonghai Securities Limited ("China Tonghai") and Guotai Junan Securities (Hong Kong) Limited. On 17 March 2020, the
Rights Issue was completed and based on the subscription results of the Rights Issue and the underwriting arrangement,
1,919,219,266 Shares in total were allotted and issued by the Company (of which 1,764,943,555 Shares were allotted and
issued to Shareholders who had validly accepted their right shares and 154,275,711 Shares were allotted and issued to
China Tonghai, respectively). The net proceeds raised from the Rights Issue was approximately HK$2,780 million, equivalent
to a net subscription price per rights share of approximately HK$1.448. The closing price of HK$1.49 per Share was quoted
on the Stock Exchange on 14 January 2020, being the last trading day before the terms of the Rights Issue were fixed.
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Use of Proceeds

The following table sets forth the information in relation to the use of the net proceeds raised from the Rights Issue
as disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 24 February 2020 (the “Prospectus”):

Intended used and
actual used of
net proceeds during the

period from
the completion of
Rights Issue up to

Breakdown of intended use of net proceeds raised from the Rights Issue 31 December 2020
Loans and advances to customers HK$918.15 million
Market making and investment in debt securities HK$918.15 million
Debt repayment HK$417.34 million
General working capital® HK$278.22 million
IT infrastructure and regional expansion in Southeast Asia HK$247.70 million

*

Includes expenses on professional advisory services, trading and back office system enhancement, regulatory compliance and risk control
upgrading and general administrative expenses, etc.

The net proceeds raised from the Rights Issue that have been fully utilized according to the intentions as previously
disclosed in the Prospectus.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable to the Group's five largest customers and the aggregate purchases
attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers were less than 30% of the Group's total sales and purchases respectively.

Directors
The list of the Directors is set out under the section of "Corporate Information” on page 124 of this annual report.
In accordance with Article 99(A) of the Articles of Association, Dr. XIE Lebin, Mr. LIU Yiyong, Mr. TSANG Yiu Keung and

Professor CHAN Ka Keung Ceajer will retire by rotation at the forthcoming AGM, all of them being eligible, and offer
themselves for re-election.

Directors’ and Senior Management Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the Company are set out on pages 103 to 106 of this
report.
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Emoluments of Directors and Chief Executives and the Five Highest Paid
Employees

Details of the Directors' and chief executives' emoluments and the five highest paid employees of the Group are set out
in notes 37 and 40 to the financial statements respectively.

Directors of Subsidiaries

The names of directors who have served on the boards of the subsidiaries of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2020 and up to the date of this annual report are set out below:

(in alphabetical order)

CHAN Ka Wah* NG Chi To Graham WONG Anthony
CHAN Lap Tak Jeffrey*™* NG Pui Nee WONG Chung Mun
CHIU Simon Siu Hung NGUYEN Thanh Tu WONG George Ka Kui
DAI Bo OEl Su Chi lan* WONG Tung Ching
DUANMU Zhenyu ONG Wei Hiam YANG Yanhua

LAl Changhua QI Haiying YAU Deirdre*

LAl Kai Hung SHAO Yu Long* YEUNG Tze Fung

LEE Ming Chuan Eric SIN Hau Yi YIM Fung

LI Guangjie TAY Shu Wei Yvonne ZHANG Gaobo

LO Kwong Shun Wilson WANG Junhong* ZHANG lJinhui

*

no longer the director(s) of the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2020.

*%

no longer the director(s) of the subsidiaries of the Company as at the date of this Annual Report.

Change of Information of Directors

Dr. SONG Ming resigned as an independent non-executive director of Wuzhou International Holdings Limited (previous
stock code: 1369.HK) with effect from 20 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules since last published report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

Directors’ Material Interests in Transaction, Arrangement and Contract

None of the Directors or his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements, or contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group where were entered into by the Group
and subsisting during, or at the end of, the year.
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Directors’ Interest in Competing Businesses

None of the Directors and their associates had any interest in an entity whose business competes or is likely compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the Group's business during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of business of the
Company or its subsidiaries were entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interest in the Shares and Underlying Shares
of the Company or Any Associated Corporation

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

Long position in the Shares and underlying shares of the Company

Number of

Number of underlying Percentage

awarded shares in of Shares in

Number of Shares relation to issue

Name of Directors Capacity Shares (Note ) share options (et

YIM Fung Personal interest 68,546,955 - 2,300,000 70,846,955 0.74%

WONG Tung Ching Personal interest 13,942,564 272,000 2,300,000 16,514,564 0.17%

Ql Haiying Personal interest 5,533,000 479,000 2,300,000 8,312,000 0.09%

LI Guangjie Personal interest 9,965,970 310,000 2,300,000 12,575,970 0.13%

FU Tingmei Personal interest 1,512,096 - — 1,512,096 0.02%

SONG Ming Personal interest 1,512,096 - - 1,512,096 0.02%

TSANG Yiu Keung Personal interest 1,512,096 - - 1,512,096 0.02%
Notes:

1. The awarded Shares were unvested and held by the trustee of the Share Award Scheme. Details are set out in paragraph headed “Share
Award Scheme" under this section and note 34 to the financial statements.

2. The percentage was calculated based on 9,617,228,644 Shares in issue on 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors or chief executives of the Company had any
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register referred
to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Shared-based Compensation Scheme

The Company operates two equity-settled share-based compensation schemes including the Share Option Scheme and
the Share Award Scheme. Details of which are set out in the paragraphs below.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 19 June 2010. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
the people working for the interests of the Group with an opportunity to obtain equity interest in the Company, thus
linking their interests of the Group and thereby providing them with an incentive to work better for the interests of
the Group.

The participants of the Share Option Scheme are the directors (whether executive or non-executive and whether
independent or not) and employees of the Group who, in the absolute opinion of the Board, have contributed to the
Company or the Group.

The total number of Shares that may be issued upon exercise of all share options granted and to be granted must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000
Shares). As at the date of this annual report, the total number of Shares available for issue in respect of the share
options which had been granted and were outstanding under the Share Option Scheme were 54,968,002, representing
approximately 0.57% of the Shares in issue.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of share options granted and to be granted
(including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option schemes to: (A) each participant in the 12-month period up to and including the date of grant, shall not exceed
1% of the total number of Shares in issue; and (B) a participant who is a substantial shareholder or an independent
non-executive director, or any of their respective associates in the 12-month period up to and including the date of grant
(i) representing in aggregate shall not exceed 0.1% of the total number of Shares in issue; and (ii) having an aggregate
value, based on the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet on the date
of each grant, shall not in excess of HK$5,000,000. Any further grant of share options in excess of the above limits is
subject to shareholder approval in general meeting.

The exercise period of share option granted under the Share Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its absolute
discretion, and shall expire no later than the 10th anniversary of date on which the share option is granted.

There is neither any minimum period for which a share option must be held, nor any performance target which required
to be achieved before the share option can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the Board and specified at the
time of the offer.

The consideration of HK$1 for the acceptance of the grant shall be remitted in favour of the Company within 28 days
from the date of offer or other period as may be determined by the Board.

The exercise price of share options is determined by the Board in its absolute discretion, and shall be at least the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date
of offer; and (i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five consecutive days on which Shares are traded on the Stock Exchange immediately preceding the
date of offer.
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The Share Option Scheme was valid and effective for a period of 10 years from the date of adoption, which has been
expired on 19 June 2020. No further share options shall be granted after such period but all granted and outstanding
share options remain exercisable after the end of such period and the provisions of the Share Option Scheme thereof
remain in full force and effect.

Movements of the share options under the Share Option Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out as
follows, details of which are set out in note 32 of the financial statements:

Number of share options

At Granted  Exercised  Cancelled Lapsed At  Exercise
Name of 1 January during during during during 31 December price Date of grant Exercise period
participants 2020  the year  the year  the year  the year 2020 HK$ 2
Directors
YIM Fung 800,000 - - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 - - - - 500,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1450 11/09/2019 11/09/2020-10/09/2029
WONG Tung Ching 800,000 - - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 - - - - 500,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1450 11/09/2019 11/09/2020-10/09/2029
Ql Haiying 800,000 - - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 - - - - 500,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1450 11/09/2019 11/09/2020-10/09/2029
LI Guangjie 800,000 - - - - 800,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
500,000 - - - - 500,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000 1450 11/09/2019 11/09/2020-10/09/2029
Sub-total 9,200,000 - - - - 9,200,000
Employees 3,596,768 - (2,336,288) - - 1,260,480 0.827 24/04/2012 10/06/2012-09/06/2021
(in aggregate) (Note 1 (Note 1)
33,797,535 - - - (7115,298) 26,682,237 1.264 10/01/2014 10/01/2015-09/01/2024
(Note 1) (Note 1)
6,400,000 - - - (200,000) 6,200,000 2440 13/07/2017 13/07/2018-12/07/2027
7,700,000 - - - (800,000) 6,900,000 1720 04/07/2018 04/07/2019-03/07/2028
14,200,000 - - - (1,150,000) 13,050,000 1450 11/09/2019 11/09/2020-10/09/2029
Sub-total 65,694,303 - - — (9,265,298) 54,092,717
Total 74,894,303 - (2,336,288) - (9,265,298) 63,292,717
Notes:
1. The number of outstanding share options and the exercise price may be subject to adjustment in case of reorganization of the capital

structure of the Company. Pursuant to the announcements dated 29 September 2014 and 9 July 2015, the Company adjusted respectively
the number of outstanding share options and the exercise price with reference to the terms of the Share Option Scheme and the
supplementary guidance attached to the letter of the Stock Exchange relating to share option scheme dated 5 September 2005.

2. In respect of the share options granted on 24 April 2012, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 10 June 2012, 10
June 2013 and 10 June 2014 and exercisable until 9 June 2021.
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In respect of the share options granted on 10 January 2014, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 10 January 2015,
10 January 2016 and 10 January 2017 and exercisable until 9 January 2024.

In respect of the share options granted on 13 July 2017, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 13 July 2018, 13
July 2019 and 13 July 2020 and exercisable until 12 July 2027.

In respect of the share options granted on 4 July 2018, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 4 July 2019 and 4
July 2020 and shall be vested on 4 July 2021 and exercisable until 3 July 2028.

In respect of the share options granted on 11 September 2019, one-third of the share options has been vested evenly on 11 September
2020 and shall be vested on 11 September 2021 and 11 September 2022 and exercisable until 10 September 2029.

Share Award Scheme
The Company adopted the Share Award Scheme on 27 October 2011 (as amended on 30 October 2014 and 25 November
2015 subsequently) and shall be valid until 26 October 2021 unless otherwise terminated by the Board.

The purpose of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognise the contributions by certain employees and directors of
any member of the Group and to give incentives in order to retain them for the continuing operation and development
of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

The maximum number of Shares which can be awarded under the Share Award Scheme is 10% of the Shares in issue
as at the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000 Shares), and the maximum number of the Shares which may be awarded to a
grantee in the 12-month period up to and including the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the Shares
in issue as at the adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000 Shares).

When a grantee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which might include performance, operating and financial targets and
other criteria, as determined by the Board at the time of making the award and become entitled to the Shares forming
the subject of the award, the trustee shall then transfer respective awarded Shares to that employee or director at no
cost. There is no minimum period for which an awarded Share must be held before it can be vested.

No payment to purchase Shares shall be made, and no instruction to acquire Shares shall be given, to the trustee of
the Share Award Scheme where any Director is in possession of inside information in relation to the Company or where
dealing in securities by Directors are prohibited under any codes or rules and applicable laws from time to time.

Before the Shares are transferred to the grantee, the voting rights and powers of any Shares held by the trustee shall
be exercised by the trustee who shall abstain from voting.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company had awarded in aggregate of 161,491,000 Shares since 27 October
2011 and the total number of Shares available for award under the Share Award Scheme amounting to 2,509,000 Shares,
representing approximately 0.03% of the Shares in issue.

During the year, no Shares were awarded, 3,143,000 Shares were adjusted and/or lapsed and 18,402,000 Shares were
vested. As at 31 December 2020, 9,400,000 Shares were unvested. Movements of the outstanding awarded Shares under
the Share Award Scheme for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out as follow, details of which are set out in
note 33 to the financial statements.
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Number of Shares

Adjusted/
At Awarded Vested Lapsed At
1 January during during during 31 December
Name of participants 2020 the year the year the year 2020 Date of award Vesting date
Directors
YIM Fung 544,000 - - (544,000) —13/04/2018 30/11/2020
472,000 - - (472,000) — 16/04/2019 30/11/2020
472,000 - - (472,000) - 16/04/2019 30/11/2021
WONG Tung Ching 549,000 - (271,000) (278,000) — 13/04/2018 30/11/2020
272,000 - (272,000) - - 16/04/2019 30/11/2020
272,000 - - - 272,000  16/04/2019 30/11/2021
Ql Haiying 492,000 - (492,000) - —13/04/2018 30/11/2020
479,000 - (479,000) - — 16/04/2019 30/11/2020
479,000 - - - 479,000  16/04/2019 30/11/2021
LI Guangjie 358,000 - (219,000) (139,000 - 13/04/2018 30/11/2020
311,000 - (311,000) - —16/04/2019 30/11/2020
310,000 - - - 310,000  16/04/2019 30/11/2021
Sub-total 5,010,000 —  (2,044,000) (1,905,000) 1,061,000
Employees (in aggregate) 7,721,000 - (7,268,000) (453,000) - 13/04/2018 30/11/2020
9,133,000 - (8,761,000)* (372,000) - 16/04/2019 30/11/2020
9,081,000 - (329,000)* (413,000) 8,339,000 16/04/2019 30/11/2021
Sub-total 25,935,000 — (16,358,000) (1,238,000) 8,339,000
Total 30,945,000 — (18,402,000) (3,143,000) 9,400,000

Special vesting of a total of 783,000 awarded Shares during the year in accordance with the terms of the Share Award Scheme.

Equity-linked Agreements

Save as the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the Company
issuing Shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
Shares were entered into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the year.
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Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award Scheme disclosed above, for the year ended 31 December 2020,
none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party to any arrangement to enable Directors to acquire benefits by
means of acquisition of Shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the Company or its associated corporations
and none of the Directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18 had any rights to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company or its associated corporations, or had exercised any such rights.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, as at 31 December 2020, the following persons
(not being a Director) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which had
been disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Number of Percentage of
Shares  Shares in issue
Name of Shareholders Capacity (Long positions) (eite 2
Guotai Junan Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 7,044,877,066 73.25%
Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited Mot ) Interested in controlled
corporation 7,044,877,066 73.25%
Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. Note D Interested in controlled
corporation 7,044,877,066 73.25%
Notes:
1. Guotai Junan Holdings Limited is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited, which in turn is a wholly-owned

subsidiary of Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd. and accordingly, Guotai Junan Financial Holdings Limited and Guotai Junan Securities
Co., Ltd. are deemed to be interested in these 7,044,877,066 Shares.

2. The percentage was calculated based on 9,617,228,644 Shares in issue on 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, the Company has not been notified by any persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying shares
of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 19 March 2018, the Company entered into a master agreement ("2018 Master Agreement”) with Guotai Junan
Securities Co., Ltd. ("GTJA"), pursuant to which the Company and GJTA agreed that each of them may, and may procure
the Company (and its members, collectively referred to as the "Group”) and GTJA (and its members, collectively referred
to as the "GTJA Group") respectively, to provide 1) brokerage services, 2) investment management and advisory services,
3) consulting services, 4) corporate finance services to, and to engage in 5) investment and finance transactions with,
each other for a term of 3 years from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2020. As GTJA is the ultimate controlling
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shareholder of the Company and therefore is a connected person of the Company, the transactions contemplated under
the 2018 Master Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company and were expected to be
of a recurrent nature and may occur on a regular and continuous basis in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Group. The transactions contemplated under the 2018 Master Agreement were subject to reporting, announcement,
annual review and independent Shareholders' approval requirement as part of the applicable percentage ratios exceeded
5% under the Listing Rules. The 2018 Master Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder were approved
by the independent Shareholders on 16 April 2018. For further details, please refer to the circular dated 26 March 2018.
The annual caps in respect of the income attributable to the Group arising from corporate finance services provided to
GTJA Group hereof were revised by the 2019 Supplemental Agreement (as described hereunder below).

The Group and GTJA Group shall, from time to time during the term of the 2018 Master Agreement, enter into separate
operational agreements in respect of the provision of any services or any transactions, provided that such operational
agreements and their terms shall be subject to and shall not exceed the terms of the 2018 Master Agreement.

The annual caps in respect of continuing connected transactions contemplated under the 2018 Master Agreement for
three years ended 31 December 2018, 2019 and 2020 are shown as below:

For year ended 31 December

2018 2019 2020
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

Annual caps in respect of income attributable to the Group arising from:

1 Brokerage services provided to GTJA Group 19 26 35
2 Investment management and advisory services
provided to GTJA Group 2 3 4
3 Consulting services provided to GTJA Group 2 2 2
4 Corporate finance services provided to GTJA Group 17 19* 21%
Total 40 50 62

Annual caps in respect of expenses incurred by the Group arising from:

1 Brokerage services provided by GTJA Group 20 23 25
2 Investment management and advisory services
provided by GTJA Group 18 34 59
Consulting services provided by GTJA Group 29 38 51
4 Corporate finance services provided by GTJA Group 32 38 45
Total 99 133 180

These annual caps were revised by the 2019 Supplemental Agreement.
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For year ended 31 December

2018 2019 2020
HK$ billion HK$ billion HK$ billion

Annual caps in respect of principal-to-principal investment and finance transactions between the Group
and GTJA Group:

1 Bonds traded 2.7 3.6 4.
2 Structured products sold by the Group 3.9 5.9 10.6
3 Structured products purchased by the Group 1.6 1.6 1.6

Total 8.2 11.1 16.3

On 22 July 2019, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement ("2019 Supplemental Agreement”) with GTJA to
revise the annual caps in respect of the income attributable to the Group arising from corporate finance services provided
to GTJA Group for the two years ended on 31 December 2019 and 2020 as set out in the 2018 Master Agreement,
due to the increasing demand for cross-border financial services and corporate finance advisory services including the
participation in GTJA's share placement completed on 17 April 2019, the aggregate income attributable to the Group
arising from the corporate finance services provided by the Group to GTJA Group for the first five months in 2019
represented an utilization rate of approximately 97.9% of the approved annual cap of that year as set out in the 2018
Master Agreement. Based on the historical transaction figures and the business developing trend, it was estimated that
the said income was likely exceed the approved annual caps as set out in the 2018 Master Agreement. As GTJA is the
ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company and therefore is a connected person of the Company, the transactions
contemplated under the 2019 Supplemental Agreement constituted continuing connected transactions of the Company
and were expected to be of a recurrent nature and may occur on a regular and continuous basis in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group. The transactions contemplated under the 2019 Supplemental Agreement were
subject to reporting, announcement, annual review and independent Shareholders' approval requirement as the Company
proposed to revise the annual caps for continuing connected transactions and with one of the applicable percentage
ratios exceeded 5% under the Listing Rules. The 2019 Supplemental Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder were approved by the independent Shareholders on 3 September 2019. For further details, please refer to
the circular dated 16 August 2019.

The revised annual caps in respect of continuing connected transactions contemplated under the 2019 Supplemental
Agreement for the two years ended on 31 December 2019 and 2020 are shown as below:

For year ended 31 December

2019 2020
HK$ million HK$ million

Annual caps in respect of income attributable to the Group arising from corporate finance services
provided to GTJA Group

Approved annual caps as set out in the 2018 Master Agreement 19 21
Revised annual caps 133 233
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On 2 December 2020, the Company and GTJA entered into a master agreement (the “New Master Agreement”), pursuant
to which both parties conditionally agreed that each of them will, and will procure the Group and the GTJA Group
respectively, to provide 1) brokerage services, 2) investment management and advisory services, 3) consulting services,
4) corporate finance services to, and to engage in 5) investment and finance transactions with, the other for a term of
three years from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2023. As GTJA is the ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company
and therefore is a connected person of the Company, the transactions contemplated under the New Master Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company and are expected to be of a recurrent nature and may
occur on a regular and continuous basis in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group. The transactions
contemplated under the New Master Agreement are subject to reporting, announcement, annual review and independent
Shareholders' approval requirement as part of the applicable percentage ratios exceeds 5% under the Listing Rules.
The New Master Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder have been approved by the independent
Shareholders on 20 January 2021. For further details, please refer to the circular dated 5 January 2021.

The Group and GTJA Group shall, from time to time during the term of the New Master Agreement, enter into separate
operational agreements in respect of the provision of any services and transactions, provided that such operational
agreements and their terms shall be subject to and shall not exceed the terms of the New Master Agreement.

The annual caps in respect of continuing connected transactions contemplated under the New Master Agreement for
three years ending 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 are shown as below:

For the year ending 31 December

2021 2022 2023
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

Category 1 Transactions

(a) Income (to be) received by the Group for services provided

to the GTJA Group 226 274 329

(o) Expenses (to be) incurred by the Group for services
provided by the GTJA Group 160 187 219
HK$ billion HK$ billion HK$ billion

Category 2 Transactions

Transaction amount attributable to principal-to-principal
transactions between the Group and the GTJA Group 64.1 73.7 83.3

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group in the normal course of business are set out in note
41 to the financial statements, some of those transactions constituted non-exempted continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules, for which the Company has complied with applicable disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in above.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed that the aforesaid continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms or better; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

According to the Group's policy on pricing and internal control measures for continuing connected transactions, the
relevant business units are required to consult and obtain pre-approvals from the relevant departments for each
continuing connected transaction (except for brokerage transactions with standard brokerage rate applied). Each of the
legal, compliance, risk management, finance departments and office of the board of the Company is assigned to review
each of the continuing connected transactions from their respective expertise with reference to comparable transactions
with independent third parties. The Group regularly monitors transactions between the Group and the GTJA Group as to
whether such transactions fall within the scope of the 2018 Master Agreement, the 2019 Supplemental Agreement and
the New Master Agreement (as the case may be), whether the relevant annual caps have nearly been fully utilised, and
issues reminders to the responsible business units where necessary. The Group also conducts sampling inspections based
on the audit plan so as to ensure the appropriateness and effectiveness of its internal control procedures.

The Directors engaged the auditor of the Company to report on the aforesaid continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagement 3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information" ("HKSAE 3000") and with reference to Practice Note 740 "Auditor's
letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” ("PN740") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The auditor has reported to the Directors in accordance with HKSAE 3000 and with reference to PN740 that the
transactions (i) had been approved by the Board; (ii) were in accordance with the pricing policies of the Company;
(iii) had been entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions; and (iv) had not
exceeded the relevant annual caps.

Disclosure Pursuant to Rule 13.21 of the Listing Rules

On 21 August 2017, the Company (as guarantor) and Guotai Junan (Hong Kong) Limited (“GJHK"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company (as borrower), entered into a facility agreement with a group of financial institutions (as
lenders) (the "1st Facility Agreement”) in respect of a HK dollar/US dollar dual currency revolving loan facility in an
aggregate amount equal to HK$8,000 million for a term of 3 years.

On 21 August 2020, the Company (as guarantor) and GJHK (as borrower), entered into several committed facility
agreements with certain banks in Hong Kong (as lenders) (the "2nd Facility Agreement(s)") in relation to the committed
revolving facilities with an aggregate amount of up to HK$2,150,000,000 with final repayment date falling 36 months
after the date of respective 2nd Facility Agreement(s) and an aggregate amount of up to HK$1,350,000,000 with the
final repayment date falling 24 months after the date of respective 2nd Facility Agreement(s).

On 25 September 2020, the Company (as guarantor) and GJHK (as borrower) entered into a committed facility agreement
with a bank in Hong Kong (as lender) (the “3rd Facility Agreement”, together with the 1st Facility Agreement and the
2nd Facility Agreements collectively referred to as the "Facility Agreements”) in relation to the committed revolving
facility with an amount of up to HK$500,000,000 with the final repayment date falling 24 months after the date of
the 3rd Facility Agreement.
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Under the Facility Agreements, it will be an event of default if Guotai Junan Securities Co., Ltd., the controlling shareholder
of the Company, is not, or ceases (directly or indirectly) to be the single largest legal and beneficial holder of shares
in the Company or does not, or cease to, control the Company. In case of the occurrence of an event of default, the
lender(s) may, by notice to borrower, (i) cancel all or part of the commitment(s); andfor (i) declare all or part of the
loan(s), together with accrued interest, and all other amounts accrued or outstanding under the Facility Agreements be
immediately due and payable; andfor (iii) declare that all or part of the loan(s) become payable on demand.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the 1st Facility Agreement had been expired and all advances made under which
had been fully repaid.

Permitted Indemnity

Subject to the CO and under the Articles of Association, every Director is entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
of the Company against all losses and liabilities which he or she may sustain or incur in or about the execution or
discharge of his or her duties andfor the exercise of his or her powers and/or otherwise in connection with his or her
duties, powers or office. In addition, the Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers liability insurance
in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and officers.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25%
of the total number of issued Shares was held by the public throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this report.

Corporate Governance

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages
90 to 102 of this report.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The major laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group's business include the CO, the SFO, the
Anti-money Laundering and Counter-terrorist Financing (Financial Institutions) Ordinance (Cap. 615 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and the Listing Rules. Throughout the year of 2020 and as at the date of this report, as far as the Board and
management are aware, there was no material breach of, or non-compliance with, the applicable laws and regulations
by the Group that has a significant impact on its businesses and operations.

122 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited e 2020 Annual Report



Report of the Directors

Environmental, Social and Corporate Responsibility

The Group is committed to discharging its corporate social responsibility and enhancing its ability on environmental, social
and governance issues. In order to preserve our environment, we have consistently implemented different measures in
day-to-day business and we are granted with, among the others, the "Green Office and Eco-Healthy Workplace" label.

The participation of stakeholders is essential for the development of the Group. The Group has attached great importance
to the expectations and needs of various stakeholders and strengthened the existing communication mechanism. We
have engaged an independent consultant to collect advices from our stakeholders both internally and externally by way
of online survey. During the year, the ESG Committee was established to assist the Board in overseeing matters relating
to sustainability development and ESG of the Group. For details, please refer to the "2020 ESG Report” to be issued by
the Company.

Auditor

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020 have been audited by KPMG,
Certified Public Accountants and Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Council Ordinance who will retire, being eligible, and offer itself for the re-appointment at the AGM to be held on 24
May 2021.

By order of the Board
YIM Fung, JP

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2021
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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KPMG

TO THE MEMBERS OF
GUOTAI JUNAN INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Guotai Junan
International Holdings Limited (the "Company") and its subsidiaries (the
“Group") set out on pages 136 to 292, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code") and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
& M 1% B A ¥R B

Key audit matters EREENSE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were — BE#2EE st B IH 2R 5 AP 3 H -
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements RABHAHGAMBREANEBIFTA
of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our EEEMEH - ELETHEHEEH LAY
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming SRR EEEFTEF LKA ERLNE
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these T TEER @ R YHE L FHRER
matters. BEENER -

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

RTEFNERRBRNAHMERBERTME

Refer to notes 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 149-186.

ERHES M BEHLNFI6R F1492 186 H A & 51 B &K °

The Key Audit Matter
HEETER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZEHERMNESTRNMFAESH

As at 31 December 2020, the gross carrying amount of
loans and advances to customers and its related expected
credit loss ("ECL") allowance amounted to HK$17,440 million
and HK$1,836 million respectively. The net carrying amount
of HK$15,604 million represented 13% of the Group's total
assets.
R2020F12A31B - B TRFPHER R B RN REAE R
HEBABEHERBR(RBEREXDEED I R17,440
B&E T R8368 & B T o BREFE156048 &8 JTih
EEEBEEEI3D -

The Group uses the ECL model to determine the loss allowance
for loans and advances to customers. The Group classifies
loans and advances to customers measured at amortised cost
into three loss stages. A financial asset is classified as stage
one when its credit risk has not increased significantly since
its initial recognition; otherwise it is classified as stage two
or stage three. Stage three applies when a financial asset is
credit-impaired. The loss allowance for stage one financial
assets is measured at an amount equal to a 12-month ECL.
The loss allowance for stage two and stage three financial
assets is measured at an amount equal to a lifetime ECL.
EEERARYERALARABEER TEPNER R Z
REEEE - ESEEMARBENAFENRTERD
ERLBFRBA=([AEBERR EEERRAVKRER
RIS EBEEIEN - AemMEERASZ —BEER  GRISA
FERE=RER - -FRREARGEERENEREE -
FE-EREWEENBERBEBNEZESEN2EAEHER
BANESHTE F_RE-RRCUEESERED
REZENR2PEBEABANSETE -

Our audit procedures for the ECL assessment for loans and
advances to customers included the following:

BB TEFNERRBRNOERER BRI HAESES
BFEETISE:

° understanding and assessing the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of the key internal controls
over the credit risk management of loans and advances to
customers and the ECL assessment. For the key systems
used for the processing of transactions in relation to loans
and advances to customers, we involved our information
technology specialists to assess the design, implementation
and operating effectiveness of a selection of key internal
controls over access to these systems and controls over data
and change management;

. TEEFEETEPNERRBRNEERRERNH
BAES RIEHAERBERFEOR - AITREEK
M HRBRERATEFNERRBRERENRZH
BMEES BMZRBEMANEANRERTHFHZE
R e AR S SR ol & ) IR A A DG R 5 R D
ZHI AR ET AT REITAR

° understanding and assessing the appropriateness of the
established policies and procedures for the ECL assessment
including the staging criteria, application of assumptions and
inputs into the model;

. TEEFEAHENERERARATABRRIEFONE
HE - BEBRREE BREBIERHASE:
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B EE R E

Key audit matters (continued)

EREETEE®

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

MTEFNERRBRNBAREARAFMG

Refer to notes 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 149-186.

HRRE A HEN EI6R F149F186E A B 3 B -

The Key Audit Matter
HEEFEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
ZEEERMANESFENAERHN

The determination of the loss allowance is subject to a
number of key parameters and assumptions, including the
classification of loss stages, estimates of probability of
default, loss given default, exposures at default and the
discount rate, adjustments for forward-looking information
and other adjustment factors. Management judgement is
involved in the estimation of those parameters and the
application of the assumptions.
ETEEABREEZHZ2ALRBR BEEBEERS
B REEHTRE BOEEX  EXNERKREEE .
HAEEERNLEMRAERAZAERAE - RNEFZEL
FRERFERSZE  PREBRREHE -

In particular, the determination of the loss allowance is
heavily dependent on the macroeconomic environment and
the Group's internal credit risk management strategy. The loss
allowance for loans and advances to customers is determined
based on estimates whereby management takes into
consideration market data, historical overdue data, historical
loss experience and other adjustment factors.

LER ETREREFREZBLERRER E5£ERA
BEEREREERRE G TEPANERRBRNEER
BIHORBEREEZRIMSEE BETOHEE BE
EREKBRREAMBARRNREAIEGAERE -

evaluating, with the assistance of our internal risk modelling
specialists, the reasonableness and appropriateness of
the ECL model and the critical assumptions, inputs and
parameters used in the model, including the identification
of loss stages, probability of default, loss given default,
exposure at default, discount rate, adjustments for forward-
looking information and other management adjustments;

ERMARDER R ERN G T EEREAELRE
ANEBEUERAEEARELNRANERRSE  #WAHK
BR2E - BEMAEERER  EHOBE  BROEEX
BARK  BRRE  BAREERAEARREMERE

o

with the assistance of our internal risk modelling specialists,
for key parameters involving judgement, critically assessing
input parameters by seeking evidence from external sources
and comparing to the Group's internal records. We compared
the economic factors used in the models with market
information to assess whether they were aligned with the
market and economic development;
EHRMAMBRBRELERNGET - SR 5 R A
B2 BFRENBRBRSHBEREL BEEEAH
i FETERALE - RMYLLERMAEBERR
HTZEHNTEEERF AT S REBEERE:
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B H AR E

Key audit matters (continued)

ARSI S H ()

Expected credit loss assessment for loans and advances to customers

BMTEFNERRBRNEHERARKRTML

Refer to notes 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 149-186.

HRREA T EEN EI6R E149F186E A B 3t B K -

The Key Audit Matter
BEETEA

How the matter was addressed in our audit
ZEEERMANES TR NAERKN

Management also exercises judgement in determining the
quantum of loss given default based on a range of factors.
These include available remedies for recovery, the financial
situation of the borrower, the recoverable amount of collateral,
the seniority of the claim and existence and cooperativeness
of other creditors. When listed stocks are pledged as collateral,
the loan balances to collateral ratio, and the stock holding
concentration of the borrower, the industry sector and the
operation of the issuer, the liquidity restriction on sales of
the stock are taken into account in the assessment. For loans
and advances to customers that are categorised as stage
three, management performs individual assessment for each
borrower by considering credit enhancements provided to the
Group.
ERENTEABUABREZERNZECENEBRRIEE -
ZERAZBEARNEEHNMHEKEE  ERATBRR -
ER@r ke EE REEERFRAMEEARSFE
REGEZR  -BELETREESERRTUER  BER4E
MREFMEERERAFRERE - BITAMETERE
EIR - HEZRENRDERGEZERSWANAGTRE o
HRBAFZBEBRONETEPNERRRER  EEELE
BRHET BEEENEERAHGRZRERAETERNT
il -

We identified the ECL assessment for loans and advances
to customers as a key audit matter due to its significance
to the consolidated financial statements and the significant
management estimates and judgements required in the
assessment.

BB ETEPHE R R B TE L EAE KT H A
REAREFFE DAREUGEMBHRRNEEELR
FE R E IR B A 1E B K A R U ET o

assessing the value of collateral held for a sample of loans
and advances to customers with reference to publicly
available market prices;

MEARA TEPNERE BRI ERARNEE
BEHM2ERARAGSMISER:

assessing the existence of collateral by obtaining
independent confirmations or statements from brokers or
clearing houses for a sample of securities held as collateral
per the Group's records;

BE BEECHAFEERRNES  EBAKLLEA
FEEMMSBULERKER  METHERARNEE
TrHE %

assessing the existence and quality of collateral, guarantees
or other forms of credit support such as remedies for
recovery in evaluating the adequacy of ECL allowance made
by the Group for material loans and advances to customers
classified as Stage 3; and

Rt ESEEUFEAZE=RRNGETEFPNERER
RBRAERPERABELAEBERRER  FHEMRR -
EREAEMEREEXF(MEEHREE NEEFE
MREE: &

evaluating whether the disclosures on ECLs for loans and
advances to customers measured at amortised cost meet the
disclosure requirements of prevailing accounting standards.
AEERREBHKAFEN G TEPNERRBRNTE
HERABAKBEEAMARTEAEAKERT -
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Key audit matters (continued)

EREETEE®

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

E-ZREMIARE

Refer to notes 42 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 149-186.

R A EIREN 428 E1492 186 H A & 51 B K -

The Key Audit Matter
HEEFEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit
ZEEERMANESFERNAESRHN

As at 31 December 2020, the fair value of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities at level 3 amounted to
HK$8,493 million and HK$7,836 million, representing 12% and
20% of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities
measured at fair value.

2020612831 - ESBEE=AcRMEELTRER
BAFEDHNAF4NBEEBTRISECAEET B &
SEEBEATEFENEREER SR AEMN12%K%20% -

The valuation of the Group's financial instruments is based
on a combination of market data and valuation models which
often require judgement.
EEESRIAMELNENE TS EERAEBEEE N
EERME EBETERELAL -

Some of the inputs used in the valuation models are obtained
from readily available data for liquid markets. Where such
observable data is not readily available, as in the case of level
3 financial instruments, estimates need to be developed which
can involve significant management judgement.
HEREMAE TRAZBR AR TS EKASGHE
HEE - WMABABRRABIIFRENSE  IBE=A%
MIAZER AIEELMGES  ETF@FPREREEEH
B o

Our audit procedures to assess the fair value of level 3 financial
instruments included the following:

HMAEE=AERIACFENBRAREFEETIISE:

assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the valuation of
level 3 financial instruments;
MEE=ReRmTAGKENHERABESDRT - BT
MIEFTRORL

reading investment agreements for level 3 financial
instruments to understand the relevant investments terms
and identify any conditions that were relevant to the
valuation of these financial instruments;
EHE=ReMITARERZATRBEREGRRELH
Bl B 57 & & #h T B {4 & 48 B8 &9 £E fa] 5 14

engaging our internal valuation specialists to assist us
in performing independent valuations of certain level 3
financial instruments where appropriate and compare
these valuations with the Group's valuations. This included
comparing the valuation derived from the Group's valuation
models with our knowledge of current market practice,
testing inputs to the fair value calculations and establishing
our own valuation models to perform revaluations. If
the valuation is determined based on recent transaction
price, we evaluated the appropriateness of management
assessment and verified the transaction price with
supporting documents;

ZREMAFEEERBHEMEETE=RERIA
ETBUGAEMERIEZEHER EX£EGEE
THE - WEFEHE ESEGEEIEMMGHAEERR
MEErm5EANNME  AARTEAER ABE R
RUBMBE S HEERETEMN - MAEEDENEHAR
SERET BMAREREETHNGEERRE X
XHhzBRRPER:
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ARSI S H ()

Key audit matters (continued)

Valuation of Level 3 financial instruments

F=RKEMIELE

Refer to notes 42 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on pages 149-186.

FBLHEEBHIRN T42R E149F 186 H A & 5 B & °

The Key Audit Matter
HRESAEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ZEEERMNETFPRNMAEHN

We identified assessing the fair value of level 3
financial instruments as a key audit matter because
of the degree of complexity involved in valuing these
financial instruments and the significant degree of
judgement exercised by management in determining the
inputs used in the valuation models.

BB EE=ReRTARATVTE#BBAREI
ZH ERzS eI AMERAEEEEEME
REAFMABASBREETREELDE XA E -

assessing the appropriateness of the use of the
net asset value reports provided by external fund
administrators as the fair value of the level 3 financial
instruments at reporting date. This included comparing
the fair value movements against available market
information where appropriate. For the valuation of
fund interests we obtained and agreed the latest
reported net asset values from the fund managers,
our procedures also included obtaining audited
financial statements of the funds where applicable and
checking the historical accuracy of the reported net
asset values; and
ERBRERRRIISECEREMRHTEEETF
BEREAEF=-HREMIAEQRTFTEHNEEMN - It
BREATFEZPRISHHEEMETHLR(WE
A -HRBEMBERRAANESEREE £
ERERUENENEREEFE  HMOEFRT
ERERBESHKEZY B RR (WER) Mk
FEREEFENBEERE R

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards.

ARV BREAAKE  ERF2ERHTEHE
AR TE o
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information included in the annual report, other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
& M 1% B A ¥R B

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

RBE BT RS P BRR
AENEME

BMWEE  RYURAUBHRREER
BTN EARBRFRERMERNE
AERMRARBSEAERE THAS
ERAEANZEMBE - RFIER
EB(RTUEDI)FE 405152 Y BT (E
B—ERE)ELARSE - BRUL A
AFEVEBEMAR - RMTERX
BMFENATEEMEMALTE b
HAEEMEE -

AERERFKFHRE - BTRAERE
HR(E BB ENETHR &
R—BABRRAFERBERR -
BRRRBR A PT A R ARFF SR ER AR BIRE - R
EEREHEMEBIELLERAER
ERAMBBRRERERERAMB
WERMEHMQERE  BBEBEOE
RRAAHARIEERX -

R B CE BB AR EST B 0B
B RMEATELAN - RHTHE
FEHRE - RAN

o HBMFEBERKGFXBRME
BEREUBRERFEEAER
ROt B - BRET R BITEAHE
FFIARESE LR - A R B
RMBEBENENARE  EREM
EAONER @BRXKFAREIR
BR BE BEEER ERR
- FORBENRARES 2 L B
HAREZRRENRFMEFNEX
HRRAMWERSNRARERRA
HEERME M E ANHERR A A

LA
a

g o
ZoN

e HRERHMBAHAMES - KA
RARNERBEATEENETE
FrEBENYIFEE EE£ERE
EHEAREERER -
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's
report is Chan Siu Tung.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince's Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

23 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

%‘m E/\

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 128318 LFE

K H At 2 U m 3R

2020 2019
2020%F 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FHETT

Revenue W &8 5 4,872,952 4,245,536

Other income Hfbug A 5,448 4,635

Revenue and other income Uz & HAth g A 4,878,400 4,250,171

Staff costs BI KA 6 (1,148,710) (842,912)

Commission to account executives REXEMAE (188,382) (124,278)

Depreciation e (68,859) (65,078)

Net loss allowance charge EEEBEST L FE (363,565) (908,714)

Other operating expenses H i 48 5 X (463,949) (424,452)

Operating profit 1 R 2,644,935 1,884,737

Finance costs B & B A 7 (830,256) (879,294)

Profit before tax B %X Al i A 8 1,814,679 1,005,443

Income tax expense BT 15 %1 5 2 9 (246,907) (102,884)

Profit for the year F R F 1,567,772 902,559

Other comprehensive income FREMZERE
for the year, net of tax B % 18
— Investments at fair value through - BAFEFAEM

other comprehensive income TEHERZKE

(net movement in investment (MBI EEHFHEE

revaluation reserve-recycling) BE) - ) (7,.255) =
— Exchange difference on translation of — SNEEFE H 58

foreign exchange (496) (455)

Total comprehensive income for the FRAEZHEWEERE
year 1,560,021 902,104

Profit for the year attributable to: AL F Wi R

Owners of the parent: ISE/NCIEZ P WNE 1,562,587 902,619
— Holders of ordinary shares - TEEFAEA 1,562,587 895,303
— Holders of other equity instrument - AR TAFEA - 7,316

Non-controlling interests FE 1 IR #E 2 5,185 (60)

1,567,772 902,559

Total comprehensive income for the EBhFRAEZEREE:
year attributable to:

Owners of the parent ISTNEIEZF=N 1,554,836 902,164
— Holders of ordinary shares - ETEERFEAEA 1,554,836 894,848
— Holders of other equity instrument - AR TAFEA — 7,316

Non-controlling interests FE¥E AR 25 5,185 (60)

1,560,021 902,104

Earnings per share attributable to BAREERBRREMLER
ordinary equity holders of the parent 27
— Basic (in HK cents) — EARABMEH) 11(a) 16.9 11.7
— Diluted (in HK cents) — BE (CABED 11(b) 16.8 1.7
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e BRI R &R

As at 31 December 2020
72020512 A31H

2020
20204

HK$'000
THER

2019
20194
HK$'000
FB T

Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment mME - BFERZE 12 475,924 508,939
Goodwill and other intangible assets EEREMEREE 13 22,886 22,386
Other assets B & E 14 11,613 8,526
Deferred tax assets RIEFIHE = 15 150,880 267,316
Loans and advances to customers BTEFPHER MR 16 - 947,521
Bank deposits RITER 23 - 66,440
Financial assets at fair value through BEAFEGFTAERN

profit or loss T EEE 20 16,976,561 7,862,292

— Financial assets held for trading and - RBIEEERKRENSR

investments BE 6,805,621 1,594,507

— Financial products - 2REEEM 10,170,940 6,267,785
Total non-current assets FRBEELT 17,637,864 9,683,420
Current assets REBEE
Loans and advances to customers BTEPHNERNBK 16 15,604,244 10,768,381
Accounts receivable JfE Uk 5% 18 18 5,638,797 4,151,021
Prepayments, deposits and other E‘EHITAIE Rek

receivables H b e 3 IE 19 143,744 269,799
Financial assets at fair value through BRAFEFAERD

profit or loss EREE 20 53,937,004 51,128,906

— Financial assets held for trading and - RBIEEERKRENS R

investments BE 24,595,855 19,286,647

— Financial products - SREEEM 29,341,149 31,842,259
Financial assets at fair value through BRATFEFAEMEERE

other comprehensive income 2R & E 20 105,574 =
Derivative financial instruments MTESMITA 21 1,261,354 155,652
Receivable from reverse repurchase F 18] 121 B8 165 2% 8 Mk R 1B

agreements 22 3,022,800 2,247,913
Tax recoverable A Yz = #4 18 153,555 236
Client trust bank balances BEEFRITA 23 18,707,026 11,181,982
Cash and cash equivalents BHeNBESEEY 23 5,508,779 7.150,847
Total current assets RBEE#T 104,082,877 87,054,737
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e B S IR 3R

As at 31 December 2020
12020412 A31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
F & F& T
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FE 5f 3008 24 (22,783,232) (14,587,372)
Other payables and accrued liabilities EMEMRENMETAR 25 (930,801) (584,126)
Derivative financial instruments PESMTA 21 (862,429) (149,851)
Interest bearing borrowings AT 28 K 26 (9,732,840) (11,226,513)
Debt securities in issue BETEEE 27 (36,076,779) (25,819,688)
— At amortised cost — R R (13,798,151) (5,128,330)
— Designated at fair value through - BERATEFAER
profit or loss (22,278,628) (20,691,358)
Financial liabilities at fair value through R AFEFFABZEZN L &
profit or loss afE 28 (6,666,260) (6,810,580)
Obligations under repurchase agreements  [a] i 1 &% (5 18 29 (17,396,163) (18,199,226)
Tax payable FE A B IR (165,492) (243,323)
Total current liabilities REEEALE (94,613,996) (77,620,679)
Net current assets RBEEFE 9,468,881 9,434,058
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERARBARS 27,106,745 19,117,478
Non-current liabilities kRBAERB
Deferred tax liabilities ELERIAAE 15 (17,928) (2,429)
Interest bearing borrowings sHEMER 26 (6,557) (23,368)
Debt securities in issue BEITEEE 27 (11,843,093) (7,679,894)
— At amortised cost — BREHKA (1,549,563) (1,555,874)
— Designated at fair value through - BERAFEFAER
profit or loss (10,293,530) (6,124,020)
(11,867,578) (7,705,691)
Net assets EEFE 15,239,167 11,411,787
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e BRI R &R

As at 31 December 2020
72020512 A31H

2020 2019
2020% 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET T
Equity &
Share capital [N 31 10,908,749 8,125,856
Other reserve H 35 (1,236,460) (1,236,460)
Currency translation reserve B E (1,606) (1,110)
Share-based compensation reserve U EEREERE 41,606 56,089
— Share option reserve - BERERE 32 32,521 30,513
— Share award reserve — & 1D RS 33 9,085 25,576
Shares held under the share award ZRx M BT B F ARG
scheme 34 (30,672) (73,058)
Investment revaluation reserve KEEHHE (7.255) =
Retained profits IR & A 5,443,757 4,424,607
Equity attributable to holders of the TRRKRREGER
ordinary shares 15,118,119 11,295,924
Non-controlling interests JE ¥ J% E 2= 121,048 115,863
Total equity ERAE 15,239,167 11,411,787

Dr. YIM Fung
B g+

Director

EF

Mr. LI Guangjie
$ ﬁ'ﬁ PANY % E
Director

EF

B2 B 2 B R R IR A A « 20205

139




Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GEERBBR

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F 128318 LFE

Equlyatt ributable to owners of the parent

Shares
held under Investment
Currency ~ Share re  the share revaluation Other Non-
Share  Other translation  option ~ award ~ award Retained  reserve  equity controlling Total
capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve scheme arofits (recycling) instrument Total interests  equity

EfbffE i B i il (&) I4

HK$'000 i HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
T BT T BT ThT BT THT THT BT TET BT
Balance at 1 January 2019 ROVEIAIBEIES 8125856 (1,236460) (655 37816 28370 (142,051 4,019,055 - 350784 11182715 11567 11,194,282
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ERZERHEE - = (455) = = - 895303 = 7316 902,164 (60) 902,104
Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 44) WE-FHBAR
(Fi3E44) - - - - - - - - - — 104356 104356
Recognition of equity-settled share- RIER T ENR
based payments (notes 32 and 33) REERERHFR
(R332 R33) - - - 679 57325 - = - - BN - BN
Purchase of shares held under the share B E R E Bzt 28
award scheme (notes 33 and 34) THEMRRD
(P E33R34) - - - - - (4004 - - - (4004 - (4004
Vesting of shares for the share award Rt kB ESER
scheme (notes 33 and 34) 13 (W 333%34) - - - - bom9) 72997 (16632) - - 374 - 374
Transfer of share option reserve upon ~ BEREXAMEZE
the forfeiture of share options Hx%f’ﬂ% = = - (14107 = TR ] = = = = =
Perpetual securities distribution - = - = - = - - (9960)  (9960) - (9960)
Perpetual securities repurchase/ £
redemption - - - - - - (12919) — (348,140 (361,054) - (361054
Final dividend for 2018 (note 10) Fit018F KBRS
(Hi&E10) - - - - - - (152,995) - - (152,995) - (152,995)
Interim dividend for 2019 (note 10) TRVERERE
(R 3£ 10) - - - = = - () = - 3 - 3
Balance at 31 December 2019 and 0195128318 &
t 1 January 2020 00F18188
e 812585 (1236460)  (1110) 30513 25576 (73,058) 4424607 - - 11295924 115863 11411787
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REERBBR

Year ended 31 December 2020
HZE2020F12A3181LFE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent
BARERARGRR
Shares
held under Investment
Currency ~ Share  Share the share revaluation Other Non-
Share  Other translation ~ option  award  award Retained  reserve  equity controlling Total

capital  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  scheme  profits (recycling) instrument Total interests equity
RHKE
HEET REEfH
ERRE  BRE ROERD kAN ff HttER 2R
Bx Efpfit BE  RE  #E RS REEN (THE) I8 #F  BE ERAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Térn TErx TEn TEx TEr TEx TExn TEx TEn TExn TEx THEn

Balance at 31 December 2019 and R019E12A3B K

at 1 January 2020 0018188
&5 8,125,856 (1,236,460)  (1,110) 30,513 25576  (73,058) 4,424,607 - - 11,295,924 115,863 11,411,787
Total comprehensive income for the EmRENEEE
year - - (496) - - = 1,562,587 (7,255) - 1,554,836 5185 1,560,021
Shares issued under rights issue REEREATRGD
(note 31) (P =E31) 2779976 - - - - - - - - 2,779,976 - 2779976
Shares repurchased (note 31) FBOR G (F M) - - - - - - (19.854) - - (19.854) - (19.854)
Recognition of equity-settled share-  BEFBMIEZE5F B LA
based payments (notes 32 and 33) RBEERNHR
’Aﬁ32&33/ - - - 6239 19203 - - - - 25462 - 25462
Vesting of shares for the share award R REF 25 B
scheme (notes 33 and 34) i)
(B33 %34) - - - - (35714) 42386 (9.469) - - (2190) - (2190)
Shares issued upon exercise of share  BIREEAT
options under the share option i ERE
scheme (notes 31 and 32) [kl
(P &E31R32) 2917 - - (9®3) - - - - - 1934 - 1934
Transfer of share option reserve upon ~~ BREXAMEZE
the forfeiture of share options RER A - - - (349 - - 348 - - - - -
Final dividend for 2019 (note 10) FH0VEXSER S
(PR3 10) - - - - - - (191,628) - - (191,628) - (191,628)
Interim dividend for 2020 (note 10) F{T00FFHRE
(i 10) - - - - - - (325734) - - (325734) - (325734)
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020E12531HE)
& 10,908,749 (1,236,460)  (1,606) 32,521 9,085  (30,672) 5,443,757 (7,255) = 15118119 121,048 15,239,167
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n‘/-.r\/\‘Il‘Erﬁ /J|LE$»§

Year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 128318 LFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 T & T F& T
Net cash flows used in operating RETHMARREFRE
activities 38 (15,072,535) (3,786,919)

Cash flows from investing activities REZHRERE

Proceeds from disposal of intangible HERTZEEMSHKIE

assets — 2,260
Purchases of intangible assets BEEFEE (500) -
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE — RS B /B A ) 44 = (101,803)
Purchases of property, plant and BEWHE BERRZE

equipment 12 (35,646) (28,075)
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEBMARCREFE (36,146) (127,618)
Cash flows from financing activities ®WEFHRESHE
Net (repayment)/proceeds of bank RITERCGER) FEHE

borrowings b=} (1,485,274) 1,760,027
Proceeds from issuance of debt securities 2% 1T (& 7§ & %’%Ffr{ KIE 54,424,395 37,851,469
Repayment of debt securities EEEBHZE (41,743,699) (31,866,619)
Repurchase/redemption of perpetual f# [0l HE B ok 4B 7B 5

securities - (361,054)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares B IR 1T T B AT AR D

upon exercise of share options 1% 5} 18 % 58 32 1,934 =
Distribution on other equity instrument H fth 7 25 Iﬂ DR - (9,960)
Dividend paid to shareholders > AR AR B (517,362) (478,060)
Purchase of shares held under the share B ERMEEIENEE

award scheme " A% 19 34 - (4,004)
Principal portion of lease payments HEMNZFHMAE (25,403) (22,023)
Interest portion of lease payments HENZHFE TJJ (1.353) (1,862)
Net proceeds from issuance of shares Iﬁﬂxﬁﬁ%ﬂﬂxf T 15 E

upon right issue e 31 2,779,976 =
Repurchase of shares [o] &% A% 19 31 (19,854) =
Net cash flows from financing activities Bl & EBIR K = /F 58 13,413,360 6,867.914
Net (decease)/increase in cash and cash BERBEEEYOR D),/

equivalents ¥ N F 5 (1,695,321) 2,953,377
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F R & MEEEEY

of year 6,953,890 4,001,198
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, [& K& By & £ F %

net (499) (441)
Effect of loss allowance on cash and cash Eﬂé BHEHASR

equivalents, net e SEBYNRETHE 18 (244)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of HERRERRESEEY

year 5,258,088 6,953,890
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
mEEHESRERXR
Year ended 31 December 2020

HE2020F 128318 IEFE

2020 2019
20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRL BT

Analysis of balances of cash and cash BERBEELZEYH

equivalents HER DA
Cash and bank balances R e K& IRTTHE R 23 5,178,802 5,857,542
Non-pledged time deposits with original FHREREBATE =@A

maturity of less than three months B R K E B 1F K

when acquired 23 79,286 1,096,348
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the #R&ERESRERFI 2

consolidated statement of cash flows BeRBSEEY 5,258,088 6,953,890

Non-pledged time deposits with original 17 X EF R EI Hi B 42 18 = &
maturity more than three months but A BT —FrRER

less than one year when acquired E B FER 23 250,691 196,957
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in A B KRR KA Z

the consolidated statement of financial RekReEFEEYD

position 5,508,779 7,150,847
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 B 5

31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

Corporate and group information

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) was
incorporated on 8 March 2010 in Hong Kong with limited liability
under the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and its shares were listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange") on 8 July 2010. The registered office address of
the Company is 27th Floor, Low Block, Grand Millennium Plaza, 181
Queen's Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is an investment
holding company and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
brokerage, corporate finance, asset management, loans and financing,
financial products, market making and investments.

The Company's immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company are Guotai Junan Holdings Limited (“GJHL") incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands and Guotai Junan Securities Company Limited
("GJSCL") incorporated in the People's Republic of China, respectively.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are
as follows:

REAIREEER

BHRELHBERARAR (R
AR A R2010F3A88 B I &
BRATMERIERBEMERLZAE
BRAR) - ARG KRR D 201047
ASEBERAEHM AR ZFER AR
(MBE 2P )) EMR =T o AN Rl s
MEENMI BB BEFKNER
1815 ¥ 42 T B IH K BR 2718 © AR
RAAKREERAR  HNBAR
FERFLLE EBRE - EE
B BEXREME - SBER -
MR EER -

ARARHEEZER AR R KR E
BRARDBIAREBRE X BB
MBI RE L ZEREGRAE
(BEHREBLZEBRDERFEAR
HAMBEEMA LB RE R H
BOBERAR (TBHRERILESF]

M20205F12 8318 - TEWEB AT
MBI :

Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation and attributable to the Company
business AAREERERDL

Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities

Company name AL R
AR Behy R& E# B TEXH

SamoafHong Kong  US$816,300,000 100% - Investment holding and provision of
general administration and support
services to its subsidiaries

Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)
Limited ("GJHK")

BRER(BB)BRAH BET /& 816,300,000% T RERBRRAENEARRME K
(BEREREA)) EBRIERE
Guotai Junan International Singapore $6$9,300,000 100% - Investment holding and provision of
(Singapore) Holdings Pte general administration and support
Limited services to its subsidiaries
K 9,300,000%7 10 % 7t RERBRRAEMEDRRME K

BB RXE R
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BFF5 ¥R AR M RE

31 December 2020
20204F12A31H

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1.

Company name

POkt

Guotai Junan International Asset
Management (Singapore) Pte
Limited

Guotai Junan International
Securities (Singapore) Pte
Limited

Guotai Junan Securities (Hong
Kong) Limited

BARERE S (BB BRATA
Guotai Junan Futures (Hong

Kong) Limited
AZAZHE (BB BRAR

o

Guotai Junan Finance (Hong
Kong) Limited
BREZHH (BB ERAT

Guotai Junan Capital Limited
AZEZBEAERLA

Guotai Junan Assets (Asia)
Limited

AZAZEEER (TN BR
NG|

Guotai Junan Fund Management
Limited"
BREZESERERARA

Place of
incorporation and
business
ok FR 3
R

Singapore

g

Singapore

IR

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

Percentage of equity
attributable to the Company

AAAEERERDL
Share capital Direct Indirect
k& ER A&
56$4,200,000 - 100%
4,200,000% 1% 7T
56$3,500,000 - 100%
3,500,000 11 7T
HK$7.500,000,000 - 100%
7500,000,0007% 7T
HK$50,000,000 - 100%
50,000,0007% 7¢
HK$300,000,000 - 100%
300,000,000/ 7.
HK$50,000,000 - 100%
50,000,0007% 7T
HK$50,000,000 - 100%
50,000,0007% 7T
HK$10,000,000 - 50%
10,000,0007% 7T

B2 B 2 B R R IR A A « 20205

NEIREEBER #)

Principal activities
Asset management
BEER

Securities brokerage and other financial
services

EFBL LA ERRHE

Securities dealing and broking and
provision of wealth management
services

BERERELNRRENEER
k%

Futures dealing and broking

HEEERLR

Money lending and trading in
securities

FEREAEE

Provision of consultancy and financial
services

RERARMBRY

Asset management

Asset management and trading in

securities
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B 75 B 5

31 December 2020

2020512 A31H
1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. ARAIREEER @)
Place of Percentage of equity
incorporation and attributable to the Company
business AAREERERD L
Company name AR A R Share capital Direct Indirect  Principal activities
RAEH Rewd BA& E# B#&
Guotai Junan Financial Products ~ Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Trading in securities
Limited
AZEREcRERBRAR  BE 1,000,0007% 7T #5EER
Guotai Junan FX Limited Hong Kong HK$30,000,000 - 100%  Leveraged foreign exchange dealing
and broking
BEEZINERRAA Bk 30,000,0007% 7t BERANERSREL
Vietnam Investment Securities Vietnam VND693,500 million 50.97% - Securities dealing and broking and
Company margin financing
BEREEFRN AT il 693,500,000,000 BHERD BERARRE
BEE
Note 1: The Group considers that it has the ability to govern the financial and Wikl ARAEBEEHNIZEXER
operating policies of the entity as the Group has the power to appoint or EECAZYKE  HAEE
remove the majority of the members of its board of directors. REEBENEEZERENY

BHREERE -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the LEHNNEESRAUAEEEE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year EXETEFESBRAEEEE
or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To FEEEBDIARRIMBAR -
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, BEERAE JNHEMHBARZ
result in particulars of excessive length. EXNEEHBREREN TR -

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by ZEY B MERE N20219F3 8238
the board of directors on 23 March 2021. BEE=gERETE -
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2020412 A31H

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") (which include
all applicable HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (*HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income,
debt securities in issue designated at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial instruments which have been measured at fair
value.

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise
stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
"Group") for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

2.1

EREE

ZEBBRRDBRBEFE G0
RE([BABEFERAE]) B
FEAEVHREEN(EEYH R
SEANEBEMBAERANE
BB WEER  FEGTEA
(BEEEHENDRRE) BB
AR ERAREE QRGP R
o BREQAFEFAREN A
EELREGRAR RIAFEFA
HizEABRENEREE  HiE
BAFEFABENEETER
ESUARITEERTANURFE
RFEN ZEMBHRREREE
LR AERImEL -

BRIESHHB  ZETEREKTY
NABTEY  BREREDHE
ERBOZTAE -

fRE A

e W R E A #H E2020912
ABIEFEHNARRE & EK B
RR(T X HBIANER]) B 75 =R
K-MBRARAAAREENM
BEEHnER(BIEEETEER) -
EAEBRAXKNZTHER2HEWERSE
RE|EEHR & ORI KB B
HWRERARWEN (R AEEE
BFEAERNIATERKZE QA
HEEB R FEN) ¥ EZE
B - BDERAS 4% il 4 o

ARELHAEERERAT 20058 147



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 B 5

31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

2.1

148

Basis of preparation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(o)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the
date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the
three elements of control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as
an equity transaction.

Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to conform current
year's presentation.
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B %5 k3 Bt &E
31 December 2020
20204124318

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and 22 8 BEXEBREE

2.3

disclosures

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs that are
first effective for the current accounting period of the Group.

o Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a Business

o Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

None of these developments have had a material effect on how the
Group's results and financial position for the current or prior periods
have been prepared or presented in this financial report. The Group
has not applied any new standard or interpretation.

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and a new standard,
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2020
and which have not been adopted in these financial statements. The
Group has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, debt securities in issue designated at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial instruments,
fund investments, debt investments and equity investments at fair
value at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

EREEMARTHAEEER
S HEANERERNETEE
MBHRELEAETA -

o FBAEWHBRELERNEIN(E
RIA)  XBZEE

o FAREMBHmEERFI6HR
(BRTAR) - TR IE1E R
=EER

RERMEFRES AP HRE
P 8L AN 55 B2 A kol A I A9
BRMBANOERIZHRS A
EREAFE AKELEER
TR EAKRE -

BB ASEBMHZIEIESE
AR —IEFAER] - RELE20204F
12A3MBIEFE R ALK B IR
RZETBMERPEMN - NEEH
R A 4N 7% 55 % B N K AT BE ¥ 4R
AR REETEAFE -

TESHTHERBE

NFEAE
AEEREREMRERQFE
AEERATEFSABRENE®
EELERAE BRAIAFEFA
Hth2HMKENEMEE  FBE
REAFEAABEZEETE
BES NEERIAE Ak
B EBRERRAKRE - 2F
BEATMS2EERAERRESR
FRZHPHEEEMBEIRNER
HERBBEMNNER - 2F
BFENENHEEEXEER
ERNRZREEXRBEETEMS
H(EETEMHBEAN) ZEE
EMEEXRBEMHETHER
miEH - TEXAZABBNIHA
RAEEAJEA LTS -  BEEX
BEMNAFENDRAMS28E
REEXRRBEEERERANMR
RtE UBREMBHL2EENH
REZLEBEMNETE -
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2020412 A31H

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

150

(continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 1 —

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

Level 3 —

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than financial assets), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use and its
fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset is reversed only if there has been a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of any depreciation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies 2.3 TEZE HEME @)

152

(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally
charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value
over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:

Buildings 25-40 years
Leasehold improvements 3 years
Office equipment 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.

(a)  Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land 25 to 40 years

Building 1 to 3 years
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)  Right-of-use assets (continued)
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.

The Group's right-of-use assets are included in property, plant
and equipment.

(b)  Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate.
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is
a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from
a change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an
option to purchase the underlying asset.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)  Lease liabilities (continued)
The Group's lease liabilities are included in interest bearing
borrowings.

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of property and office equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment and laptop computers that
are considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as
revenue in the period in which they are earned.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks incidental
to ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair
value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by
the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree's identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate
of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-
controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's previously held
equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference
is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Intangible assets, representing eligibility rights to trade on or through
The Hong Kong Stock Exchange Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and
The Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, with indefinite useful lives
are tested for impairment annually either individually or at the cash-
generating unit level. These intangible assets are not amortised. The
useful life of an intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed
annually to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Financial assets and liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss ("ECL") allowance is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI"), which results in
an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss when an asset
is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from
the transaction price on initial recognition, the entity recognises the
difference as follows:

(i)  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or
loss.

(i) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument's fair value can be determined
using market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets
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Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group's financial assets include accounts receivable,
deposits and other receivables, loans and advances to
customers, client trust bank balances, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, receivable
from reverse repurchase agreements, derivative financial
instruments, other assets and cash and cash equivalent.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 and classifies its financial
assets in the following measurement categories:

(i) Fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL");

(i)  Fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCI"); or

(i)  Amortised cost.

The classification requirements for debt and equity
instruments are described below:

Debt instruments
Classification and subsequent measurement of debt

instruments depend on:

(i)  the Group's business model for managing the asset;
and

(i)  the cash flows characteristics of the asset.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)
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(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

Business model assessment:

The business model reflects how the Group manages the
assets in order to generate cash flows. That is, whether
the Group's objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the
contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from
the sale of assets. If neither of these is applicable (e.g.
financial assets are held for trading purposes), then the
financial assets are classified as part of ‘other' business
model and measured at FVTPL. Factors considered by the
Group in determining the business model for a group of
assets include past experience on how the cash flows for
these assets were collected, how the asset's performance
is evaluated and reported to key management personnel,
how risks are assessed and managed and how managers
are compensated.

SPPI test:

The Group assesses the contractual terms of instruments
to identify whether the contractual cash flows are ‘solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding' ("SPPI"). Financial assets that are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement are considered to
meet the SPPI criterion. In a 'basic lending arrangement’,
consideration for the time value of money and credit risk
are typically the most significant elements of interest. It
may also include consideration for other basic lending
risks such as liquidity risks, costs associated with holding
the financial assets for a period of time (e.g., servicing or
administrative costs) and a profit margin.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(7

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

SPPI test: (continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash
flows are solely payments of principal and interest.

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt
instruments into one of the following three measurement
categories:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI"), and that
are not designated at FVTPL, are measured at amortised
cost. The carrying amount of these assets is adjusted by
any ECL allowance recognised and measured as described
in note 2.3(a)(ii). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in ‘Market making — debt securities and
exchange traded funds' and 'Investments — fixed income
securities, funds, derivatives and equity investments' using
the effective interest rate method.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

SPPI test: (continued)

FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where
the assets' cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not
designated at FVTPL, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through OCI, except for
the recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest
revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses on the
instrument's amortised cost which are recognised in profit
or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in 'Other income’. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in ‘Market making — debt securities and
exchange traded funds' and ‘Investments — fixed income
securities, funds, derivatives and equity investments' using
the effective interest rate method.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)
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(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss
and is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised
in profit or loss and presented in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income within ‘Market
making — debt securities and exchange traded funds' and
‘Investments — fixed income securities, funds, derivatives
and equity investments' in the period in which it arises.
Interest income from these financial assets is included
in 'Market making — debt securities and exchange traded
funds' and ‘Investments — fixed income securities, funds,
derivatives and equity investments' using the effective
interest rate method.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes. The reclassification takes place from the start
of the first reporting period following the change. Such
changes are expected to be very infrequent and none
occurred during the period.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(i)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)
Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the
definition of equity from the issuer's perspective; that is,
instruments that do not contain a contractual obligation
to pay and that evidence a residual interest in the issuer's
net assets. Examples of equity instruments include basic
ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss, except where the
Group's management has elected, at initial recognition,
to irrevocably designate an equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The Group's
policy is to designate equity investments as FVOCI when
those investments are held for purposes other than to
generate investment returns. When this election is used,
fair value gains and losses are recognised in OC| and are
not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss, including
on disposal. Impairment losses (and reversal of impairment
losses) are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value. Dividends, when represent a return on such
investments, continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments
is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVTPL are
included in the ‘Investments — fixed income securities,
funds, derivatives and equity investments' line in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)
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(if)

ECL allowance

The Group applies a simplified approach to measure ECL
on trade receivable and a general approach to measure ECL
on loans and advances to customers, time deposits and
other financial assets accounted for at amortised cost as
well as loan commitment.

Under the simplified approach, the Group measures the
loss based on lifetime ECL. Under the general approach,
financial assets migrate through the following three stages
based on the change in credit risk since initial recognition:

Stage 1: 12-month ECL

For exposures where there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and that
are not credit-impaired upon origination, the portion of
the lifetime ECL associated with the probability of default
events occurring within the next 12 months is recognised.

Stage 2: Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

For exposures where there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition but are not credit-
impaired, a lifetime ECL (i.e. reflecting the remaining
lifetime of the financial asset) is recognised.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(if)

ECL allowance (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired

Exposures are assessed as credit-impaired when one
or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred.
For exposures that have become credit-impaired, a lifetime
ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost
(net of provision) rather than the gross carrying amount.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk for
exposures since initial recognition by comparing the risk
of default occurring over the expected life between the
reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without undue cost or
effort for this purpose. This includes quantitative and
qualitative information and also, forward-looking analysis.
For certain portfolio of margin loans, the Group rebuts the
presumption that there have been significant increases in
credit risk since initial recognition when financial assets
are more than 30 days past due as management considers
the probability of default is highly correlated with the
collateral value rather than the past due days.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
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(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

(@)

(if)

ECL allowance (continued)
Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-impaired (continued)

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on an exposure
has increased significantly on an individual or collective
basis. For the purposes of a collective evaluation of ECL
allowance, financial instruments are grouped on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics, taking into account
instrument type, remaining term to maturity and other
relevant factors.

The amount of ECL is measured as the probability-weighted
present value of all cash shortfalls over the expected life
of the financial asset discounted at its original effective
interest rate. The cash shortfall is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company and
all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive.
The amount of the loss is recognised using a provision for
doubtful debts account.

If, in a subsequent period, credit quality improves and
reverses any previously assessed significant increase in
credit risk since origination, then the ECL allowance reverts
from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited e 2020 Annual Report

23 EEESTHEME )

TRMEENMBEM#®
TREEE)

(@)

0)

BHRERBREE#E)
SE3fEER - & HITE

ERBEX-EERE

(&)

AEBZMER K EE
HEEFHEERARR
TEELZN - REE
AP TEHERE R
B AEREZEAZRE
ERBEREE
¥EE2TERA -
BB B B B 2 F 64 F
REMBBEEER &
ERMTADMRBE -

BHERBELANE R
DA ERRRERA
EUHBNEREETR
SREHAMBRE T
B ) AT BE 1 I 3R
B-RETRERM
BRERRRBNEHE
EMEEARNFEBR
U B 3R & R B W
ENEBR - BELE
RARKEBER -

WRERHAR E&
BERWEREEFA
st B EE AR

A # 78 B (5 1B K
trHE2HNERER
BARERT=MEA
MIEMEREX -



Notes to Financial Statements

B %5 k3 Bt &E
31 December 2020
20204124318

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)
(i) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When
this happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new
terms are substantially different to the original terms.
The Group does this by considering, among others, the
following factors:

o If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the
modification merely reduces the contractual cash
flows to amounts the borrower is expected to be
able to pay.

° Whether any substantial new terms are introduced,
such as a profit sharefequity-based return that
substantially affects the risk profile of the loan.

° Significant extension of the loan term when the
borrower is not in financial difficulty.

° Significant change in the interest rate.

° Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.

o Insertion of collateral, other security or credit

enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)
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(iif)

Modification of loans (continued)

If the terms are substantially different, the Group
derecognises the original financial asset and recognises a
‘new’ asset at fair value and recalculates a new effective
interest rate for the asset. The date of renegotiation
is consequently considered to be the date of initial
recognition for impairment calculation purposes, including
for the purpose of determining whether a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the Group
also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised
is deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition,
especially in circumstances where the renegotiation was
driven by the debtor being unable to make the originally
agreed payments. Differences in the carrying amount
are also recognised in profit or loss as a gain or loss on
derecognition.

If the terms are not substantially different, the
renegotiation or modification does not result in
derecognition, and the Group recalculates the gross
carrying amount based on the revised cash flows of the
financial asset and recognises a modification gain or
loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount is
recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective
interest rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets).
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

(continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)
(a)  Financial assets (continued)

(iv)

Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised
when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows
from the assets have expired, or when they have been
transferred and either (i) the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership, or (i) the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and the Group has not retained
control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows
to other entities and transfers substantially all of the risks
and rewards. These transactions are accounted for as
‘pass through' transfers that result in derecognition if the
Group:

(i) has no obligation to make payments unless it
collects equivalent amounts from the assets;

(i) is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and

(i)  has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from
the assets without material delay.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

172

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(@)

(6)

Financial assets (continued)
(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions is not derecognised because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards on
the basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the
criteria for derecognition are therefore not met. This also
applies to certain securitisation transactions in which the
Group retains a subordinated residual interest.

Financial liabilities

Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives and financial liabilities held
for trading. Gains or losses on financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss are presented partially in other
comprehensive income (the amount of change in the fair value of
the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability, which is determined as the amount that is
not attributable to changes in market conditions that give rise
to market risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount
of change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such a
presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting mismatch,
in which case the gains and losses attributable to changes in the
credit risk of the liability are also presented in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Derivative financial instruments

The Group's derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at
their fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.

Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising
from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Whilst the Group enters into a derivative contract for trading purposes
or to provide economic hedges under the Group's risk management
framework, it does not apply hedge accounting.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Shares held under the share award scheme

Own equity instruments which are reacquired (shares held under the
share award scheme) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments. Any
difference between the carrying amount and the consideration is
recognised in equity.
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(continued)

Client trust bank balances

The Group maintains trust and segregated accounts with authorised
financial institutions to hold clients' deposits arising from normal
business transactions. The Group has classified the clients' monies as
client trust bank balances under the current assets in the consolidated
statement of financial position as the Group is allowed to retain some
or all of the interest income on the clients' monies and recognised
corresponding accounts payable to the respective customers in the
current liabilities clients on grounds that it is liable for any loss or
misappropriation of clients' monies. Under the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571) and the Hong Kong Insurance
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 41), the Group is not allowed to use the
clients' monies to settle its own obligation.

Fiduciary activities

Apart from the client trust bank balances as mentioned above, the
Group provides brokerage and asset management services and the
Group acts in a fiduciary capacity which results in the holding or
placing of assets on behalf of its customers. These assets and any gains
or losses arising thereon are not included in these financial statements
as the Group has no contractual rights to these assets and its gains
or losses under fiduciary activities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Other assets

Other assets represent the deposits and admission fee paid to the Stock
Exchange, Hong Kong Futures Exchange Limited, Hong Kong Securities
Clearing Company Limited and other regulators. They are intended to
be held on a long-term basis and are stated at the nominal amount.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

° in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to the
customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception
and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur
when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.
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(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Provision of securities and futures brokerage services

The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time when the
customer has obtained control of the service, generally when the trades
are executed.

Provision of investment banking services

The performance obligation for sponsoring and certain consultancy
and financial advisory services are fulfilled when all the relevant
duties of a sponsor or a financial advisor as stated in the contract are
completed.

Revenue from sponsoring fee is recognised at a point in time when
all the relevant duties of a sponsor as stated in the contract are
completed. Certain consultancy and financial advisory services'
performance obligations are satisfied over time as services are
rendered if the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group.

Provision of asset management services

Revenue from asset management services is recognised over time as
the services are provided. Fees for asset management services are
calculated based on a fixed percentage of the value of assets managed.

Performance fees are recognised on the performance fee valuation
day of the investment funds and managed accounts when there is a
positive performance for the relevant performance period and it is
determined that it will not result in significant reversal in a subsequent
period, taking into consideration the relevant basis of calculation for
the investment funds and managed accounts.

Fund distribution activities are separate performance obligations from
the asset management and the obligation being satisfied at a point in
time upon the investors' subscription. Subscription and handling fees
relating to the distribution services are recognised at a point in time
when the services are performed and the amount is known.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Provision of wealth management service

The performance obligation relating to the insurance brokerage service
is satisfied at the point when the terms of the insurance policy have
been agreed contractually by the insurer and policyholder, and the
insurer has a present right to payment from the policyholder (the
"transaction date").

Revenue from other sources and other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Employee benefits

(a)  Retirement benefit scheme
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees' basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

(b)  Bonuses
The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses,
based on an approved formula that takes into consideration the
profit attributable to the Group after certain adjustments. The
Group recognises a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

()

180

Share-based payments

The Group operates two equity-settled share-based
compensation schemes including a share option scheme and a
share award scheme for the purpose of assisting in recruiting,
retaining and motivating key staff members. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The cost of equity-settled transactions is
recognised, together with a corresponding increase in the “share
award reserve" and "share option reserve" under equity, over the
period in which the performance andfor service conditions are
fulfilled in share-based compensation expense. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent
to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for equity-settled transactions where vesting is
conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the share-
based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as
measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of
the original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect (if any) of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Dividends
Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company's articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are
recognised immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

182

(continued)

Securities borrowing and lending agreements

The Group has engaged in the securities borrowing and lending
business with financial institutions and the Group's customers, under
which all transactions are secured in the form of cash. The Group
maintains no net position in such securities borrowing and lending
transactions and is not subject to significant price risk. However, under
the securities borrowing and lending arrangements, the cash collateral
received and cash collateral placed is included in the accounts payable
and accounts receivable from brokers and dealers respectively. Fees
received or paid in connection with securities borrowing and lending
is recorded as interest income or interest expense, respectively.

Assets sold under repurchase agreements (repos)

In addition, the Group may enter into repurchase agreements whereby
securities are sold to third parties with a concurrent agreement to
repurchase the securities at a specified date. The Group may be
required to provide additional collateral based on the fair value of the
underlying assets if necessary.

Assets purchased under agreements to resell
(reverse repos)

The Group may enter into purchases of assets under agreements
to resell. Reverse repos are initially recorded at the cost of the
loan or collateral advanced in the consolidated statement of
financial position. These securities are not recognised in the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position as the counterparty
retains substantially all risks and returns of the securities. In the event
of failure by the counterparty to repay the loan, the Group has the
right to the underlying assets.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which
is the Company's functional and presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period,
the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the reporting
period and their statements of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the currency translation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.
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2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies
(continued)

184

Related parties

A

(a)

or

party is considered to be related to the Group if:
the party is a person or a close member of that person's family
and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group;
(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other

entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited e 2020 Annual Report

23 EEESTHEME )

68 B 77
ETIBERT  —A g SR
AEE AR -

(a)

%

%A B TALHIATAL
R ¢ 0 5

¥ ) 3k 3[R 4% i AR &
£

HAEEEEAFE
A=

AAEERAEEEA
AMEEERERA

i&l:
i
o
i)
i
=
-
o]
B
s
=

\
’

(iif)

(v)

mf}
i

a,

\
ot 3 ot
w30 o

\r
I

i
o} Z mh

\r
I

ME JF m 7
3 % o) W

& i o> m

i
F

p=lllg
I\
i

REBEBRE
|- &ErEIM X
S RN RPN
AR ERNE

i
B

Ns
=
Im

T > Y g
ot

m Ak

\
’



Notes to Financial Statements

BFF5 ¥R AR M RE

2020412 A31H
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23 EEETHEME )

(continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

(vii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Group
or to the parent of the Group.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Taxes

Significant judgement is required in determining the provisions for
income and other taxes. There are transactions and calculations for
which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax
audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be
due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, the differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in which the
determination is made.
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3.
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Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement
is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax losses as at
31 December 2020 was amounted to HK$99.7 million (2019: HK$62.6
million). The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2020
was approximately nil (2019: nil). Further details are contained in note
15 to the financial statements.

Impairment allowances on financial assets

The measurement of ECL allowance under HKFRS 9 across all categories
of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the estimation
of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values
when determining ECL allowance and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of
factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected life
between the reporting date and the date of initial recognition. The
Group considers reasonable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort for this purpose.
This includes quantitative and qualitative information and also,
forward-looking analysis. Further details are contained in note 16 to
the financial statements.
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3.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Valuation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
fair value through other comprehensive income

The fair value of financial assets designated at fair value through
profit or loss that are not traded in an active market is determined by
using external valuations or valuation techniques. The Group uses a
variety of methods and makes assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at each reporting date. Valuation techniques
used include the use of comparable recent arm's length transactions,
discounted cash flows analysis, option pricing models and other
valuation techniques commonly used by other market participants.
Changes in assumptions on the valuation techniques could affect
the reported fair values of these financial assets. Further details are
contained in notes 20 and 42 to the financial statements.

Operating segment information

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the Group's senior executive
management and in accordance with HKFRSs. The Group's operating
businesses are structured and managed separately according to the
nature of their operations and the services they provide. Each of the
Group's operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other operating segments.

BEAREFTHERMEET @

HEr T TR = &)

B FEFGAERRIERFER
A E M2 EW S A% dEE G
WIEMNERMBEENZRAFE
AABEMNEREENAFER
AN EERGEETEETE - &
EERBZEIEARMELEZEE
EUEREEHMRAEENR
R FTABERELABREFERATE
LA HAFEERS - BRIRR
ECRmESN  BHEEEREARE
T H 2 EE T RSB H A
BEAFXN - BEGEEFEZNREE
Bt ERS R EENRE
NEA(E - #E— T FBFHR B R
R 5E20%42 o

e HER

REDHBREN T ARBRELY
BRELEQERAEESRTEH
BEEABRHKHOAMRSE —K -
AEBNREEBIREEEEE
MARERG S FAESRERE -
AEEBETEREDHEHEHR
RFORERGEML - ERBGAA
AR Ko P FE B R A B R E A

W AR N\ 3
Ko o

A

ARECHAEERERAT 202058 187



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 B 5

31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

4.
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Operating segment information (continued)

The executive directors realigned the Group's strategic focus on
traditional brokerage and loans and financing business to serving
targeted customers' investment needs. The institutional investor
services segment provides financial services to corporations,
governments and financial institutions. The wealth management
segment provides a comprehensive financial services and solutions
to individual investors and small to medium-sized businesses and
institutions. In preparing the segment information for the vyear
ended 31 December 2020, the executive directors considered that
the business relating to corporate finance services, institutional
investor services, wealth management, and investment management
are considered a separate reportable segments. Accordingly, the
comparative information has been re-presented to achieve a consistent
presentation.

Details of each of the operating segments are as follows:

(a) corporate finance services provides advisory services, placing
and underwriting services of debts and equity securities;

(b) institutional investor services provides market making,
investments, structured product solutions, lending and other
services to corporations, governments and financial institutions;

()  wealth management provides a comprehensive financial services
and solutions to individual investors and small to medium-
sized businesses and institutions including: brokerage, loans and
financing and other wealth management services;

(d) investment management provides asset management and fund
management services to institutions and individuals, and also
includes investment in funds, debts and equity securities; and

(e) the "others” mainly represents rental income and the provision
of information channel services.

Inter-segment transactions, if any, are conducted with reference to the
prices charged to third parties.
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. BEDHER ()
The segment results of the Group for the years ended 31 December B £20204F K2019F12H318 1k
2020 and 2019 are as follows: FE - AEENSBEEMAT
Year ended 31 December 2020 HE2020F12A318ILEE

Corporate Institutional
Finance Investor Wealth  Investment
Services Services Management Management Others

HE

tRBE  REE
R 8% k% HMEEE REEE Rt o
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TEx TRR TR  TEx TER

Segment revenue and other income: 2 Sk E R Kb

N

Commission and handling income & RFEERA 609,281 227,304 571,176 155,911 - 1,563,672
Interest and coupon income HERZEBMA - 1,802,419 651,218 196,439 - 2,650,076
Investment income RERA 1200 138765 226,822 292417 - 659,204
Other income Hi A - - - - 5,448 5,448
Total @it 610,481 2,168,488 1,449,216 644,767 5448 4,878,400
Segment results AHRE 278859 790432 391340 354,048 - 1,814,679
Income tax expense FERAY (246,907)
Profit for the year ENRA 1,567,772
Other segment information: Hitrn BER
Net loss allowance charge on loans A TFRFPER KRB

and advances to customers BEEETE - 295,567 56,917 - - 352,484
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) & 4 78 518 B

on accounts receivable T/ () B 452 (1,228) 792 (538) - (522)
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal)  Et & B & EE B

on other financial assets B/ (%)

ek - - 10,327 (424) - 9,903

Loss allowance charge on financial R ATFEFALL

assets at fair value through other PENENER

comprehensive income EEBBERHESL - 1,700 - - - 1,700
Depreciation il 8,394 3,145 51,775 5,545 - 68859
Finance costs B - 315891 439,550 74,815 - 830,256
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4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. BEDHER )
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12A31BLLFE

190

Corporate Institutional

Finance Investor Wealth  Investment
Services Services Management Management Others
s
hERE RES
% k% HMEEE REER Aot @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THIT THL TEL THL AT TEL
Segment revenue and other income: 9 UL &
WA
Commission and handling income BeRFEBHA 863,394 95,368 434,265 26,038 — 1,419,065
Interest and coupon income FERESKA - 1,672,996 660,030 28,368 - 2361394
Investment income REBA - (28,774) 48,028 445823 - 465077
Other income Hit A - - - - 4,635 4,635
Total &5t 863,394 1,739,590 1,142,323 500,229 4635 4,250,171
Segment results PHEE 367,288 21,292 346,862 270,001 — 1,005,443
Income tax expense FIEREY (102,884)
Profit for the year A % Al 902,559
Other segment information: HthH HEH -
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) % FEFPER & &
on loans and advances to NEBRETL/
customers (Bm)F& - 913,764 (5,234) - - 908530
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) [ I 508 65 12 ¢ 48
on accounts receivable S/ (BE)EE (3,280) 3,537 358 1,334 = 1,949
Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) ~ E it & B 2 E 1
on other financial assets BB/ (BE)
R (5,945) - - 4,181 - (1,764)
Depreciation ik 17,845 6,798 37,490 2,945 - 65,078
Finance costs HEKA - 414,962 378,909 85,423 - 879,294
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4.

Operating segment information (continued)

Geographical information
Revenue and other income from external customers

(@)

(b)

4, RBREPHER #)

b, 1 5
(a) SPEEEF Y K B MK A

2020 2019

20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

F % T TE T

Hong Kong & 4,621,039 4,121,513
Other countries H i B =X 257,361 128,658
4,878,400 4,250,171

The information of revenue and other income above is based on
the locations of the markets.

Non-current assets
Majority of the non-current assets (excluding deferred tax
assets) of the Group are located in Hong Kong.

Exemy s B E A A B B
TGt R R R

b) FrBHEE
AEBAMOERBDEE
(TERELEHAEE) B
REE °
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5.

192

Revenue

The Group's revenue is disaggregated as follows:

AREBNWSZAHWT

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHE T
Revenue from contracts with customers EFEAEA M am
Brokerage: KESES
Securities 75 5 554,739 452 531
Futures and options BE & Hi 26,544 17,311
Handling income FEBUWA 60,056 52,688
Insurance R B 6,779 6,592
Leveraged foreign exchange 1812 HN E 1,353 2,111
649,471 531,233
Corporate finance: TERE:
Placing, underwriting and sub-underwriting B2 & - & 4 & 2 & #H 89
commission He
— Debt securities - EBES 461,737 594,446
— Equity securities - BARFES 85,055 136,326
Consultancy and financial advisory fee B R E A ABERA
income 45,080 78,275
__________________________________________________ 591,872 809,047
Asset management: BEEER:
Management fee income BEEBUA 9,446 12,772
Performance fee income RIRBWA 144,062 23,667
153,508 36,439
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5. Revenue (continued)

The Group's revenue is disaggregated as follows: (continued)

Financial products, market making and

EREM BTk

5.

e %= @)

AEBENKRSADWT : (&)

2020
20204

HK$'000
FER

2019
20194
HK$'000
T T

investments: A& :
_Handling income on financial products TRERFEEWRA 168,821 42,346
Revenue from other sources A KRz
Loans and financing: ERREE -
Interest and handling income from EPRHFHHBERN
customers and counterparty financing FERFEEBKRA 757,477 742,388
Interest income from banks and others RIT R E M F B U A 250,178 392,584
1,007,655 1,134,972
Financial products, market making and TREm Tk
investments: ®AE
Market Making fi&
— Debt securities and exchange —BEBBLERRSFA
traded funds RPESD 768,200 649,252
Investments "E
— Fixed income securities, unconsolidated —EER=EES
investment funds, derivatives and EEHIEE
equity investments 2 T4£ITH
KRR KRE 1,237,319 666,146
Interest on financial products TREMZIHNE 296,106 376,101
2,301,625 1,691,499
4,872,952 4,245,536
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6. Staff costs 6. ETHA
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
TH T T T
Staff costs (including directors' BEINABEESEME) :
remuneration):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances e o B4 NERL 1,112,330 769,174
Share-based compensation expense AR A ERHERX
— Share option scheme (note 32) — BB P E T & (BT 7E32) 6,239 6,798
— Share award scheme (note 33) — M n 8B AT 2l (B9 7£33) 19,223 57,325
Pension scheme contributions RIKNE TSI HR 10,918 9,615
1,148,710 842,912
7. Finance costs 7. BEERAK
2020 2019
2020% 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T F& T
Bank borrowings and overdrafts RITEREEX 335,288 324,624
Debt securities in issue BETEEES 280,078 240,618
Securities borrowing and lending BEEE 2,319 7,272
Repurchase agreements o] % 1 o 148,218 199,013
Short selling of debt securities BEEBIE S 61,637 82,546
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,353 1,862
Others H A 1,363 23,359
830,256 879,294
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8. Profit before tax 8. BRFEANRER

7 5% 3 & B Bt A g I T S OB

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

GFARTHERGH

2020 2019
20205 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA T
Auditors' remuneration % EEN BN &
() audit services () =Z=HARE 2,325 3,438
(i) interim review (i) FHEIZ=G 1,008 980
(iii) tax and other consultancy services (i) M HA
i & PR 15 3,016 3,460
Foreign exchange differences, net AN BEE 5 = RE (61,944) 53,758
Other commission expenses EMEeHX 45,371 53,072
Information services expenses B R 45,398 35,439
Marketing, advertising and promotion MEHEE BEK
expenses EESH 10,135 11,823
Professional and consultancy fee HELAAE 137,118 93,013

Repair and maintenance (including system HEREE(BERR
maintenance) M) 65,211 59,980
Net loss allowance charge on loans and KTEFPERRER

advances to customers B8 R S R R 352,484 908,530
Net loss allowance (reversal)/charge on JFE I SR IE B 18 B
accounts receivable (B mE),/ > F5E (522) 1,949

Net loss allowance charge/(reversal) on other H i & g & &E & B &

financial assets and loan commitments AEEERESL S
(B @) %58 9,903 (1,764)
Loss allowance charge on financial assets BAFEGTAHM
at fair value through other comprehensive 2HK TS
income BEZEEREE
X H 1,700 -
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9.
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Income tax expense

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
the year.

FRrEBiE X

EBMNERIOERNEBTBEL
B 3 5T FE &R B % B %16.5%
(20194F : 16.500) B &

2020
20204

HK$'000
FRERT

2019
20194
HK$'000
FA T

Current — Hong Kong BV Al — &%
— Charge for the year - FRRAX 103,342 233,040
— Under provision in prior years -BEFERETR 11,630 4,924
Deferred (note 15) i FE (B 5£15) 131,935 (135,080)
Total tax charge for the year FARIEBERS BT 246,907 102,884

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax using
the statutory rate to the tax expense at the effective tax rate is as
follows:

1238 R TE B R 2 B B A A ET
BZHAERARERMEAE
ZBBERHERWT

2020
20204

HK$'000
THER

2019
20194
HK$'000
FB T

Profit before tax & %% A1 i A 1,814,679 1,005,443
Tax at the statutory tax rate at 16.5% A T T %£16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) HE R E

(20194 : 16.5%) 299,422 165,898
Under provision in prior years BAEFEEETR 11,630 4,924
Income not subject to tax AR WA (146,290) (69,905)
Expenses not deductible for tax LI E A 82,149 5,425
Tax losses utilised EBAHIEEIE - (3,417)
Temporary difference not recognised AERE R EHE (4) (41)
Tax charge for the year FABIBERAX 246,907 102,884
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10. Dividends

10. &2

2020 2019
20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Interim, paid — HK$0.034 (2019: HK$0.042) Hi @ EX - &K
per ordinary share T3 1% 0.03478 7T

(20194 : 0.04278 7T) 326,985 324,058
Less: Dividend for shares held under the W ARE AR R E)ET &
Company's share award scheme TE T B £ AR 1 B
i 2 (1,251) (2,747)
__________________________________________________ 325,734 321,311"_
Final, proposed — HK$0.051 (2019: HK$0.02) & « #it Rk 3% — B %
per ordinary share T3/ 12.0.0517% 7T (2019
F£:0.028 ) 490,479 192,698
Less: Dividend for shares held under the B ARE D B ET &
Company's share award scheme T8 TS P 5 B £ &Y
Az B (943) (738)
__________________________________________________ 489,536 191,960’:_
815,270 513,271

* The Company paid a final dividend of approximately HK$191,628,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2019, as further adjusted to exclude the dividend
for shares bought back by the Company before the ex-dividend date 27 May
2020 amounting to HK$332,480.

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval
of the Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

* KR A B IR & 2019412

A3BILEHEEZ REBRKRBLD
191,628,000 7T+ EHRE #E—F
EH R EUAMBR AR RKRER
202045427 B A B8 = &9 AR 17 AR &
332,480 7T °

4 PR K B AR B B B AR A AR
RN EERFATAS LI -
5 AEE -
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11. Earnings
equity holders of the parent

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

(@) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is as follows:

er share attributable to ordinary 11.

ARAIEERBRRESGST
SREXRBBERF T ETE

(a) BREXAEF
BREABMNFTHE AN

T
2020 2019
20204 20194
Profit attributable to ordinary equity &7 &) 38 % I% 5 &G
holders of the parent (in HK$'000) sis A (LA T 78 7T 51) 1,562,587 895,303
Weighted average number of ordinary B %17 % &8 I /9 04
shares in issue less shares held for 39 BURL BL AR 15 22 B
the share award scheme (in '000) EEENRG
(LAF5H) 9,268,622 7,653,126
Basic earnings per share (in HK cents) &M% & K& F|
(LA AL ET) 16.9 1.7

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation, and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding to
assume conversion of all dilutive ordinary shares.
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11. Earnings per share attributable to ordinary 11. 8AFERBRKRRELE
equity holders of the parent (ontinveq) B R )
(b) Diluted earnings per share (continued) (b) BREERN &)
The calculation of diluted earnings per share is as follows: i ”ﬁﬁ ERNBFTE AN
_F
2020 2019
20204 20194F
Profit attributable to ordinary equity £/ &) & 38 A% I% 5 FEAh
holders of the parent (in HK$'000) i A (AT 7T Et) 1,562,587 895,303
Weighted average number of ordinary FBRFTEEREAREF
shares in issue less shares held for MEZETEBERD
the share award scheme used in the hn#E 39 EOR 5E AR
basic earnings per share calculation REAEFEENRSD
(in '000) (LAT &) 9,268,622 7,653,126
Effect of dilution — weighted average &5 & — LB A
number of ordinary shares: bDTEEFi’J%( :
Share options under the share ARSI TE T &Y
option scheme (in '000) iR R (AT 5T) 1,297 4,330
Awarded shares under the share A% 1 £ B 5+ 8 B T /Y
award scheme (in '000) i%lﬁb&ﬁ(l%??ﬂ 15,603 14,272
Number of ordinary shares for the REREERFGE
purpose of the diluted earnings per i = &L Ax B
share calculation (in '000) (AF 5D 9,285,522 7,671,728
Diluted earnings per share BR#ESRN
(in HK cents) (A E AL &) 16.8 1.7
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12. Property, plant and equipment

200

Office
equipment
NS
B3
HK$'000
A

Furniture
and
fixtures
BHR
%E
HK$'000
TR

Leasehold

Buildings improvements

BT
HK$'000
A

BENE
%8
HK$'000
ThR

12. 9% - BEERE

Motor
vehicles Sub-total

AE M
HK$'000  HK$'000
TRL TAR

Right of use assets

Leasehold
land

HE
i
HK$'000
TER

EREEE

Buildings Sub-total

BF
HK$'000
ThR

Total

N
HK$'000
TER

@t
HK$'000
ThR

31 December 2020 2020612A31R
As at 1 January 2020 202051718
Cost KA 126,819 6,797 81,999 45,848 3,069 264,532 481832 72919 554,751 819,283
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (92628) (5736) (21538)  (38,832) (2,997) (161731) (124,670) (23,943) (148,613) (310,344)
Net carrying amount ERFE 34191 1,061 60,461 7,016 72 102,801 357,162 48,976 406,138 508,939
Opening net carrying amount ~ EFRAFE 34191 1,061 60,461 7,016 72 102,801 357162 48,976 406,138 508,939
Additions RE 35,315 166 - 1,11 - 36,592 - 220 220 36,812
Exchange realignment MMEHE 13 - - ) - 6 - (28) (29) (22)
Depreciation charged during ~ FRHE

the year (22978)  (598)  (2198) @127)  (51) (29.952) (12,988) (25919) (38,907) (68,859)
Disposals irf > (946) - - - - (946) - - - (946)
Closing net carrying amount ~ FA&AKEFE 45,595 629 58,263 3993 21 108,501 344174 23,249 367,423 475924
As at 31 December 2020 120205124314
Cost A 158,210 6,960 81,999 46,945 3,069 297,183 481,832 73,149 554,981 852,164
Accumulated depreciation ZiNE (112,615)  (6,331) (23,736) (42,952)  (3,048) (188,682) (137.658) (49,900) (187,558) (376,240)
Net carrying amount REFE 45,595 629 58,263 3,993 21 108501 344174 23,249 367423 475,924
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31 December 2020
20204124318

12. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 12. % - BMERRE @

Right of use assets
EREEE

Office
equipment

ax 1%
HK§'000
TATL

Furniture
and

fixtures

£E
HK$'000
THT

Leasehold

Buildings  improvements

HENE

#

=2

HK$'000
TERL

Motor
vehicles

a1
HK$'000
TERL

Sub-total

1N
HK$'000
TATL

Leasehold
land
HE
T
HK$'000
TAT

Buildings

BT
HK$'000
THT

Sub-total

INEE
HK$'000
TATL

n

HKS 000
TH

For the year ended 220195128318

31 December 2019 LEE
As at 1 January 2019 "2019%1A41A
Cost KA 100,143 6736 563,831 43186 2993 716,889 - - - 716,889
Accumulated depreciation 25t E (73992 (4589) (131,021) (32650)  (2993) (245,245) - - - (045,045)
Net carrying amount REFE 26,151 2147 432810 10,536 — 471644 - - — 471644
Opening net carrying amount AR EFE 26,151 2147 432810 10,536 - 471644 = = — 471644
Effect of adoption of RABBHBRE

HKFRS 16 £/ F16%

LB - - (370,150) - — [370150) 370,150 53060 423210 53,060

Opening net carrying FONRARE

amount 26,151 2147 62,660 10,536 — 101494 370150 53060 423210 524704
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WE—-RME A 1318 - - - 75139 - 27 2,781 4174
Additions HE 25,362 61 - 2,652 - 28075 - 17078 17078 45153
Exchange realignment IME B 2 - - (28) 1 (25) - n n (14)
Depreciation charged during ~ F A &

the year (18642)  (1047)  (2199) (6,144) (4)  (28136) (12988) (23954) (36942 (65,078)
Closing net carrying amount ~ FREEEFE 34,191 1061 60461 7016 72102801 357162 48976 406,138 508,939
As at 31 December 2019 M2019512 4318
Cost KA 126819 6797 81999 45848 3069 264532 481832 72919 554751 819,283
Accumulated depreciation ZHTE (92628)  (5736) (21,538 (38832)  (2997) (161,731) (124,670) (23943) (148613 (310,344)
Net carrying amount REFE 34,191 1061 60,461 7016 72102801 357062 48976 406,138 508,939
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31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

13. BEREMEFREE

13. Goodwill and other intangible assets

Trading Club
rights  membership Goodwill Total
R 5 R B 5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Net carrying amounts REFE
As at 1 January 2019 R2019F171H 1,913 1,282 = 3,195
Acquisition of a subsidiary W g — B B B A 7
(note 44) (Hft 5 44) - - 20,473 20,473
Disposals finf=5 = (1,282) = (1,282)
As at 31 December 2019 2019412 A31H 1,913 = 20,473 22,386

Trading Club
rights membership Goodwill Total
RZHE efes (GRS et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
THET THET THET THER

Net carrying amounts REDFE

As at 1 January 2020 72020F1A1H 1,913 - 20,473 22,386
Additions NE 500 - - 500
As at 31 December 2020 7202012 4318 2,413 - 20,473 22,886

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had three trading rights
in the Stock Exchange and one trading right in The Hong Kong Futures
Exchange Limited. The intangible assets are not amortised for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 as they have no expiry date.
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B %5 k3 Bt &E
31 December 2020
20204124318

13. Goodwill and other intangible assets (coninveq) 13. BHER Htt B & E o)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to the
Vietnam Investment Securities Company ("IVS") cash-generating unit
for impairment testing. The recoverable amount of IVS has been
determined based on the value-in-use calculation using cash flow
projections covering a five-year period approved by the management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 11% (2019:
119%) which is determined based on the past business performance,
the management's expectation of the market development and future
business plan. The discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to
IVS and have taken into account of the risk of business uncertainties

in the foreseeable future.

14. Other assets

Basic contribution of the guarantee fund
paid to Hong Kong Securities Clearing

XNFERETRREESR
Rar(&E&E]D

14.

EESNERER:ES
BBEBAHESNBEESES
MrEREBEERMDAR(IVS]))IR
CELEBEMNARBERR - VST
KESBEHERFEREETEE
BB ERATEERELZ
MERFHBESREN - BHER
&R P FB BE 38 & A11% (20194F :
11%)  EERBEEBRE
EEEHMBREBHRARRSE
EEET - TABIRERERIVS
HEETERR  EFEFkAR
RIRAETS T TR -

Hitbt&E&E

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAB T

HK$'000
TRERT

Company Limited ("HKSCC") I (ReE R & HE AR 867 690
Deposits with Stock Exchange: REEZ P IR &

— Compensation fund —fHEES 150 150

— Fidelity fund —HERES 150 150

— Stamp duty deposit —HEHRRE 500 500
Admission fee paid to HKSCC XNTERBEENEAN

& 150 150
Reserve fund with The SEHK Options Clearing 7 & /BBt & 2 5 P #
House Limited REARARMNHE
& 3,387 1,927
Settlement Risk Fund paid to the Shanghai X FLBESX A

Stock Exchange MEERRES 238 223
Deposit with HKFE Clearing Corporation REBPRELEERRA

Limited AR & 3,000 1,500
Funds deposited with the Securities and REFLHEERER

Futures Commission ZEENRS - 50
License deposit with the Monetary Authority R ¥FTIIE SR EIEBH

of Singapore & RIR & 586 578
Statutory deposit with Hanoi Stock RO N 38 25 32 5 P &

Exchange TE 7 K 2,585 2,402
Interest receivables of bank deposits R 1T 17 SR WA B - 52
Other prepayments H {78 4 5 IE - 154

11,613 8,526

The carrying amounts of the Group's other assets approximate to their

fair values.
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31 December 2020

2020%F12 A31H

15. Deferred tax 15. IEJE 18
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FREEHBEEBEZ N
are as follows: T

Losses available
for offsetting

Accelerated tax  against future Share-based
depreciation taxable profits Fair value loss  compensation ECL allowance
A48 8
RRBERF UR R RAER
MEHERE WER ATERRE EROFMH BARAE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAT THT TATL TATL TAT
At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A18 (5,552) 12,253 21,151 4680 97,275 129,807
Deferred tax credited/(charged) ~ REBZEFTA /(1K)
to profit or loss EEHE 1,873 50,378 (66,50) (460) 149,792 135,080
At 31 December 2019 and at #2019 124318 |k
1 January 2020 2020517418 (3,679) 62,631 (45,352) 4,220 247,067 264,887
Deferred tax credited/(charged) R EZFTA /(1)
to profit or loss EEHE (3.443) 1776 115113 721)  (242660)  (131,935)
At 31 December 2020 7#2020%12A31R (7122 64,407 69,761 1,499 4,407 132,952
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a EBEEEENAIAASRATIEE
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current BN AR 1A B K H ROR AT
tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same SR RE—BHEEER - AT
taxation authority. The deferred income tax assets and liabilities are BELCHSEHEERBELRE
to be utilised and settled after one year and the following amounts, HeoREMGHEERBERR
determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in the consolidated —FRTUHAREE @ 7
statement of financial position. EtANEEREEEEN A

EHREMBIRAERAINE

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FH& T

Deferred tax assets RIAETIBE E 150,880 267,316
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFTE B FE (17,.928) (2,429)
132,952 264,887
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20204124318

15. Deferred tax (continued) 15. E#E I8 ()

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2.3, the
Group has recognised deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax
losses of HK$390.3 million (2019: 379.6 million) as it is probable that
future taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised will be
available in the relevant jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses do not
expire under the current tax legislation.

16. Loans and advances to customers

RIEM F23FTH S ATBUER - A&
Bt 25 HE A 1839038 &8 T
(20194F : 379.6 8 8% 7T) R &
EFREEE  =RMEBREER
N B B8 T 88 A K 2K FE SR Bl 0w FI K
HZEBE BEEAHE
BREIEI R B -

6. ETFEFNERKER

2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHE T THE T

Non-current EME
Term loans to customers BTEFPHNEHER - 948,000
Less: Loss allowance B BB - (479)
- 947,521

Current B

Margin loans HFREX 15,522,931 11,719,143
Term loans to customers BTEPHNEHER 488,418 532,480
IPO Loans BAARAEEER 1,429,100 =
Less: Loss allowance T 1 B (1,836,205) (1,483,242)
15,604,244 10,768,381
15,604,244 11,715,902

Loans and advances are categorised into "excellent”, "good", “fair" and
“individually impaired". Excellent refers to exposures which margin
obligation are consistently met and the payment of principal and
interest is not in doubt, collaterals provided are highly liquid and of
good quality. Good refers to exposures which principal and interest are
fully secured but collaterals provided are at a relatively lower quality
where shortfall may be recorded when there is a significant drop in
collateral value. Fair refers to exposures which principal and interest
are fully secured but the quality of the collateral is deteriorating,
shortfall would be expected when the collateral value continues to
deteriorate. Individually impaired refers to exposures which loss, partial
or full, has incurred and with insufficient collateral.

ERXRRBROBRIMES] R
- TEBIRMERBE] BF
BERETHRAEEREEZ A
ENRYEREE - BREHEMNEM
mEARRBENRFmEHE
R o RIFEASMAE 2 A K
HERKNERREEREERIE
B#EAmEEKIE T A A 8%
SRENRER - EBEAEMF
E2HEERERANREELR
gz AERMREERAETKRE
FEHERSRBENRER o #5RRE
KEEAR I XBHEELER
MR mA R -
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2020412 A31H

16. @ TEFNERKRZR
(&)

16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

EAEBRNFEETHARFTFRD
FHR12A3BMEmARE DT

Analysis of the gross carrying amount as at 31 December by the
Group's internal credit rating and year end classification:

2020 2020F
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-month  not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
REERE CEERE
NREAFEH WEZHEH HNEHEH
BERABX BERABX BERABX 5t
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(E—MER) (E-BER) (B=ER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade A B 5 & THET THERT TET FHE T
Performing FE
Excellent = 14,598,692 - — 14,598,692
Good R 4f 698,159 - - 698,159
Fair S - - - -
Non-performing TR
Individually impaired (ERIDEAE - - 2,143,598 2,143,598
15,296,851 — 2,143,598 17,440,449
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31 December 2020
20204F12A31H

16. Loans and advances to customers (continved) 16. 8 TEFNERKEBERK
(&)
2019 20194

Lifetime ECL Lifetime

12-month not credit- ECL credit-

ECL impaired impaired

RAIEERE BEERE

128 BTEE MEHITEH M2 Hi78 B

EA1BEX EA1BEX EA1BEX

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)

(B—FEE) (B-RE) (FE=ZFB8)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal rating grade A B AT AR FHE T FHE T FHE T FAET

Performing e
Excellent B 10,413,958 — — 10,413,958
Good RF - - - -
Fair LA 715,272 — — 715,272
Non-performing R

Individually impaired (ERIVERED - - 2,070,393 2,070,393
11,129,230 — 2070393 13,199,623
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31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

16. @ TEFNERKRZR
(&)

16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

FREAERBREERE KR

Analysis of the gross carrying amount and the corresponding ECL

allowance is as follows:

BofmmE:

Lifetime ECL

not credit- Lifetime ECL

12-month ECL impaired  credit-impaired

*EERE EREERE

REARE W2HESH ©2HEH
EREX EREX EREX @i

(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)

(E-BR) (EFZER) (FZER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET THT TAET FTAET

Gross carrying amount as at 201951 A1H /)

1 January 2019 FERE 11,695,838 - 1,154,703 12,850,541
Acquisition of a subsidiary W B — R KT B A Al 49,379 = = 49379
New assets originated, purchased or BEA BBENHEE

assets transferred REEEMNEE 5,080,313 = 22,195 5,102,508
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIEBARBEEN

BE (4,728,502) - (74,303 (4,802,805)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HE-BREAZE

FoEER (967,798) - 967,798 -
Gross carrying amount as at 12019512 A318 &

31 December 2019 and as at 7202041 A 1R &

1 January 2020 FERE 11,129,230 - 2,070,393 13,199,623
New assets originated, purchased or BEA BBEENHEE

assets transferred IEBENEE 8,721,335 - 23,958 8,745,293
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIEBARBEEN

BE (4,407,906) - (96,561)  (4,504,467)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 HE-KEREAZE
FoRER (145,808) - 145,808 -
Gross carrying amount as at 1202012 A318 &)
31 December 2020 REZE 15,296,851 - 2,143,598 17,440,449
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/l\l:l %ﬂ}gmg &:&a’i
(ééf)

16. Loans and advances to customers (continued)

RMTEPHNERRBREBRER
BANBEBEHNOT:

The movements in the ECL allowance on loans and advances to
customers are as follows:

Lifetime ECL
12-month not credit- Lifetime ECL
ECL impaired  credit-impaired
XEERE BEERE
MEHES HN2HEH
fERBX
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F—RE) (BZBR) (B=RR)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT TAET TAET THT

1218 AR H

EREX EREX

ECL allowance as at F2019F1F 18 #) 78 5
1 January 2019 ERBAES (13,316) - (561,850) (575,166)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — R B AR (25) - - (25)
New assets originated or purchased EEANEEENTEAE (159) - - (159)
Assets derecognised or repaid ERERAKBEEN
EF 437 - - 437
Changes to risk parameters BR2EEE 1,598 = (308,543) (306,945)
Transfer from stage 1 to stage 3 E% BREAZ
ﬂa B’ 4,272 - (4,272) -
Changes arising from transfer ﬁﬁ@%%ﬁ%ﬁx ok
of stage = = (601,863) (601,863)
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2019 20194124318 |k
and 1 January 2020 2020F 1188
HHERBAER (7.193) - (1.476,528)  (1,483,721)
New assets originated or purchased EEAREBENTEE (715) - - (715)
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIEERXDEED
BE 138 - 1 139
Changes to risk parameters RB2EEE 4,793 - (356,701)  (351,908)
ECL allowance as at 202012 A31H &9
31 December 2020 HHERBXEE (2,977) - (1,833,228) (1,836,205)

The contractual amount outstanding on loans and advances to
customers have been written off but were still subject to enforcement
activity was nil at 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).

MR20204F12 8318 © 2 M 85 B 1)
/,\LTT@%'J#L/f TG TER
KB & HHREEENLE
2%%(2019&2)
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31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

16.

210

Loans and advances to customers (continued)

Margin financing operations

The Group provides customers with margin financing for securities
transactions, which are secured by customers' securities held as
collateral. The maximum credit limit granted for each customer is
based on the customer's financial background and the quality of
related collateral. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over
its outstanding receivables and has a credit and risk management
department to monitor credit risks.

Margin loans to the customers are secured by the underlying pledged
securities, bear interest at a rate with reference to the Hong Kong
dollar prime rate and the quality of collateral pledged by customers, are
repayable on demand. The carrying value of margin loans approximates
to their fair value. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion
of the directors, an ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the nature of the margin loans business. The amount of credit
facilities granted to margin clients is determined by the discounted
market value of the collateral securities accepted by the Group. As at
31 December 2020, the total value of securities pledged as collateral
in respect of the margin loans was approximately HK$48,183 million
(2019: HK$33,519 million) based on the market value of the securities
as at the end of the reporting period.

Term loans to customers

The Group also provides term loans to customers. In determining
the interest rates, reference is made to the credit standing of the
relevant customers and the quality and value of the collateral pledged.
The term loans granted to customers amounted to HK$456,128,000
(2019: HK$1,444,038,000), and the accrued interest amounted to
HK$32,290,000 (2019: HK$36,442,000) as at 31 December 2020. The
carrying amounts of the term loans to customers approximate to their
fair values.
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31 December 2020

20204124318
17. Loans to directors 17. ®TESENER
Loans to directors, disclosed pursuant to section 383(1)(d) of the Hong BB HR SR EE 5 5383(1)(d) 1§ &
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 3 of the Companies (Disclosure RA(BBEEZENZERROIE
of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows: 3HBE AEBL TESENER
BEMT:
Maximum Maximum
amount At 31 amount
At 31 outstanding December outstanding At
December during the 2019 and 1 during the 1 January
2020 year  January 2020 prior year 2019 Collateral held
1#2019%
12A318
B20206  FRAREX R2020% #EFARER  R2019%
12A31H BESHE 1418 HESH 1818 BRERR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THL THT THT THT
Mr. LI Guangjie 525 9,726 - 5,529 —  Marketable securities
FANELE BEEH
Ms. QI Haiying - 6,153 - - - Marketable securities
Mg+ BEZES
Mr. WONG Tung Ching - 3,029 - 993 253 Marketable securities
TAERE BEEH
The loans granted to directors bear interest range from Hong Kong RTEENERDEASTRER
dollar prime rate +/-3% per annum depending on risk assessment on FEm O FEFINEE - RTEH
collateral received and the facilities were granted to the directors for ERERGHRRTEDE &
a period of 3 years ended on 31 December 2020 and renewed for a RTEEcmELH  BE<H
period of 3 months ending on 31 March 2021. B £2020F12 A31H IEFE & H3

FREZE2021F3A83MBIEFEE
BE3ME AER -
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31 December 2020

2020512 A31H

18. Accounts receivable 18. B 1E
The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of REBEEBBEPMEEDNEWR
business of the Group are as follows: RENEmEQNT

2020 2019
20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Accounts receivable arising from brokerage A% 40 2 75 & Ut 318

- cash and custodian clients - BekTERF 110,705 40,374
- the Stock Exchange and other — B P % E A S

clearing houses AT 1,642,743 1,366,064
- brokers and dealers - BERRS5HE 2,800,396 2,371,854

Accounts receivable arising from insurance R &5 42 AR 75 & Uk 0B
brokerage services
- cash and custodian clients -BHeakTAERP 5 114

Accounts receivable arising from securities 55 3 & B % 75 fE U 2B
borrowing and lending

- brokers and dealers - RBRERRFH 720,545 72,889

Accounts receivable arising from corporate ¥R E - BEEE -

finance, asset management, financial ERE®  Mmk
products, market making and investments & ¥ 7% e W IR
- corporate clients, investment funds - rERF KA
and others Ee KHEM 371,455 307,300
5,645,849 4,158,595
Less: Loss allowance B B R B (7,052) (7,574)
5,638,797 4,151,021
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31 December 2020

20204F12A31H

18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. FEW R IE (#)
The movements in the loss allowance on accounts receivable are as R RIEEERZEEGEES W T
follows:

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

THER FAETT

At 1 January M1A1R 7,574 5,625

Loss allowance charged to profit or loss FANFFAERNEE

during the year B 1,177 5,579

Loss allowance reversed during the year F AR R EEEE (1,699) (3,630)
At 31 December 12 H318 7,052 7,574
The contractual amount outstanding on accounts receivable have been 20205128318 - E M B 1D
written off but were still subject to enforcement activity was nil at 31 78 HE 17 98 i 30K 1T B) A9 FE UK
December 2020 (2019: nil). HAEBENEERZ(2019F :

) o
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31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

18. Accounts receivable (continued)

The carrying values of accounts receivable arising from the course of

business of the Group are as follows:

31 December 2020

18. FEURFRIE ()

RBENREERAT :

202012 A31H

AEBEBGBRETAEENRER

Accounts
receivable
Accounts from the
receivable Stock
from cash Exchange and

and custodian other clearing
clients

houses
BRAR
Hit 4 &R
FE W 78
HK$'000
TER

RERTAE
BFEWRHE
HK$'000
TET

Accounts
receivable
from brokers
and dealers
REE
EWHRE
HK$'000
THERT

HAt fE KK IR

Accounts
receivable
from
corporate Accounts
clients, receivable
investment from
funds and insurance
others brokerage
tEEF RE
FE W 78 @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR

HK$'000
TET

Gross carrying amount BEREE 110,705 1,642,743 3,520,941 371,455 5 5,645,849
Less: loss allowance B EEEE

— Stage 1 - F—RE (55) (821) (1,312) N/A FER - (2,188)

— Stage 2 - BZRBE )] - - NATER - 2

— Stage 3 - F=HER (371) - - NAFEH - (371)

— Simplified approach - 5% N/ARER NAFEHB NATER (4,491) N/A FEH (4,491)

110,277 1,641,922 3,519,629 366,964 5 5,638,797
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18. Accounts receivable (continued)

31 December 2019

Accounts

Accounts receivable

receivable from the Stock
Exchange and
other clearing

from cash
and custodian
houses
B BT R
HitEEPE
YR
HK$'000
FTET

clients
Bek
TEER
e R
HK$'000
TET

18.

Accounts
receivable
from brokers
and dealers
&
R 5
e 3R
HK$'000
THET

FE U FRIE ()

2019124311

Accounts
receivable
from corporate
clients,
investment

Accounts
receivable
funds and from insurance
others OIEENS
TtEER R
H i fE 4 R IE e R @it
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TEL TEX

Gross carrying amount BEREE 40,374 1,366,064 2,444,743 307,300 114 4,158,595
Less: Loss allowance B ERES

— Stage 1 - K& (20) (668) (2126) N/A T & F - (2,814)

— Stage 2 - FBE - - - NATER - -

— Stage 3 - F-KER (183) = - NAT@ERB - (183)

— Simplified approach - E5% NATER NATER NATEH 4577) NATER (4577)

40171 1,365,396 2442617 302,723 114 4,151,021

Accounts receivable from cash and custodian clients

represent

unsettled client trades on various securities exchanges transacted on
the last two to three business days prior to the end of the reporting
year. When the cash and custodian clients fail to settle on the
settlement date, the Group has the rights to force-sell the collateral
underlying the securities transactions. The collateral held against these
receivables is publicly traded securities. The loss allowance is made
after taking into consideration the recoverability from the collateral.
No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an
ageing analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature
of these accounts receivable.

el EEPNEKKIARE
EREFERZANKEME =
BEILERBRENRRZE SRS ME
THARGBEEPRPXRS - —BHE
ERERPARERBERENK
A ARBEEBRFLEESFR
ZHEBNERD - stHZFRK
REAFKEANEFRRRAARSE
o BRBBEZEERGROA
WEEREL - BEFERR BR
ZERUGRIENIEE RO
TEmRBIMEE  BWAKEML
{a] B e 2 AFT

AREEREEEREBAT202058H 215
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18. EW R E ()

EER S REEE P RN KE
ZREFEEANNT

18. Accounts receivable (continued)

Analysis of the gross carrying amount of accounts receivable arising
from brokerage of cash and custodian clients are as follows:

216

Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-months  not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
AEERE BEERE
REAES WE2HES NE2HED
ER\EX ERBEX EREX
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (SEL)
(F—WBR) (E=BR) (F=ER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET TAT TAT
Gross carrying amount as at 201951 A1H &Y
1 January 2019 BIRHEE 21,809 11,514 180 33,503
New assets originated, purchased or B E4 CEEWNHE
assets transferred ESJEEENEE 40,153 = 44 40,197
Assets derecognised or repaid BRIEERASEER
K& E (21,809) (11,514) (3) (33,326)
Gross carrying amount as at 2019412 A318 &
31 December 2019 and as at 720201 A1B #)
1 January 2020 BEEE 40,153 - 221 40,374
New assets originated, purchased or B E4£ - EBENHE
assets transferred ERCEENEE 109,818 7 58 109,883
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIERAEEE
HEE (39,552) - - (39,552)
Transfer of stages 5 B B (96) 4 92 -
Gross carrying amount as at 2020512 A31B &
31 December 2020 R (B 110,323 11 37 110,705
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18. EW R E(2)

RERAERAEEEPHE KA
MEMERBRRERRGEESH

18. Accounts receivable (continued)

The movements in the ECL loss allowance of accounts receivable arising
from brokerage of cash and custodian clients are as follows:

P
Lifetime ECL Lifetime
12-months  not credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired
AEERE EEERE
REAEH MWE2HEH N2HES
EREX EREX ERE%
(Stage 1) (Stage 2) (Stage 3)
(F-KR) (F-HR) (F=ER)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FHET
ECL allowance as at 1 January 2019 720191818 &
RHERBREE (11) (3,109) (133) (3,253)
New assets originated or purchased EELXEBEM
MAEE (20) = = (20)
Assets derecognised or repaid BRIEBERLEERER
MEE 12 2,979 3 2,994
Changes to risk parameters RB2HEH - - (34) (34)
Transfer of stages B 75 B EY (129) 130 (1) =
Changes arising from transfer BRREBERENES
of stage 128 — (18) 110
ECL allowance as at 31 December 2019612 H318 &
2019 and 1 January 2020 20201 A1H /Y
EHERBRERE (20) - (183) (203)
New assets originated or purchased EE4HEBEH
MEE (46) )] (122) (170)
Assets derecognised or repaid ERIEBERAIEER
W& E 20 - 1 21
Changes to risk parameters REr282% (9) — (67) (76)
ECL allowance as at 2020912 A318 &)
31 December 2020 EHERBLER (55) (2) (371) (428)
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18.

218

Accounts receivable (continued)

For accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and other clearing
houses, brokers and dealers, and insurance brokerage, no ageing
analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors, an ageing
analysis does not give additional value in view of the nature of these
accounts receivable. None of the transfer of impairment to different
stages were made during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment holding
and market making which have not yet been settled by clients after
the Group's normal credit period. The credit rating and reputation of
the trade counterparties were considered as sound for the past due
accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds.

The ageing analysis of relevant trade receivables at the date of
consolidated statement of financial position based on past due date
is as follows:

18. EW R E ()

HRBRXAREMEER &
4 K R 578 DA R AR B 48 42 |9 JE IR
HIEB EERE ARZEFREK
HIEMED  RERSMTIEHR
FOIMEE - BRE BE(AEREK »
Hr o A £20204F 2019412 8
SIHEFE  BMESREERE
B

EPRASE-—REEHRER
BENCERPREREESNE
WHRE(EEBEEERE  bER
B REEREMT) HREE
EFEREEESHNE A B E WK
B XHHEFHINEETRRE
BRERBRE °

R &R A M AR N & B 2R 1% 8 58
AEfEREE W B SR B ERE D
i N

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000

FAT

HK$'000
TERx

Not yet past due ) AN 180 HA 346,409 283,522
Past due less than 1 month B Hl— & A A A 3,017 3,968
Past due between 1 to 3 months wmE—= =& A 18,104 12,024
Past due over 3 months wmHE =AM E 3,925 7,786
Total HEt 371,455 307,300

Accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment funds
arising from asset management, corporate finance, investment holding
and market making using a provision matrix under simplified approach.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by geographical
region, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters
of credit or other forms of credit insurance). The calculation reflects the
probability-weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off if past due for
more than one year and are not subject to enforcement activity.
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18. Accounts receivable (continued) 18. EUWL R IE (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the UTRERBEREEBTENE M
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: AEBEKRESGRBAZEERR
B#
2020 20204

Gross carrying
amount ECL Total
AH

A AREE FEREX o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET

Not pass due i8] 7 #60 A 346,409 (78) 346,331

Past due less than 1 month B — @ B LA A 3,017 (18) 2,999

Past due between 1 to 3 months mH—Z= =4 18,104 (3.621) 14,483

Past due over 3 months BmEI={E AN £ 3,925 (774) 3,151

Total BEt 371,455 (4,491) 366,964
2019 20194

Gross carrying

amount ECL Total
8 Hf

REEHE (A EREX BET

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FA T FA T

Not pass due = 7K 780 HA 283,522 (42) 283,480
Past due less than 1 month # B — & A LA 3,968 (24) 3,944
Past due between 1 to 3 months mE—=={@A 12,024 (2,409) 9,615
Past due over 3 months BEI={E AN £ 7,786 (2,102) 5,684
Total HEt 307,300 (4,577) 302,723
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19. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 19. JE{4IE + ZE& R HME

W 5K 18

2020 2019

2020% 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

Prepayments and deposits TENKIERIE® 129,302 237,964

Interest receivables & U 7 B 14,442 31,835

143,744 269,799
None of the above assets is either past due or credit-impaired. The tEEREBRBRTILEEGEE
financial assets included in the above balances relate to receivables WA FTALMAEHRN SR EE
for which there was no recent history of default. R H B AR E B A
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20. Financial assets at fair value 20.

BAVEFENEREE

Non-current
Financial assets held for trading and
investments

FRE
RERERRENESREE

2020
20205

HK$'000
TRER

2019
20194
HK$'000
FTAT

— Unlisted fixed income securities - FETEEREEFH 5,878,878 1,594,507

— Unlisted convertible securities - EEMARRKRES 195,758 =

— Unlisted equity securities - EETIREE 5 730,985 -
Financial assets at fair value through RATEFAEGNEREE

profit or loss

— Financial products (note (b)) — & &b o (Ff 52 (b)) 10,170,940 6,267,785

__________________________________________________________________________ 16,976,561 7,862,292___

Current Vi)
Financial assets held for trading and RIEEERRENCREE

investments

— Listed equity securities - FTRAES 1,439,070 710,798

— Listed debt securities - ITEBES 15,683,053 14,065,739

— Unlisted debt securities - LEMEKES 5,261,345 2,493,982
Financial assets at fair value through BATEFARRD

profit or loss TREE

— Listed fund investments - tTESKRE - 2,783

— Unlisted fund investments (note (a)) —-FELEMESKE

(Pif 5% (a) 1,986,769 1,758,316

— Unlisted convertible promissory note - FEmABRALER = 4,298

— Other financial instruments - HEemT A 225,618 250,731

— Financial products (note (b)) — @@ 2 an (M 3 () 29,341,149 31,842,259

__________________________________________________________________________ 53,937,004 51,128,906___

Total financial assets at fair value through ~ RAFEFAEZHN SR

profit or loss BERE 70,913,565 58,991,198
Current e
Financial assets held for investments RERENESREE

— Unlisted debt securities - FLETEBESR 105,574 =
Total financial assets at fair value through  RAFEFFA E b2 K H

other comprehensive income TREERR 105,574 -

B2 B 2 B R R IR A A « 20205
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20. Financial assets at fair value (continuead)

222

Notes:

The Group invested in unconsolidated investment funds for capital
appreciation and investment income. The interests held by the Group are
in the form of participating shares which provide the Group with the share
of returns from the investment funds, but not any decision making power
nor any voting right. Given that the Group only held the beneficial interests
without holding any voting right or substantial decision making power as
principal, these investments are classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss.

The financial products invested by the Group included listed equity
investments, listed debt investments, unlisted fund investments, unlisted
equity investments and derivatives. As at 31 December 2020, cash
collateral of HK$257.8 million (2019: HK$402.5 million) and securities
collateral of HK$1,541.6 million (2019: HK$327.8 million) were placed to the
counterparties.

Financial assets are categorised as “financial products" when it is acquired
by the Group for the primary purpose of meeting customers' investment
needs and used as hedging instruments for structured notes issued under
the MTN Programme (note 27), financial liabilities (note 28) or derivative
instruments acquired by customers (note 21). As a result, the variable return
of these financial products and the financial liabilities in relation to these
financial products is not significant.
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21. Derivative financial instruments 21. fTE€@mMIT A
The table below shows the fair values of derivative financial TREICHREESBENIT
instruments recorded as assets or liabilities together with their notional SeMTANAFEERERE
amounts. The notional amount, recorded gross, is the amount of a SR TN BESBARS
derivative's underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis METEEBEE 2 EEXN
upon which changes in the value of the derivative are measured. The EHMeE YAITETLARERA
notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at FEERMNEE ZXRESERHA
the year end and are indicative of neither the market risk nor the credit RERREKIXF5E ' BT
risk. miZARITIEEERBRAER
Fair value
AFEE
Notional
amount Assets Liabilities
EHLHE BE =R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FTER THER
As at 31 December 2020 2020512 A31H
Interest rate swaps F 2 15 HA 10,802,665 - (243,724)
Foreign exchange forwards = HHNE 15,291,713 804,233 (183,971)
Index futures EHHE 376,828 - (10,196)
Options HA 1 4,291,752 204,316 (75,790)
Currency options B 232,584 8,009 -
Warrants & i 6,863,428 - (205,239)
Callable bull/bear contracts HREFE 21,953 - (1,179)
Equity swaps P& 4 = Hf 3,182,947 134,046 (110,756)
Other equity derivatives HMBRATETA 1,405,914 110,750 (31,574)

42,469,784 1,261,354 (862,429)

AREEREEEREBAT 2005H 223



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 B 5

31 December 2020
2020412 A31H

21.
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Derivative financial instruments (continued)

21.

Notional

=
HK$'000
TAET

amount
BT

fTEEmI A

Fair value

AFE

Assets Liabilities
B E =K
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT

As at 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H
Cross currency swaps R X & s 5 385,158 = (7,835)
Interest rate swaps H) 2 45 HY 8,705,703 7,058 (24,488)
Foreign exchange forwards = Hf AN FE 10,876,458 86,817 (58,448)
Index futures BE8HE 259,072 = (735)
Options HA 1,097,155 41,042 (16,902)
Currency options & HA 233,670 1,593 =
Warrants = i 497,671 - (28,188)
Dividend swaps A& S 1 HA 42,000 - (485)
Credit default swaps = EE 4R 934,680 5,523 (276)
Other equity derivatives HMBRATETLAR 881,597 13,619 (12,494)
23,913,164 155,652 (149,851)

The Group entered into International Swaps and Derivatives
Association, Inc. ("ISDA") master netting agreements or similar
agreements with substantially all of its derivative counterparties.
Where legally enforceable, these master netting agreements give the
Group the right to offset cash collateral paid or received with the same
counterparty. As at 31 December 2020, amounts of cash collateral of
HK$422.9 million and HK$1,086.7 million were paid to and received
from respective counterparties (2019: HK$78.4 million and HK$84.9
million), which are included in "accounts receivable and accounts
payable arising from brokerage — brokers and dealers" in notes 18 and
24 to the financial statements respectively.
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22. Receivable from
agreements

reverse repurchase

The receivable from reverse repurchase agreements arises when the
securities are bought by the Group with a concurrent agreement to
resell at a specified later date and price. These securities are not
recognised in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position
as the counterparty retains substantially all risks and returns of the
securities. The amount paid by the Group is recognised as receivable.
In the event of default by the counterparty, the Group has the right
to sell the underlying securities for settling the outstanding receivable.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amount paid for the
reverse repurchase agreements was HK$3,022,800,000 (2019:
HK$2,247,913,000) and was recognised as receivable from reverse
repurchase agreements.

The fair value of financial liabilities held for trading received as
collateral for the outstanding receivable at the year-end was
HK$3,506,175,000 (2019: HK$3,539,078,000).

23. Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents

and client trust bank balances

3 B
1777 5

Non-current
Bank deposits

22.

23.

J 18] = B8 165 =% FE WK K O0R

[ 17) [B] B8 19 7 2 FE M R TR AN 5=
BREESFREL  EXRKFR
VY-EmEAREEERAR R
BEREBE ZEIFLERNAE
BERAMBARNKTER  RE
ERHTREBZFEZFHB A
palcl YN EEE N S R R VPN
HERBEWHIE - MR HTE
W AEEERLERBERESN
EERBBNRYFE -

=l

MR2020512A318 © % & [ M@
BWaXTOREBERES
3,022,800,000/%%  JT (20194 :

2,247913,000/8 7T) ' WHER AKX
) (o] B 19 o FE UR ZROOE o

REREWEIERKESEK
HERHERNBFEESRA
& B A F & 4&3,506,175,0007% 7T
(20194 : 3,539,078,000/& JT) °

ROED RERBAEE
BYRkEFERRITHELR

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
FER

= 66,440

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA T
Current Vi)

Cash and bank balances R & KIRTT 4 8 5,178,802 5,857,542
Time deposits E B FE & 329,977 1,293,305

— with original maturity of less than three —REBALR
months =1{& A 79,286 1,096,348

— with original maturity of more than —REERE A
three months =1{& A 250,691 196,957
Total cash and cash equivalents BehIReEBYWER 5,508,779 7.150,847
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23.
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Bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents
and client trust bank balances (ontinueq)

Bank deposits denominated in:

Vietnam Dollar (“VND") MEE(EERE]D

BRATERBEHERRITER

23. RITEH RERRESE
BYREFERRITER

(%)

2020 2019
20204

20194
HK$'000
FH& T

HK$'000
FRERT

- 66,440

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000

FA T

HK$'000
TRERT

Cash and cash equivalents RUATEKEFENEREE R

denominated in: HeEEY:

HK$ B IT 1,505,453 1,910,007

us$ = 3,623,042 4,838,350

RMB AR 195,765 284,762

VND M E 115,031 91,640

Others H 69,488 26,088
5,508,779 7,150,847

Non-current deposits were made for 13 months depending on the cash
requirements of the Group, and earned interest at the respective time
deposit rates. The balances were deposited with creditworthy banks
with no history of default.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between
one day and six months depending on the cash requirements of the
Group, and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no history of
default.

As at 31 December 2020, the ECL allowance of bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents amounted to HK$260,000 (2019: HK$1,024,000)
and client trust bank balances amounted to HK$12,825,000 (2019:
HK$1,727,000), respectively. All of them are classified as Stage 1 under
the ECL model and there was no transfer to/from the other stages.
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24. Accounts payable 24. BT FRIE

2020 2019
20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Accounts payable arising from brokerage £ 42 % 7% JE 1~ FUB

— clients -%P 17,961,145 11,611,433
— brokers and dealers - Bk RF5E 2,652,515 926,467
— the Stock Exchange and other — BT R A Ath A5 E AT

clearing houses 1,365,299 745,612

Accounts payable arising from securities & 5 f& & 3£ 75 JE {4 50 1B

borrowing and lending 17,299 519,380
Accounts payable arising from corporate %@ E - BEEE -

finance, asset management, financial SRESR MW ?xé

products, market making, investments o H th 2 75 & ~F 3k

and others 785,658 782,358

Accounts payable arising from insurance R & 4% 42 AR 75 F& 1+ 3B

brokerage services 1,316 2,122
22,783,232 14,587,372
The majority of the accounts payable are repayable on demand except RO ENFIEBNRERKEER
for certain accounts payable to clients which represent margin deposits EETENTEPAREBEARE
received from clients for their trading activities in the normal course of FRIE® %ﬁ&ﬂkqﬂiﬁﬁiﬁgé
business. Only the excess amounts over the required margin deposits BWEE P E’M B EERIN °
stipulated are repayable on demand. 8 AR E R R /i\migﬁ/,\fif\x/\
REERP o
The Group has a practice to satisfy all the requests for payment within AEEBERE—EZEXBAEE
one business day. No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion FrERSRENRK - ZFE £ 7
of the directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in AR B D AT ﬁlﬁi%%)’% 2 #Z
view of the nature of these businesses. ﬁii%fi’] ME  BRREEESTA
SIRME QI\EE
Accounts payable to clients also include those payables in trust FE T P B IB TR BHE 5 Bl 17 B
accounts with authorised institutions of HK$18,707 million (2019: RARAKEETR/®187078 &
HK$11,182 million), Hong Kong Futures Exchange Clearing Corporation 7 70 (20194 : M182B B B T) -
Limited and other futures dealers of HK$224 million (2019: HK$284 EREBEEEARAR R EMEB
million). BERSEMN2248 8% (20194 ¢

2848 & B L) B FRIE
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24. Accounts payable (continued) 24. B FRIE (%)
Accounts payable arising from insurance brokerage services include RESLERBENFKIEBRE

RAUKBEITRPNENRE
1,316,000/ 7T (20194F : 2,122,000
BIT) o RIENE P RIAIN - B
RIEHER

HBEAREAK BT ARG

those payables in trust accounts with authorised institutions of
HK$1,316,000 (2019: HK$2,122,000). Accounts payable are non-
interest-bearing, except for the accounts payable to clients.

25. Other payables and accrued liabilities 25.

26. Interest bearing borrowings

228

2020
20204

HK$'000
TER

2019
20194
HK$'000
TAET

Other payables E b FRIA 9,697 21,283
Accrued liabilities i RE 921,104 562,843
930,801 584,126

Other payables and accrued liabilities are non-interest-bearing and

have an average term of three months.

HoAh A R IR & AT BB B AT
B FAHRAB=M@A -

26. ST EER

2020
20205

HK$'000
FH T

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

Non-current: EMB
Lease liabilities HEARE 6,557 23,368
Current: VLI
Lease liabilities HEBE 17,004 25,403
Unsecured bank borrowings AR IR IR 1T B K 9,715,836 7,711,110
Secured bank borrowings BHEMFETER - 3,490,000
9,732,840 11,226,513
Total interest bearing borrowings STEERAARE 9,739,397 11,249,881
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26. Interest bearing borrowings (continued) 26. stEB K@)
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FAETT
Denominated in: BT B E R E:
HK$ BT 3,960,621 3,533,730
US$ ETT 5,775,836 771,110
Other currencies Hih g 2,940 5,041
9,739,397 11,249,881
The Group's bank borrowings bear interest at the Interbank Offered REBRITERIGRRITRER
Rate plus an interest spread. BB ZEEE -
The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings approximate to their fair BRMRNZETAIBEXR K
values as the impact on discounting is not significant. ZERTERNREEEERQF
BHEE -
The Group's lease liabilities bear weighted average interest rate at AEBHHEHESGHMNEFS
4.23% per annum (2019: 4.23% per annum). F A X 54.230 (20195 : F F =
4.23%) °
The secured bank borrowings at 31 December 2019 of HK$3,490 2019512 A318 » HIEHEITE
million were secured by listed shares, which were held by the Group NAE3490B EB T Ty £k
as collateral for advances to customers in margin financing, of market MIEEHR  ZERMBREEF
value of HK$6,239.5 million. BERAR THRERBERZEFEIRM
Mo MEZTRE6239588E
7TE o
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27. Debt securities in issue

27. ERTEBES

2020
20205

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT

HK$'000
FHE T

Non-current ERB
At amortised cost (note(a)): 2 8 58 AN (BT 7 (a)
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE b i 4 4R HR AR HE 2R 4R 1,549,563 1,555,874
Designated at fair value through profit EEEAFEFAEZ
or loss (note (b)): (Pt 5E (b)) -
Structured notes issued in relation to EEITHESHEM
financial products HEZ EBLERE 10,293,530 6,124,020
11,843,093 7,679,894
Current Vi)
At amortised cost (note(a)): 2 8 58 AN (BT 7 (a)
Unlisted unsecured medium-term notes JE b AR I AR H 2R 4R 13,798,151 5,128,330
Designated at fair value through profit EERATFEFAER
or loss (note (b)): (Pt 3£ (b)) -
Structured notes issued in relation to EEITHESREM
financial products HEZ EBLERE 22,278,628 20,691,358
_________________________________________ 36,076,779 25,819,688"_
47,919,872 33,499,582
Unsecured medium-term notes BTy EBSER
denominated in: A4 I P B R
Us$ = 7,227,977 3,129,957
HK$ B TT 8,095,905 3,196,168
RMB AR 23,832 12,259
Other currencies Hh ¥ - 345,820
15,347,714 6,684,204
Structured notes issued in relation to BTy EBSER
financial products denominated in: EETHSHE M
Bz EBEEER:
EUR BL T - 22,476
HK$ A TT 2,034,539 1,984,614
Us$ ETT 28,059,361 22,542,077
RMB AR 1,862,637 1,959,014
Other currencies H g 615,621 307,197
_________________________________________ 32,572,158 26,815,378"_
47,919,872 33,499,582
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27. Debt securities in issue (continued)

28.

Notes:

(a)

The outstanding balance of HK$15,347.7 million (2019: HK$6,684.2 million)
stated at amortised cost represents the amount of unsecured notes issued
by the Company under the Company's Medium Term Note Programme (the
"MTN Programme”). As at 31 December 2020, the debt securities in issue
bore fixed interest rates ranging from 0.3% to 4.25% (2019: 1.1% to 4.25%).
The carrying amounts of the debt securities in issue approximate to their
fair values.

The outstanding balance of HK$32,572 million (2019: HK$26,815 million)
represented the amount of unlisted structured notes which arose from selling
structured products under the MTN Programme with underlying investments
related to listed equity investments, listed debt investments, unlisted debt
investments, unlisted fund investments and derivatives.

The Group has not had any defaults of principal, interest or other
breaches with respect to their liabilities during the year (2019: nil).

Part of debt securities in issue are repayable on demand and the Group
has a practice to satisfy the request for redemption on the settlement

date.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial liabilities held for trading:

REBEMERARE:

27.

28.

BRITEER S
B 7 -

() HREBBHKKRIEOHKRMERS
¥15,347.78 & % JT(20194 :
6,684.28 & B T) I AR AR IR A
ARFEEETE (P HAEE
ENBOTHNEBRZBRRE - R
2020512 A31E - ERTEEE
4% & 7E A %R 0.30% £ 4.250% (2019
£ 1110 F4.25%) 5 B o B 1T
BEEFEFFMNEEERLQFER

4+

H o

(o)  RI{EZEHE325728 85T (2019
& :26,815B & B IT) IBIREFHH
ERFAFEEREBERELEN
LB ZEERRE  HER
BHEETRAKRE ETEKR
B EMEBHERE FEETE
CRERTETAGRE -

NEBPNERNIL EHRERAS -
FMEKEMABITEETNBR
(20194F : #£) o

BETEEZESIDBREXE

B - A 18 ) B
HHREEER -
BAFEHFABRSZNEH

\
4
s>

2020
20204

2019
20194
HK$'000
FA T

HK$'000
TER

— Listed equity securities — TR AR 5 263,722 20,472
— Listed debt securities - FmE%E 2,956,878 2,200,728

Financial liabilities designated at fair EERATFEFABZED

value through profit or loss TRLBE

— Financial products (note (a)) — & FhE & (M) 2,968,586 4,103,810
— Other financial instruments - HthemT A - 55,386

— Third-party interests in consolidated - MAGHBREESH
investment funds (note (b)) B =77 #E = (fF s (b) 477,074 430,184
6,666,260 6,810,580
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28.

29.

232

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss (continued)

Notes:

(a) Included in the fair value in financial products is cash collateral of HK$65
million (31 December 2019: HK$480 million) received from counterparty.

The amount of change in fair value of financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, during the year and cumulatively, attributable to changes in
own credit risk was insignificant.

(b) Third-party interests in consolidated investment funds consist of third-party
unitholders' interests in consolidated investment funds which are reflected as
liabilities since they can be put back to the Group for cash. The realisation of
third-party interests in investment funds cannot be predicted with accuracy
since these represent the interests of third-party unitholders in consolidated
investment funds that are subject to market risk and the actions of third-
party investors.

Obligations under repurchase agreements

The obligations under repurchase agreements arise when the securities
are sold by the Group with a concurrent agreement to repurchase at
a specified later date and price. The amount received by the Group is
recognised as liabilities as the Group retains substantially all risks and
returns of the securities.

As at 31 December 2020, the outstanding amount received
from repurchase agreements was HK$17,396,163,000 (2019:
HK$18,199,226,000) which was recognised as obligations under
repurchase agreements.
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7t (20194128318 : 480/ & &

) ©

RER BXRGEERBRESHR
BmEERAFEFABRRND
REEAFEHRENEEESHY
TEKX -

b)) BAEGHREZESWE=TH=
BREMAGHEBREESNE=TS
BUBBEARD  BRZEES
AR EAREEAREE S - 87
REE -KREESHDE=TTH=
R IR R ERETER - HEAR
BEfRAAAHREEZSNSE
=HEUBAEANER  XR
RTSRBRRE=FIREENIT
B o
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29. Obligations under repurchase agreements 29. [6# {7 & 09 & 8 &)

(continued)

Fair value of financial assets under the repurchase agreements:

CEHEAE TR EENRFE:

2020 2019
20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

Financial assets held for trading RIEEENESREE

— Listed debt securities - FTEBES 8,570,137 7,997,279

— Unlisted debt securities - ELEMERES 42,626 194,100
Financial assets designated at fair value 35 FEEAFEFAEZR

through profit or loss 0 &R EE

— Financial products - 2R EmM 12,704,127 13,800,325
Clients' pledged securities XEFEMES 1,356,941 1,678,215

22,673,831 23,669,919

30. Other equity instrument

On 15 June 2016, the Company issued US$300 million subordinated
perpetual securities (the “Perpetual Securities”) with an initial
distribution rate of 4.5% per annum. Distributions are paid semi-
annually in arrears and the first distribution date was 30 October
2016. The Company may, at its sole discretion, elect to defer any
distribution. The Perpetual Securities do not have a maturity date
and are only callable at the Company's discretion on 30 April 2019
or on any distribution payment date after 30 April 2019. After 30
April 2019, the distribution rate will be reset to the 3-year US swap
rate plus 8% per annum. The Perpetual Securities constitute direct,
unconditional, subordinated and unsecured obligations of the Company
and are classified as equity instruments and recorded as equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has fully
repurchased/redeemed all the outstanding securities.

30. HftfEHm T A

R2016F6 8158 » AN A & 3 173
BEITHXNEKEEH ([KEFE
1) WA D IRE R F R4 -
DEBREEFHREIN B
WK B A&20165E10H30H © A&
RAIAIEEEITEEREERE AN
K o XEBEBHFWHEEHEABARD
A€ 7] FR20194F 4 A30H 8620194
4H30R M AR IRZNBBET
JE [0 - 2019F4A30H % @ k=X
198 2% A =G Bk i B &0
FRY o KEFEHFEKARAH
B BEE REREEREER
T - UrERERTE REE
MR RPERIERER o

REE2019F12A31HIEFE - K
ARERYELD BELEMERE
N E S o
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31. Share capital 31. B
Number of issued
and fully paid
shares Share capital
BRITRAR
RHEE B 2
HK$'000
THT
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019, 20191418 - 201912 A
1 January 2020 318 + 2020514818 7,715,673,090 8,125,856
Shares issued under rights issue (note (a)) AR 4R 4 AR 2 1T AR 17 (P 2E (a)) 1,919,219,266 2,779,976
Shares repurchased (note (b)) BT B8 181 AR 17 (PR 2 (b)) (20,000,000) -
Shares issued upon exercise of share options BRESIE T T EERED
under the share option scheme (note 32) ZATH0 MR AD (P 5E32) 2,336,288 2917
At 31 December 2020 72020128318 9,617,228 644 10,908,749

(a)  On 14 January 2020, the Company proposed a rights issue on (a) F2020F1H8148 - KARE
the basis of one (1) Rights Share for every three (3) existing EABRHE=QKRRERMD
Shares held at a price of HK$1.45 per Rights Share. On 17 March AT — (1) AR AR AR £ B9 &£
2020, the Company completed the Rights Issue and allotted a % - AT IR AR AR AR 19 1.4508
total of 1,919,219,266 Shares for a gross proceed of HK$2,782 TR EREITHRK - f
million. 7202053 1785 - AR

Al B 3 $£1,919,219,266% Ak
- HRASRELER
2782BEETT -

(b) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company bought (b) & ZE2020512H318 1k F
back and cancelled a total of 20,000,000 shares at an aggregate B ARAIREBEAM
consideration (before expenses) of HK$19.9 million on the Hong A f%0.92% JT =1.05/%
Kong Stock Exchange at share prices ranging from HK$0.92 to THERERRIHG H
HK$1.05. 20,000,000% f% 7 + BRAE

R19B EA T KA X
Al o
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32. Share option reserve

The Company operates a share option scheme (the "Share Option
Scheme") for the purpose of assisting in recruiting, retaining and
motivating key staff members. The board of directors has the discretion
to grant share options to employees and directors of any members
of the Group, including independent non-executive directors. The
Share Option Scheme became effective on 19 June 2010 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from
that date (i.e., ended 19 June 2020).

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme must not
in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at the
date of approval of the Share Option Scheme (i.e. 164,000,000 shares).
The maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time (i.e. 16,400,000 shares). Any further grant of share options in
excess of this limit is subject to shareholders' approval in a general
meeting.

Share options granted to a director or chief executive of the Company,
or to any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition, any share options
granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company's shares at the
date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders' approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of
HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the directors, and ends on a date which is
not later than ten years from the date of offer of the share options.

2. BREE R

ARARRE—HERES (B
IRETE]  EEMBIRE - %
BErSBIEET -EFe0l
BrRANEBEERKERRNES
NEZ(REBYLIIENTES)R
oA AR M o BE AR AT &I 720104
6H1I9B AR - MBRIEBTHE K
&3] - BRI EZ B8R+ 5 (B
220206 A19H) B R -

BREFSEIRLOMERRK
HETEmMBTHRD AT
BE & R B A TE B AR ME AT B HE &
BHAR A B 217 %1% #910% (B
164,000,000% % {7) « A EMA+=
18 A 57 P o] 4R 35 B A% 42 ) B A%
B THEBRAEARSHE T
TSRO EE IRERARQ A
A E AT Bl B 3577 IR 1 5919 (BD
16,400,0008% A% 1) o 1 {a] 8 H it
PR BE M) #E — 20 % ) BE AR E S AR
RAKRERZ E# & -

BYIARREEUZSTHAE
HEESEMBEANERE 5
BEEEBBEINTESHI
AE o AN - R ER -+ =1 B 8 fE
AR FARARIEERE X B Ik
HITEE  ABEETMNHEAN
ERERE  NLBRAQANE
fa] Br P B 22 1T AR 10 BV 0.10% 3k H 48
BERBEAATNFHEHZKE
FTE)BBSE BB HEARK
RAELEEREREMBE -

REBERENZHOATHARAR
EHBRMEF - TN\BARINA
EREER B TRITEMN - IR
HEBERENTENHESET -
REZEBREZNDR LR
THEZERL -
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32.

236

Share option reserve (continued)

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the directors, but
may not be less than the higher of (i) the Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company's shares on the date of offer of the share options; and
(i) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the Company's shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of offer.

Upon completion of the bonus issue on 9 July 2015, the exercise
price and the number of shares to be issued and allotted under the
outstanding share options had been adjusted pursuant to the terms
of the Share Option Scheme in the manner set out below:

Immediately before the completion
of the bonus issue

BEARBTTHRA

Exercise price Number of

Date of share options granted per share outstanding options

RITER

REBRENAE BRITHEE RENHE

24[4[2012 HK$2.48 4,856,448
2487 T

10/1/2014 HK$3.79 36,959,910
3798 T

11/6/2015 HK$14.56 4,500,000
145678 7T

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders' meetings.

2,336,288 share options were exercised during the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: nil), resulting in the issue of 2,336,288 shares
(2019: nil) for a total cash consideration of HK$1,934,000 (2019: nil).
HK$983,000 (2019: nil) was transferred from the share option reserve
to the share capital account upon the exercise of the share options.
After adjustment for the bonus issue, the weighted average share price
at the date of exercise for share options exercised during the year was
HK$1.24 per share (2019: n/a).

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited e 2020 Annual Report

32. BRERE =)

BRENTEEHESET K
PAERRTRRE : (AR BK
MRBEREZNRRER I
Wi B R AR ROREER
ZHBRHAMAERS B AR A
B FE U T E -

PR2015F 79BN AT IR 381714 -
MARITHEBRENITEERE I
#BFETREERMDEBEERE
BT M IR AT

Immediately after the completion
of the bonus issue
EBEARBITERE

Adjusted exercise Adjusted number of
price per share outstanding options
KRBRTREBR
RARBROTEE EHEA
HK$0.827 14,569,344

08278 T
HK$1.264 110,879,730

1.26478 7T
HK$4.854 13,500,000

4.854/8 7T

BRRYEETHEABZRKE
IRBMERRELEREZER -

H =2020F12A8318 Ik F ¥ -
2,336,2881) & % # %& 17 (2019
& 4E) B2 336,288 /% AX (7 B
72019 - fB) - R R EERE
41,934,000 JT(20194F : &) ©
983,000/ 7T (20194 : =) & B8 i%
BETEMEBREREERS
PEABR c MRLALRR BT AR R
FRETERNBRERITERAS
M FEHRE RS RI.24%8 T
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32. Share option reserve (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, GJIHL has recognised an
equity-settled share-based compensation expense of HK$6,239,000
for the share options under the Share Option Scheme in profit or loss
(2019: HK$6,798,000).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, 1,216,668 and 8,048,630 share
options were lapsed and forfeited (2019: 100,000 and 9,050,000 share
options were lapsed and forfeited, respectively) prior to the vesting
date as a result of staff resignation.

32.

BB I R E

# £20209F12A318 It F & -
FE LR RE 508
EIETHERENIESER AR
4 E AR D A E A (E R
6,239,000/ JT (20194 : 6,798,000
WBIT) °

B E2020F12A31B It F ¥ H
RELIER 2551216668 %
8,048,63017 i A% # 1 5% B A H
AT 5k 2 K O W(20194F : & Bl B
100,000%29,050,00017 i A% 4 2k %X
KogW) o

2020 2019
20204 20194
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of  exercise price Number of
HK$ per share options  HK$ per share options
InREFG1TEE MEFHTEE
BRET BEREZE BREBT BEREZHE
At 1 January ®1A1H 1.498 74,894,303 1.971 65,844,303
Granted during the year FRARE - - 1.450 18,200,000
Forfeited during the year F X2 1.326 (8,048,630) 4.837 (9,050,000)
Lapsed during the year A KK 1.520 (1,216,668) 1.720 (100,000)
Exercised during the year — F R 1T 0.827 (2,336,288) = =
At 31 December M12 A31H 1.544 63,292,717 1.498 74,894,303
At 31 December 2020, the Company had 63,292,717 (2019: MR2020F12831H KX A A A&

74,894,303) share options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme, which represents approximately 0.66% (2019: 0.97%) of the
Company's shares in issue as at 31 December 2020. The exercise in
full of the remaining share options would, under the present capital
structure of the Company, result in the issue of 63,292,717 additional
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital of
HK$97,735,000 (before issuance expenses). The option periods of
the share options are from 24 April 2012 to 9 June 2021, from 10
January 2014 to 9 January 2024, from 13 July 2017 to 12 July 2027,
from 4 July 2018 to 3 July 2028 and from 11 September 2019 to 10
September 2029.

B2 B 2 B R R IR A A « 20205

63,292,71715 (20194F : 74,894,303
M) B EIIE TN RITHENE
BEAE - (5 AR R F2020912 A31H
B # 17 1% (5 B9 £90.66% (20194F :
0.97%) ° 1R 1% KA 7] B A Y & A 2R
B HESREREZSSTE &
5 5B N3 763,292, 717R% K A 7]
L@ A% - LA K BE SN Z897,735,000
BT (RIBRBEITHY) - BRELN
BRREAT(F HARE B20126 4248 &
20216 H9H ~ 2014F1H10H
202491898 ~ 2017478138
20274E7H128 ~ 20185 7H4H
20284 7A3H &201949A11H
202949A108 -

M HSY R H
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33.
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Share award reserve

On 27 October 2011, the Company adopted the share award scheme
(the "Share Award Scheme") under which shares of the Company (the
‘Awarded Shares") may be awarded to selected employees (including
directors) of any members of the Group (the "Selected Employees")
pursuant to the terms of the scheme rules and trust deed of the
Share Award Scheme. The share award scheme became effective on
the adoption date and, unless otherwise terminated or amended, will
remain in force for 10 years from that date, i.e., 26 October 2021.

The aggregate number of the Awarded Shares permitted to be awarded
under the Share Award Scheme throughout the duration of the
Share Award Scheme is limited to 10% of the issued share capital of
the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 164,000,000 shares). The
maximum number of the Awarded Shares which may be awarded to
a Selected Employee in any 12-month period up to and including
the date of award shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the issued
share capital of the Company as at the adoption date (i.e. 16,400,000
shares).

When a Selected Employee has satisfied all vesting conditions, which
might include service andfor performance conditions, specified by the
board of directors of the Company at the time of making the award
and become entitled to the shares of the Company forming the subject
of the award, the trustee shall transfer the relevant Awarded Shares
to that employee at no cost.

The voting rights and powers of any shares held under the Share Award

Scheme shall be exercised by the independent trustee who shall abstain
from voting.
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33. R BB f#w

202012 B31B R MK B/
REBOBOFEBHI AT :

33. Share award reserve (continued)

Details of the Awarded Shares granted and unvested as at 31
December 2020 are set out below:

Number of Number of
Average fair Awarded  Number of  Number of Awarded
Date of Awarded value per Shares Awarded Awarded Shares Vesting
Shares granted share granted Shares vested Shares lapsed unvested dates
BR¥Y REURBRG CHEBRER CARERAR KEERBR
R R BRG KB N¥E H B o= o= o= #EA W
13/4/2018 HK$2.36 11,777,000 (11,164,000 (613,000 - 30/11/2018
23678 7T 11,537,000 (10,050,000 (1,487,000) - 30/11/2019
11,490,000 (8,486,000 (3,004,000) - 30/11/2020
16/4/2019 HK$1.60 11,687,000 (11,768,000 (519,000) — 30/11/2019
1.607% 7T 11,621,000 (10,123,000) (1,498,000 — 30/11/2020
11,564,000 (628,000) (1,502,000 9,434,000 30/11/2021

The Group has recognised a share-based compensation expense of
HK$19,223,000 for the Awarded Shares under the Share Award Scheme
in profit or loss (2019: HK$57,325,000). 18,402,000 Awarded Shares
have been either transferred to the grantees or sold in accordance
with their instructions at no cost (2019: 29,027,000 Awarded Shares)
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

1,082,000 and 2,027,000 Awarded Shares were lapsed and cancelled
prior to their vesting date as a result of staff resignation for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 3,826,000 Awarded Shares were
lapsed).

After considering the number of shares which were granted in
prior years, as at 31 December 2020, the total number of the
Awarded Shares that can be awarded was 2,509,000 which represent
appropriately 0.03% of the Company's shares in issue at the adoption
date.

AEBEE MR MDEREIETNL
HERMHNIBZERARMDBE
i B R 8 79 2 19,223,000/8 7T (2019
£ : 57,325,000/ 70) ° & Z= 20204
128318 L F & + 18,402,000/% 42
B D ERT R AEETERA
AR EMIE RS (20194 -
29,027,000/% £ E) f% 17) °

#H £2020F12831B It £ & - H
® B L& 2 5 1082000
f& %2,027,0008% 22 B B% 0 1 55
B A 5 AT 5k a8 & E 88 (20194 ¢
3,826,000 % £ B {% 10 25 7)) ©

KEBBAFEMED ZRMHE
B ' R2020%F12A318 » 7 #& 17
42 B /Y 52 B 1% 19 42 £52,509,000
B HEARREREMRBE IR %
77 R 15 B9 490.03% -
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34. Shares held under the Share Award Scheme 34. BRHEETEETEEDN

Movements of shares held under the Share Award Scheme during the
year are as follows:

A

R fn S Rt 81 IR T 1758 89 AR 1D 7
FAMEEHMT

2020 2019

20204 20194F
Number of Number of
HK$'000 shares HK$'000 shares
FET BB EE FAE T B 15 &8
At 1 January W1A1H 73,058 36,889,400 142,051 63,416,400
Purchased during the year RERNEE - - 4,004 2,500,000

Vested and transferred out REANGBERE N

during the year (42,386) (18,402,000) (72,997) (29,027,000)
At 31 December R12H318 30,672 18,487,400 73,058 36,889,400

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the trustee acquired nil
ordinary shares (2019: 2,500,000 ordinary shares) of the Company for
the Share Award Scheme through purchases in the open market at
a total cost, including related transaction costs, of approximately nil
(2019: HK$4,004,000).

35. Other Reserve

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Other reserve of the Group as at 31 December 2020 and 2019
represents a merger reserve, being the difference between the
issued share capital of HK$31,980,000 of Guotai Junan (Hong Kong)
Limited and the amount of share capital and share premium of
HK$1,268,440,000 of the Company transferred and issued to GJHL in
exchange for the entire issued share capital of Guotai Junan (Hong
Kong) Limited on 14 June 2010.
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36. Capital commitments and other commitments

Capital commitments

The Group had capital commitments for system upgrade and
renovation of premises of approximately HK$17,772,000 which were
contracted but not provided for as at 31 December 2020 (2019
HK$6,180,000)

Other commitments

The Group undertakes underwriting obligations on placing, IPO,
takeover and merger activities and financial obligations to loan
facilities granted to customers. As at 31 December 2020, the
underwriting obligation was approximately HK$5 million (2019: HK$6
million).

36.

BEARFAER KM AE

B AR A HE
REBRAREHZERMEREIE
B AR A HE #917,772,00058 T 0 3%
FRIBE ] 418 I & 72020512 8
318 F M £ 15 (20194 : 6,180,000
WBIT) °

B b e

AEBARE BHAAHABE -
WEE K & GHEEh1e (R 8 A &
ARTEFPNENRERERE
A oo 7N20209F12 8318 + A& 88
AL ASA BB (20194 : 68
BHETT) e
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37. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

(a)

242

Directors and chief executive's current
emoluments

The current emoluments of every director of the Company paid/
payable by the Group for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 2019 are set out below:

Year ended 31 December 2020

37. EERHESTHRAEMNE

(a)

EELRHERTBRAER

B &
N5 B 20204 & 20194F
PANBIEFEEN ER
ARBBEBHFHNH S
I NN

HZE2020F12A31HILLFE

Employer's
Discretionary contribution
Directors’ Salaries and Bonuses  to pension
fees  allowances (note) scheme Total
MERL EEEERK
ESHe HeREH (Ma) SHEHRR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Name of director TER THERT TET TER THERT
Executive directors: HiTEE:
Yim Fung (note (i)) A (F 72 (1) - 3,755 10,225 18 13,998
Wong Tung Ching L5 - 3,528 6,424 18 9,970
Qi Haiying biipisg=d - 3,498 8,063 18 11,579
Li Guangjie ERA - 3,420 5,710 18 9,148
Non-executive directors: FHTEE:
Liu Yiyong 5B - - - - -
Xie Lebin BIESE) - - - - -
Independent non-executive BUFHTEE:
directors:
Fu Tingmei BESX 550 - - - 550
Song Ming R 550 - - - 550
Tsang Yiu Keung &2 08 550 - - - 550
Chan Ka Keung Ceajer B 58 518 - - - 518
2,168 14,201 30,422 72 46,863
Note: The discretionary bonuses include cash bonuses, granted share MisE: BVBIEALBIER SIEA

options and share awards. The evaluation of the performance of
employees has not yet been completed. Thus, the amount of bonuses
has not been determined and the amount disclosed is based on actual
payout in 2019. The discretionary bonuses disclosed above does not
include the deferred compensation set out in note 37(b).
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37. Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(continued)

(a)

Directors

Year ended 31 December 2019

Name of director

Directors'
fees

EXH0E
HK$'000
TAT

and chief executive's current
emoluments (continued)

Salaries and
allowances

59 KRk
HK$'000
FiE7

37. EERHESTHRAEME

(&)

(@) EENE&EESTTHRAERR
BBl & (&)
BZE2019F128318LLEE

Employer's
contribution
to pension
scheme Total
EXmENR
SHEEH Rt
HK$'000  HK$'000
TR AR

Discretionary
bonuses

B
HK$'000
7

Executive directors: HITEE:

Yim Fung (note (i)) i (P 2 ) - 3,755 9,374 18 13,147

Wong Tung Ching ILE = 3,528 5,621 18 9,167

Qi Haiying B %E - 3,480 7,055 18 10,553

Li Guangjie ERA = 3,420 4996 18 8,434

Non-executive directors: HHITEE:

Liu Yiyong el - - - - -

Xie Lebin BIESE! - - - - -

Independent non-executive BUFHTEE:

directors:

Fu Tingmei BEX 550 - - - 550

Song Ming K 81 550 - - = 550

Tsang Yiu Keung kR 550 - - - 550

Chan Ka Keung Ceajer B % o8 400 - - - 400
2,050 14,183 27,046 72 43,351

There was no arrangement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.

Note (i):
of the Company.

Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer

FAYBEZIHTRITHA
B 7R ZE 3[R B EE A (RT3 A
B & B e
MaEl: BEEEAARAHR
TEERITHREH -
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37. Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments
(continued)

(b)

244

Directors and chief executive's deferred
emoluments

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group, under the share option
scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 32 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income over the vesting period,
was determined as at the date of grant and the amount included
in the financial statements for the current year is included
in the following directors' and chief executive's remuneration
disclosures.

Certain directors were granted share awards under the share
award scheme of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 33 to the financial statements. The amount of
share-based compensation expense illustrated in the below table
represents amortisation to profit or loss of the fair value of
these share options and awarded shares granted to the directors
measured at the respective grant dates.

Certain directors were granted deferred cash bonuses for their
services to the Group. The deferred cash bonuses will be paid
on the respective vesting dates when the vesting conditions are
fulfilled.
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37. EERHESTHRAEME

37. Directors’ and chief executive’'s emoluments

(continued) (#&)

(b) Directors and chief executive’s deferred (b) EEEHZSITHAEE
emoluments (continued) B2 (45)
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ2020F12A31HLLEE

Share-based compensation reserve
DROAERBERREE
Share option scheme Share award scheme
BRETH Rt & Bat 8
Share option Share award
expense expense Date of Vesting
(note 33) grant dates
ROZR
BRERX BX
(F&s2) REEMW  (HE33
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER

Cash-based compensation
NREREHRBE
Deferred cash bonuses
EZR&TA
Deferred
cash bonus
expense

Date of Date of

grant  (note 32) grant

ELR$
TAEX
HK$'000

THER

RHiAH RUAH HEAH

Name of director

HITEFE:

Executive directors:

Yim Fung (note (i) PU& (M &£() 13/7/2017 53
4[7/2018 67  13/4/2018 - 3/4(2020  30/11/2021 1,339
11/9/2019 262 16/4/2019 - 3/4/2020  30/11/2022 1,339
Wong Tung Ching T4 % 13/7/2017 53
4[7/2018 67  13/4/2018 223 3/4/2020  30/11/2021 803
11/9/2019 262 16/4/2019 412 3/4/2020  30/11/2022 803
Qi Haiying gD 13/7/2017 53
4(7/2018 67  13/4/2018 404 3/4/2020  30/11/2021 1,008
11/9/2019 262 16/4/2019 725 3/4/2020  30/11/2022 1,008
Li Guangjie ERA 13/7/2017 53
4[7/2018 67  13/4/2018 180 3/4(2020  30/11/2021 74
11/9/2019 262 16/4/2019 469 3/4/2020  30/11/2022 74
Non-executive FHITEE:
directors:
Liu Yiyong AR5 = = =
Xie Lebin B - - -
Independent non-  BUFHTEE
executive
directors:
Fu Tingmei BEX - - -
Song Ming RE - - -
Tsang Yiu Keung L% - - -
Chan Ka Keung R% % - - -
Ceajer
1,528 2413 1,728
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37. EERRETBRAENE
(%)

(b)

37. Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments
(continued)

(b) EELERITTRARE
T (&)

Directors and chief executive's deferred i
HBZE2019%F12831BLLEE

emoluments (continued)
Year ended 31 December 2019

c

Share-based compensation reserve
AR R AR HERE S

246

Name of director

Share option scheme
Bkt 2
Share option

Date of
grant

&4 A

expense
(note 32)
AR iR
(Hft3£32)
HK$'000
T

Share award scheme
B in SR B EF &l

Date of
grant

KB H

Share award
expense
(note 33)
Betn SR
(Fff 3%33)
HK$'000
THET

Executive directors: HITESE:

Yim Fung (note (i)) & (BT 3£ (1) 13/7/2017 179 13/4/2017 519
4/7/2018 150 13/4/2018 1,207
11/9/2019 95 16/4/2019 1,290

Wong Tung Ching ELE 13/7/2017 179 13/4/2017 524
4/7/2018 150 13/4/2018 1,219
11/9/2019 95 16/4/2019 744

Qi Haiying 1B 13(7/2017 179 13/4[2017 384
4/7/2018 150 13/4/2018 1,093
11/9/2019 95 16/4/2019 1,309

Li Guangjie AN 13/7/2017 179 13/4/2017 251
4/7/2018 150 13/4/2018 794
11/9/2019 95 16/4/2019 849

Non-executive directors: HEHTEE

Liu Yiyong 2z B - -

Xie Lebin B - -

Independent non-executive — B IEBHITEE

directors:

Fu Tingmei BEE - -

Song Ming N - -

Tsang Yiu Keung o 12 o8 = -

Chan Ka Keung Ceajer PR R 58 = -

1,696 10,183

Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited e 2020 Annual Report



Notes to Financial Statements

BFF5 ¥R AR M RE

31 December 2020
20204F12A31H

37. Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

(b) Directors and chief executive's deferred
emoluments (continued)
Note (i): Dr. Yim Fung is the executive director and chief executive officer
of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the directors received
total remuneration amounting to HK$54.5 million (2019: HK$55.2
million), which included approximately HK$1.3 million (2019:
HK$1.7 million) attributable to share options granted and of
HK$2.4 million (2019: HK$10.2 million) attributable to share
awards granted by Company, part of which was in respect of
their services to the Company.

37. EERHESTHRAEME

(&)

(b)

ESERRERITRABRE

T2 (&)

M REG): PO AARA TR
TEERITRAR -

#H Z2020%F12A8318 Ik &
B EZRENTHRES
54.58 & % 7t (20194F : 55.2
BEBL) BEAQRRE
R EEEA1388 B T
(Q019F 1 7EB BT X
R R D SREN (L 2.4 8 BB
7T (20194 - 10.2@ BB T) -
ERHED T EER AR T
REHRB M -
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash

flows

(@) Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from operating activities

Profit before tax BR 3 Bl s A 1,814,679 1,005,443
Adjustments for: KRR
Depreciation e 68,859 65,078
Share-based compensation expense IR HAEEROHBERS 25,462 64,123
Vesting of shares for the share award & 17 22 Bh =t 21 55 & AR 1
scheme (2,797) =
Unrealised gain on financial BRATEFABRGER
instruments measured at fair value T AKREH W=
through profit and loss (913,791) (1,972,662)
Unrealised loss on debt securities in BRTEEBESFKE
issue HER 1,739,592 1,515,460
Unrealised (gain)/loss on derivative TESMIAEKRER
financial instruments (k) /B8 (682,498) 34,138
Finance cost il & B AR 830,256 879,294
Interest income B A (1,822,643) (1,941,948)
Dividend income i 24 A (11,530) (24,529)
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEREERS - (978)
Loss on deposits forfeited /xﬂﬁlf K E 1R - 490
Effect of loss allowance on loans and KTEFERRBR
advances to customers, net EEBEYETE 352,484 908,530
Effect of loss allowance on accounts ERRIBEERELE
receivable, net A (522) 1,949
Effect of loss allowance on client trust BFERRTEHRERE
bank balance, net BETEFS 11,098 (6,594)
Effect of loss allowance on loan ,\m%ﬂ*l@ﬁﬁl%ﬁ%%
commitments, net F - (337)
Effect of loss allowance on other H Ath FE Wi S0 B 18 B A
receivables, net YESE 1) (89)
Effect of loss allowance on receivable [ 17) [2] B 175 =% F& UL 5K
from reverse repurchase agreements, BEBBYEF %’E
(424) 4,254
Effect of loss allowance on cash and fﬁé&fﬁ‘i\?fﬁ%@ﬂéﬁé
cash equivalents, net %P (742) 244
Effect of loss allowance on bank ROGREBEEREYE
deposits, net e (18) 758
Effect of loss allowance on financial BRAFEFAEMEZERK
assets at fair value through other =R REEBRER
comprehensive income BrE 1,700 -
1,409,154 532,624

net

RETHELENRERE

%éiﬁﬁmbgﬂ%ﬁﬁﬁi

(a) REFDEANES

2020
20204

HK$'000
FTER

2019
20194
HK$'000
FAT
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 38. AR EREXMH T2
flows (continued)

(a) Cash flows from operating activities (continued) (a) KEFFEEMRESRE
(#&)

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAT

Increase in other assets H & &= 10 (3,087) (703)
Increase in financial assets at fair value ZAFEFAEBRZNS A

through profit or loss EEEM (10,258,748) (7,909,347)
Decrease in derivative financial TTESmIARD

instruments 289,374 13,273
Increase in loans and advances to KTIEPHMER R EBZIEM

customers (4,258,219) (360,767)
(Increase)/decrease in accounts JIE U 0 T8 (18 )/

receivable (1,487,254) 1,194,275
(Increase)/decrease in receivable from [ 16 (20 B 175 = 8 Uk 31 0B

reverse repurchase agreements (32 ),/ w (774,463) 856,839
(Decrease)fincrease in obligations under BB #:Z B E B CR L),/

repurchase agreements # (803,063) 5,042,709
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BT FIE ~ R& R E M fE

other receivables & QDR 126,066 54.343
Decrease in financial liabilities at fair BEATEFABZNSH

value through profit or loss &R (909,126) (3,083,417
(Increase)/decrease in client trust bank BEEFEBTEAGEM)

balances D (7,536,142) 3,169,046
Decrease in restricted cash X PR %38 & m - 128,975
Increase in time deposits E HA 15 50E 0 (52,992) (92,483)
Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits RITFEFOR L,/ (3 m) 66,440 (67,198)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts payable — JEf ZIEE 0, CFi D) 8,195,860 (4,320,821)
Increase in other payables and accrued —~ EERNRBREAE

liabilities #n 310,499 152
Increase in financial assets at fair value & AFEFAEMEE

through other comprehensive income WasH &/ EEE M (114,529) -
Cash used in operations REXBHARE (15,800,230) (4,842,500)
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBFEGEH (346,122) (55,905)
Interest received B F B 1,855,014 1,921,008
Interest paid EXNRRSS (792,727) (834,051)
Dividend received B8 11,530 24529
Net cash flows used in operating REEHHRAREREFE

activities (15,072,535) (3,786,919)
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 38. A REREXMH T2
flows (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) RERDELNEEE

activities

Bank
borrowings

BITER
HK$'000
TERT

Lease
liabilities

HEARE
HK$'000
TERT

Debt
securities
in issue
BT
B E
HK$'000
THER

At 1 January 2019 20191418 9,441,083 51,106 25,999,272
Changes from financing cash flows FEREREE 1,812,849 (23,895) 6,125,116
Foreign exchange movement, net HNEE B B3 ER (52,822) 10 (140,266)
Interest expense FIERX 319,163 1,862 240,618
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yo % — el Bt 188 2 ) - 2,610 -
Additions NE - 17,078 -
Interest paid classified as operating D EAKERLRE

cash flows E’JEH & (319,304) - (204,590)
Decrease/(increase) in interest &5 7 BOm

payable (t* ) 141 - (36,028)
Unrealised loss on debt securities in 2 31T & # & 5 K &

issue HEB - - 1,515,460
At 31 December 2019 and at 1 R2019512 H318 K&

January 2020 202041 A1A 11,201,110 48,771 33,499,582
Changes from financing cash flows BEREREZ (1,424,242) (26,756) 12,627,953
Foreign exchange movement, net SNIE B B) 5 E (61,032) (27) 52,743
Interest expense FERZ 287,113 1,353 280,078
Additions NE - 220 -
Interest paid classified as operating D BEALERERE

cash flows BB 78 (291,555) - (229,925)
Decrease/(increase) in interest & R BUR

payable (1% 40) 4,442 - (50,151)
Unrealised loss on debt securities in BT B4 B 5 K&

issue HEE - - 1,739,592

9,715,836 23,561 47,919,872
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38. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash
flows (continued)

(c) Major non-cash transactions
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right
of use assets and lease liabilities of HK$220,000 (2019:
HK$17,078,000) and HK$220,000 (2019: HK$17,078,000),
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for property, plant
and equipment.

39. Unconsolidated structured entity

A structured entity is an entity in which voting rights are not the
dominant factor in deciding control. Structured entity is generally
created to achieve a narrow and well defined objective with restrictions
around their ongoing activities.

Depending on the Group's power over the activities of the entity
and its exposure to and the ability to influence its own returns, it
may consolidate the entity. In other cases, it may sponsor or have
an interest in such an entity but does not consolidate it. The Group
sponsors an entity when:

(i) It is the majority user of the entity;

(i) Its name appears in the name of the entity or on the products
issued by the entity;

(iii) It provides implicit or explicit guarantees of the entity's
performance; and

(iv) It led the formation of the entity.

The unconsolidated structured entities invest in a range of asset
classes. The Group receives income from these unconsolidated
structured entities through the receipt of arrangement fees and
interest income from interest bearing notes issued by these entities.
As of 31 December 2020, the Group held notes of HK$4,536 million
(2019: HK$1,134 million), under financial assets held for trading and
investments (note 20), issued by these entities.

38.

39.

REREREBRMFE @)

() FEFBREXRH
REAN  NEBLME - K
BN RERELBED BIAIE
ReABFRAEEEREE
B {&220,0007% 7T (20194F :
17,078,000/ JT) £220,000
7 7T (20194 : 17,078,000/
JL) °

R HEEEER

ERUEERRRERIIEREE

BN ETERNZNER - BB
gm“ié%%%iiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁma

= CHERBBERERDEER
ﬂo
BIRNEEHERTHNE N R
HXEROHONTERERER
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9. RirEEBHEER )

KEXEPHNGERBEEERMNEA
NREZETHEBLERNEENT

39. Unconsolidated structured entity (continued)

Income from the sponsored structured entities and assets transferred
to the structured entities are as follow:

2020 2019
2020% 20194
Interest  Commission Assets Interest ~ Commission Assets
Income and fees transferred Income and fees transferred
EEE BEE
FMEBA HERER BE FEKA HekEAR BE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET TEART TAT TAT TAET
Assets securitisations BEZEH 375,575 74,781 540,607 19,717 7,164 174,248
40. Five highest paid individuals 40. AU GRS FHMA

BRABERMATEENEE RSN
FRAIZATHERNBKIEN - FR
i f&m & EEE B HEMm A (2019
FMB)ES  AFBMFEEN
B FE37 - FARE R =4(2019
F =ZR)FEERERSFTMNEE
BB T

Excluding amounts paid or payable by way of commission of sales
generated by the individuals, the five highest paid employees
during the year included two (2019: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 37 above. Details of the remuneration
of the remaining three (2019: three) non-director and highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

2020
20205

2019
20194
HK$'000
FA T

HK$'000
FRERT

Salaries and allowances e MoERL 9,360 9,114
Discretionary bonuses ) 15 16 41 31,200 27,300
Employer's contribution to pension scheme  {& % A & fk & 51 & it & 54 54
Sub-total /INEE 40,614 36,468
Share-based compensation reserve AR A A R E

- Share option expense — BEIRER X 494 528

- Share award expense - B ERRX 4,058 9,643
Total it 45,166 46,639

252
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40. Five highest paid individuals (ontinued) 40. BV RS HFMA L@
The number of non-director and highest paid employees of the Group HEF MArLrEERFHE
whose emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows: EMABKEMSHE LT

2020 2019
2020F 20194
Number of Number of
employees employees
BEAY EEAH

Emolument bands i & & B
- HK$12,500,001 to HK$13,000,000 - 12,500,001 7t 213,000,000/ 7T = =
- HK$13,000,001 to HK$14,000,000 - 13,000,001 7t £14,000,0007% 7T 1 -
- HK$14,000,001 to HK$14,500,000 - 14,000,001/ 7T 14,500,000 7T - 1
- HK$14,500,001 to HK$15,000,000 - 14,500,001/ 7T 215,000,000/ 7T 1 1
- HK$16,000,001 to HK$16,500,000 - 16,000,0017% 7T 16,500,000 7T = =
- HK$16,500,001 to HK$17,000,000 - 16,500,001/ 7T £17,000,0007% 7T 1 -
- HK$17,000,001 to HK$17,500,000 - 17,000,0017% 7T £17,500,0007% JT - 1

B2 B 2 B R R IR A A « 20205 253
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41. Related party transactions

254

In addition to the transactions and balances set out elsewhere in
the financial statements, the Group had the following material
transactions with related parties during the year.

Commission expenses to the ultimate
holding company

Commission expenses to the ultimate
holding company for trading in
RMB Qualified Foreign Institutional
Investors (RQFII) account

Professional and consultancy fees paid
to fellow subsidiaries

Management fee income and
performance fee income of a private
fund managed by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and
invested by a fellow subsidiary

Commission income received from the
above private fund

Commission income of a public fund
managed by a fellow subsidiary

Commission income from an
intermediate holding company

Commission income from the ultimate
holding company

Underwriting fee and sponsor fee
income from the ultimate holding
company

T RALIER AR
AErX
HERAREAEEIN
1% & & (RQFID
REPFARSINT
RRERARD
likaA53

SEp R ERNGE:
BEXRZEAE

AR ZENB AR
EERRAZNBAR
REMLEES
HEBEBRAK
KHEBWA

B BEESWEN
Aadk A
REMBQREER
REESHESEA
B R A AR A
LN
BRRERA
Aadk A
B & & R A7) WER A
BHEBREHBRA

A4 ER Y
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(i)

(iv)
(v)
(vi)
(vi)
(viii)

(ix)

41. B

(a)

HK$'000
FTER

(1,059)

(38.027)

1,026
300

15

76

IR 5

HK$'000

THET

(978)

(53)

(30,373)

1,579

184

24

15,882

18,563
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

LR 5w
(a) (#&)

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Commission income from a fellow EIEEINIEAGIE S
subsidiary R 2 WA (x) 2,649 283
Commission income and handling BE—RZKEBRAR
income from another fellow WELEY A £ WA &
subsidiary FEERA (xi) 757 271
Commission income from an BEZZERARKER
immediate holding company OGRS N (xii) 20 5
Consultancy service fee and corporate 37+ F & & 4% Ik
finance service fee paid to the RE] - BT ER
ultimate holding company, an NIy
intermediate holding company RRAN B ARG E
and a fellow subsidiary MEEMERBSE  (xi) (29,497) (28,821)
Management fee income and handling BZARRZEHEA
fee income from a private fund AEE RPN ER
managed by a wholly-owned ANRAEHNALEE
subsidiary of the company and W HE R B
controlled by an intermediate ARFEEHRA
holding company (xiv) - 1,166
Advisory income of a public fund FIZH B AR EE
managed by a fellow subsidiary REESERBA (v 70 -
Commission income of private funds [F & B 2 7 E 12
managed by a fellow subsidiary LEESBE2WA  (xvi) 1,386 =
Notes: B 2k -
0] The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were (i) ST R EER AR A

calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value stated
in the Cooperation Agreement signed with a wholly-owned subsidiary

of the Company.

(ii) The commission expenses to the ultimate holding company were
calculated based on the percentage of the transaction value through
RQFII account as stated in the Cooperation Agreement signed with
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

(iii) The professional and consultancy fees paid to the fellow subsidiaries
for the provision of capital market information were charged
at HK38,027,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019:

HK$30,373,000).

SHX T REARRF A —
REEAWBRARIRLNE
EmEINANZZEED
HEEt & -

(i) = FREEBRRANM
SHX T REARRF A —
REEWBRARIRLNE
1 1 =% 51| BA 19 35 3B RQFI Bk
FRBPEBDLFE -

(i)  EE2020F12A31HIEFE
REREMBRARREELRT
BENNBEERZERNES
15438,027,0007% 7T (2019 4F :
30,373,000 7T) °
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

256

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

The management fee income and performance fee income received
from a private fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and invested by a fellow subsidiary were charged at 1.5%
per annum of the net asset value at the last working day of each
month and 20% of the positive increment in the net asset value for
the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: 20%).

The commission fees received from the private fund mentioned in
note (iv) above included commission income which was based on
0.15% (2019: 0.15%) of the transaction value.

The commission income received from the public fund managed by
the fellow subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the signed
brokerage agreement with the wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The commission income received from the intermediate holding
company was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage
agreement with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The commission income received from the ultimate holding company
was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement
with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

The underwriting and sponsor fee income received from the ultimate
holding company was based on the underwriting and sponsor
agreement with the ultimate holding company.

The commission income received from a fellow subsidiary was based
on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

The commission income and handling income received from
another fellow subsidiary were based on the pricing stated in the
signed brokerage agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company.

The commission income received from an immediate holding company
was based on the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement
with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The consultancy service fee and corporate finance service fee paid to
the ultimate holding company, an intermediate holding company and
a fellow subsidiary were based on the pricing stated in consultancy
services and corporate finance services agreements with wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The management fee and handling income received from a private
fund managed by a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
controlled by an intermediate holding company were based on the
percentage prescribed in the investment management agreement for
the year ended 2020.

The advisory income received from a public fund managed by a fellow
subsidiary was based on the pricing stated in the advisory agreement
with wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company.

The commission income received from private funds was based on
the pricing stated in the signed brokerage agreement with wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company.

Included in the Group's accounts payable was a broker payable
due to the ultimate holding company of HK$7,184,000 (2019:
HK$18,504,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December
2020. The balance was unsecured, interest-free and payable on the
settlement day under the relevant market practices.

41. B8
(a)

(&)
P & -

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)
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41. Related party transactions (continued)
(@) (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(xviii) Included in the Group's accounts receivable was a broker receivable
due from the ultimate holding company of HK89,937,000 (2019:
HK$38,658,000) arising from dealing in securities as at 31 December
2020. The credit terms provided to the ultimate holding company were
consistent with the practice of the securities dealing industry. The
balance was unsecured, interest-free and receivable on the settlement

day under the relevant market practices.

(xix) Included in the Group's prepayment, deposits and other receivable of
HK$38,370,000 (2019:HK$50,443,000) was an advance repayment to
the fellow subsidiary for professional and consultancy fee mentioned

in the note (jii).

(xx)  Included in the Group's accounts payable were amounts due to the
immediate holding company of nil (2019: nil), the ultimate holding
company of HK$160,000 (2019: HK$5,212,000), the fellow subsidiary
of HK$12,526,000 (2019: HK$57,419,000) and another fellow
subsidiary of HK$12,159,000 (2019: HK$38,702,000) arising from
dealing in securities, futures and foreign exchange as at 31 December
2020. The balances were unsecured, interest-free and payable on

demand.

(xxi) Included in the Group's accounts payable were the accounts
payable to the ultimate holding company mentioned in note (xiii)
for the consulting service fee and corporate finance service fee of
HK$14,644,000 (2019: HK$11,055,000) as at 31 December 2020.

(xxii) Included in the Group's accounts receivables were amounts due from
a public fund managed by a fellow subsidiary mentioned in note (ix)
of HK$34,000 (2019: nil) arising from advisory service provided as at

31 December 2020.
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41. Related party transactions (continued)

(a)

(continued)

The Group's ultimate holding company, GJSCL, is subject to
the control of the PRC Government which also controls a
significant portion of assets and entities in the PRC (collectively
referred to as "state-owned enterprises”). Therefore, transactions
with state-owned enterprises are regarded as related party
transactions.

Majority of the bank borrowings and deposits of the Group
were entered into with state-owned banks. In addition, the
Group enters into transactions with state-owned enterprises that
relate to the Group's normal business activities, including but
not limited to brokerage services, corporate finance business,
asset management business, loan and financing business
and investment holding and market making business. These
transactions are entered into in the ordinary course of business
at an arm's length and under the normal commercial terms and
conditions as to those that would have been entered into with
non-state-owned enterprises, which were not considered as
individually significant in accordance with HKAS 24.

The related party transactions in respect of items (i), (ii), (iii),
(vi), (viii), (x), (xii), (xiii), (xv) and (xvi) also constitute continuing
connected transactions to be disclosed in the annual report as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Details of the remuneration of the key management personnel of
the Group are disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.
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42.

260

Financial risk management

The Group's activities mainly expose to such financial risks as credit
risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management
framework focuses on the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and
monitoring of these risks which are an inevitable consequence of being
in business. The Group's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate
balance between risk and return and minimise any potential adverse
effect on the Group's financial performance.

The Group's risk management policies are approved by the board of
directors and are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor the risks and
adherence to limits by means of reliable and up-to-date information.
The board of directors provides written principles for overall risk
management. The Group reqularly reviews its risk management policies
to reflect any change in the market and clients.

The main financial risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The policies for managing
each of these risks are summarised below:

Credit risk

Credit exposures arise principally from loans and advances to
customers, accounts receivable, debt securities, bank balances and
client trust bank balances which are included in the Group's asset
portfolio.

Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies

The board of directors delegates to the credit committee and risk
management committee the duties to monitor the credit risk of
the Group. Members of the credit committee and risk management
committee include, inter alia, the chief executive officer, responsible
officers, the chief financial officer and the head of related control
departments. The credit committee is responsible for the development
of financing business and approval of major credit exposure and the
risk management committee to provide independent supervision of all
credit risk metrics and limits.
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42. Financial risk management (continved)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

The risk management department and wealth management department
are responsible for approval, monitoring and review of the Group's
credit risk of margin clients. It is also responsible for making settlement
calls when the trades of margin clients exceed their respective limits.
Failure to meet margin calls may result in liquidation of the client's
position. The credit limit and margin limit for each client and the
lending ratio of securities acceptable as margin collateral prepared by
the wealth management department and approved by risk management
department, the significant transaction will be approved by the credit
committee.

The Group also grants term loans to customers that may contain
an element of credit risk. The Group minimises such risk exposure
by performing a detailed credit analysis, and dedicated professionals
are assigned to oversee and monitor the performance. These key
investment decisions are also subject to approval by the credit
committee.

Loans and advances to customers including IPO loans for subscription
of new shares are normally settled within 1 week from the drawdown
date. Forced liquidation action would be taken if the customers fail
to settle their shortfall within a specific period of tolerance after the
IPO allotment result is announced.

For debt securities, external rating such as Standard & Poor's and
Moody's ratings or their equivalents are used by the risk management
department for managing credit risk exposures as supplemented by
the Group's own assessment through the use of internal rating tools.

The Group's bank balances are deposited in respectable and large
commercial banks. For the client trust bank balances which are held
in segregated accounts, they are deposited in authorised financial
institutions in Hong Kong. The credit risk of bank balances and client
trust bank balances is considered insignificant.
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Financial risk management (ontinved)

Credit risk (continued)
Credit risk limit control and mitigation policies (continued)

Accounts receivable from clients represent receivables from clients
arising from dealing in securities, which normally had a delivery-
against payment settlement term of 1 to 3 days. The Group allows
credit up to the settlement dates of the respective securities
transactions (normally from T+1 to T+3 days). All applications for
credit limits must be reviewed by the credit manager and approved
by risk management department or the credit committee. The risk
management department and wealth management department
determines whether a forced liquidation action is to be taken against
clients with overdue balances on a case-by-case basis. The credit
committee regularly reviews the overdue balances.

The Group only accepts margin deposits in the form of cash for
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange dealing and broking.
No unauthorised transaction is allowed to be executed if the current
position of the customer exceeds its trading limit. The margin deposit
placed and the aggregate of the required margin deposits of each
futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange contract are timely
monitored by both the dealers and the risk management department.
Margin calls will be executed by the on-site duty staff for futures,
options and leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business if there is
a deficit with the margin deposit. Forced liquidation of the customer's
position will be executed if the customer fails to meet the margin calls.

Management considers that the credit risk of the Group resulting from
securities, futures, options and leveraged foreign exchange brokerage
business as well as margin and other loan financing is properly
managed within the defined internal control framework.

Accounts receivable from brokers and dealers are placed with large
financial institutions which are governed by regulators. The credit
risk of accounts receivable from brokers and dealers is considered
insignificant.

Ageing of accounts receivable from corporate clients and investment
funds arising from corporate finance, asset management and
investment holding and market making businesses is closely monitored.
There were no significant defaults in the past.

The credit risk of accounts receivable from the Stock Exchange and
other clearing houses is considered to be minimal.
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42. Financial risk management (continved)

Credit risk (continued)

Loss allowance and provisioning policies

The Group's policy requires the review of individual outstanding
amounts at least monthly or more reqularly depending on individual
circumstances or market condition.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 9, where the loss allowance
requirements under HKFRS 9 are based on an expected credit loss
model. The Group applies simplified approach to measure expected
credit losses ("ECL") on accounts receivable from corporate clients,
investment funds and others; and general approach to measure ECL
on loans and advances to customers, time deposits and other financial
assets accounted for at amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income as well as loan commitments. Under the
simplified approach, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL. Under the general approach, financial
assets migrate through the following three stages based on the change
in credit risk since initial recognition: Stage 1: 12-months ECL, Stage 2:
Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired and Stage 3: Lifetime ECL — credit-
impaired.

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of default has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the
Group's historical experience and expert credit risk assessment,
including forward-looking information. The loan and advances use the
number of days past due ("DPD") and loan-to-collateral value ("LTV")
to determine significant increase in credit risk. For non-standard
financing, internally derived credit ratings have been identified as
representing the best available determinant of credit risk. Credit risk
is deemed to have increased significantly if the credit rating has
significantly deteriorated at the reporting date relative to the credit
rating at the date of initial recognition.
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Financial risk management (ontinved)

Credit risk (continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Calculation of expected credit losses

The ECL are assessed by the Group on semi-annual basis. Based on
DPD, LTV and internally derived credit ratings, loans and advances to
customers are classified into 3 stages.

Under stage 1 is calculated on collective basis. The probabilities
of price changes of various scenarios are calculated based on the
observed historical price movements of the underlying collateral
stocks. The ECL of each scenario is then calculated in accordance with
the respective loan exposure. When the loans are classified under
stage 2 and stage 3, the lifetime ECL is calculated.

As at 31 December 2020, the average loss rate for 12-month ECL and
lifetime ECL was 0.02% (2019: 0.06%) and 85.52% (2019: 71.32%)
respectively.

If there is material decrease in collateral value and the full recovery of
the loan is in doubt, the retail and non-standard loan will be classified
into stage 3. For the loans classified as stage 3, the Group may further
calculate the ECL based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure
the expected credit loss. Each scenario is associated with different
exposure at default and probability.

Incorporation of forward-looking information

When estimating the ECL on loan and advances to customers, the
Group has incorporated forward-looking economic information
through the use of industry trend and experienced credit judgement
to reflect the qualitative factors, and through the use of multiple
probability-weighted scenarios by the stock market analysis.
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42. Financial risk management (continved)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit
enhancements

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event that the
counterparties fail to perform their obligations as at the end of the
reporting period, in relation to each class of financial assets, is the
carrying amount of those assets as indicated in the statement of
financial position.

These amounts represent the worst case scenario of credit risk
exposure to the Group at 31 December 2020 and 2019, without taking
account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements attached.

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure
(@)  Bank balances and client trust bank balances

The counterparties of all client trust bank balances and the
majority of cash and bank balances are located in Hong Kong.
As the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances
are deposited with a number of financially sound financial
institutions, in the opinion of the directors, the concentration
risk of the Group's bank balances and client trust bank balances
is insignificant.

(o) Loans and advances to customers and accounts receivable from
clients
The counterparties of the majority of loans and advances to
customers (including margin loans, IPO loans and other loan
financing) and accounts receivable from clients are individuals
who are mainly located in China. The wealth management
department and risk management department daily prepares an
analysis of key margin client and futures, options and leveraged
foreign exchange client exposure for review to avoid excessive
concentration of risk. The Group manages its concentration risk
by dealing with a large number of diversified clients.
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Financial risk management (ontinved)

Credit risk (continued)

Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk exposure

(continued)

() Accounts receivable from brokers, dealers as well as clearing
houses and others
The Group also has accounts receivable from clearing houses,
brokers and dealers from its securities, futures, options and
leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business as well as other
receivables from asset management, corporate finance and
investment holding and market making businesses. Responsible
officers manage the concentration of risk by monitoring their
respective exposures on a timely basis.

Securities borrowing and lending

In the normal course of brokerage business, the Group may enter
into securities borrowing and lending arrangements with financial
institutions and the Group's customers. As at 31 December 2020,
the Group borrowed equity securities of HK$688,738,000 (2019:
HK$68,480,000) from financial institutions and set aside equity
securities of HK$16,475,530 (2019: HK$430,937,000) pledged by margin
clients, for such lending arrangements to customers. Cash collateral
of HK$17,299,000 (2019: HK$519,380,000) was received from the
customers while HK$720,545,000 (2019: HK$72,889,000) was placed
to the financial institutions as at 31 December 2020.

The Group maintains no net position in such securities borrowing
and lending transactions and is not subject to significant price risk.
However, under the securities borrowing and lending arrangements, the
cash collateral received and cash collateral placed are included in the
accounts payable and accounts receivable from brokers and dealers,
respectively. The Group is principally liable for repaying the borrowed
securities in case of any default by the customers.
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42. Financial risk management (continved)

Market risk

The Group takes on exposure to market risk, which is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly arise from
open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all of
which are exposed to general and specific market movements and
changes in the level of volatility of market rates or prices such as
interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices.

The financial instruments held by the Group mainly exposed it to
interest rate risk and price risk. The market risk mainly includes cash
flow interest rate risk and price risk. The Group has established policies
and procedures for monitoring and controlling the market risk arising
from these financial instruments.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's loans and advances to customers,
accounts receivable, financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income, accounts payable to clients, bank borrowings,
debt securities in issue, receivable from reverse repurchase agreements,
obligations under repurchase agreements, client trust bank balances
and cash and bank balances. Debt investments usually bear a fixed
rate interest and they are managed through the strategy of trading
them within a short period of time.

Interest on cash at banks will fluctuate at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Bank borrowings and margin loans receivable at
variable rates exposed the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. Other
financial assets and liabilities which are mainly carried at amortised
cost are either non-interest-bearing or fixed interest-bearing with
short term maturities within one year, of which the interest rate risk is
also considered to be minimal. The Group mitigates its interest rate risk
by monitoring market interest rate movements and revising the interest
rates offered to its customers on an ongoing basis in order to limit
potential adverse effects of interest rate movements on net interest
income. The Group regularly calculates the impact on profit or loss of a
possible interest rate shift on its portfolio of bank borrowings, margin
loans receivable, debt securities investment and interest-bearing bank
deposits.
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Financial risk management (ontinved)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table illustrates the potential impact, of a parallel upward
or downward shift of 100 basis points in interest rate curves with
all other variables held constant on the Group's net profit for the
next twelve months from the reporting date, based on the Group's
positions of interest-earning assets, interest-bearing liabilities and debt
securities investments at year end.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

M= £ FH100E B
EEEENRGERAR

Interest rate increase 100 basis points

Interest-earning assets and interest-bearing

42. R R B B I (2)
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REASERERNESEE -
AREEMEBEFRENER -
TRETRNEHRFBR EXA
TS 10018 2= 3 1 H th A & 88 4 5
TR HAEEHE R RK
REANFENBENEELE -

Increase/(decrease)
in profit before tax
Bk Bt AT R 0GRk 2)
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F& T

liabilities 3,596 (38,367)
Debt securities investment BSEELEKRSE (360,764) (261,812)
Net Amount F R (357,168) (300,179)

The estimated 1% increase or decrease in interest rate represents
management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the next annual reporting period. The
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as debt securities in issue for sales to
customers. They are not subject to significant risk as the risk has been
transferred to customers accordingly.
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. TR BB EIE )

Market risk (continued)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk from equity
derivative instruments and fund investments held by the Group which
are classified in the statement of financial position as financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Price risk is the risk
of changes in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuations,
whether such a change in price is caused by factors specific to the
individual instrument or factors affecting all instruments traded in
the markets. The Group mitigates its price risk by performing detailed
due diligence analysis of investments and dedicated professionals are
assigned to oversee and monitor the performance of investments.

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the
assumption that the price of all the investment of equity instruments
and funds move according to the historical correlation with the Hong
Kong Hang Seng Index and other relevant indices. The analysis is based
on the assumption that the equity index had changed by 10% with all
other variable held constant, it represents management's assessment
of the reasonably possible change in equity index.

Price sensitivity analysis

™35 & e ()
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B8 SR

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000

Changes in relevant indices HEEREH THET FA T
Increase 10% = F10% 181,220 86,764
Decrease 10% T B&10% (181,220) (86,764)
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Financial risk management (ontinved)

Market risk (continued)

Price sensitivity analysis (continued)

The sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative because the year-end
exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.

For the financial products and derivative financial instruments held
by the Group are structured as equity derivative products in issue for
sales to customers and for hedging purpose. They are not subject to
significant risk as the risk has been either transferred to customers or
properly hedged and mitigated accordingly.

Besides, the asset quality of the margin clients' margin collateral will
deteriorate when the market comes down drastically, scenario analysis
and stress testing are regularly performed on an individual client basis.

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movements in foreign
currency exchange rates will affect the Group's financial results and
its cash flows.

The Group's foreign exchange risk principally arises from its leveraged
foreign exchange dealing and broking business as well as the Group's
transactions which are denominated in currencies other than the Hong
Kong dollars.

For the leveraged foreign exchange brokerage business, the Group
hedges the majority of the client positions through back-to-back
transactions with external counterparties. The Group adopts stringent
control over its positions to minimize its exposure to foreign exchange
risk.

The Group's principal operations are transacted and recorded in Hong
Kong dollars, United States dollars (“US$") and Renminbi (“RMB"). The
Group is not exposed to material foreign exchange risk because HK$
is pegged with US$. The Group also conducts appropriate hedging
activities when it is exposed to material exchange risk in RMB. Other
foreign currency exposure is relatively minimal to its total assets and
liabilities. The foreign exchange risk is daily managed and monitored
by the treasury and finance department.
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42. Financial risk management (continved)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash,
the availability of funding from an adequate amount of committed
credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the
dynamic nature of the underlying business, the treasury department
maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining available committed
credit facilities from the banks.

Sources of liquidity are daily reviewed by treasury department to
ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet all obligations.

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity
reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing facilities) and cash and cash
equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows in strict compliance
with statutory requirements. This is achieved by monitoring the
liquidity position of the individual companies within the Group on a
daily basis to ensure the availability of sufficient liquid funds to meet
all obligations and compliance with the statutory requirements such
as the Hong Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules.
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Liqu id ity risk (continued)

42. R R B B I (2)

mBE T AR #E)

The following tables summarise the maturity profile of the Group's
financial liabilities, based on the contractual and undiscounted cash

flows:

As at 31 December 2020

REGHORREREASRE T
KA AEE SR EBEND BRI

L

7

72020%12831H

Up to 1 1to 3 to ()
month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
=F
—-fHAR —-Z=f@A T=@A —-Z2HE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TER TER TEx TET
Liabilities g
Accounts payable JE 3R IB 22,783,232 - - — 22,783,232
Bank borrowings RITIE K 7,677,534 300,649 1,764,305 - 9,742,488
Lease liabilities HEAR 2,233 4,466 12,452 7,404 26,555
Debt securities in issue BETEBES 26,665,472 1,592,447 7,940,383 11,843,094 48,041,396
Financial liabilities at fair value BRATEFABRE
through profit or loss El = 6,666,260 - - - 6,666,260
Obligations under repurchase [E1 % 1fh 2% B0 (R 28
agreements 12,873,451 4,109,181 413,531 - 17,396,163
76,668,182 6,006,743 10,130,671 11,850,498 104,656,094
Off-balance sheet items EESERINER
Underwriting obligations ASH R 5,178 - - - 5,178
Capital commitments BRI 17,772 - - - 17,772
22,950 - - - 22,950
Derivative cash flows fTERERE
Derivative financial instruments RBEREENITE
settled on a gross basis SRMIA
Total inflows iR A 861,532 1,900,121 9,625,996 4,018,074 16,405,723
Total outflows B (805,173) (1,827,880) (9,015,513)  (4,091,667) (15,740,233)
56,359 72,241 610,483 (73,593) (665,490)
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. TR BB EIE )
Liquidity risk (continued) MEE & R (&)
As at 31 December 2019 M2019%12H31H
Up to 1to 3to 1to
1 month 3 months 12 months 5 years Total
==
—f@AR —Z=fA +-1@A —ZAF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET
Liabilities &
Accounts payable e ZE 14,587,372 = = - 14587372
Interest bearing borrowings HEEX 9,257,999 942,296 1,035,534 24804 11,260,633
Debt securities in issue BETELE S 22,772,919 768,727 2,318,374 7710607 33,570,627
Financial liabilities at fair value BATEGAESN
through profit or loss SHAE 6,810,580 - - - 6,810,580
Obligations under repurchase EF 35 S: 0k e
agreements 14,730,933 3,117,760 403,931 - 18,252,624
68,159,803 4.828,783 3,757,839 7,735,411 84,481,836
Off-balance sheet items EEBERNER
Underwriting obligations A ARG 6,075 = = = 6,075
Capital commitments BRI 6,180 = = = 6,180
12,255 - - - 12,255
Derivative cash flows TERERE
Derivative financial instruments REELENTE

m i

settled on a gross basis
Total inflows
Total outflows

§ B
Ee > @ 29 W
=

e
ER

2,004,907 837,896 5,970,010 2,373,481 11,186,294
(1,988,973) (850522)  (6,208,759)  (2,460907)  (11,509,161)

15,934 (12,626) (238,749) (87,426) (322,867)

=

e
sy
=t
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42.

274

Financial risk management (ontinved)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities
Financial instruments not measured at fair value

At the end of the reporting period, the fair values of the Group's
financial assets and liabilities not measured at fair value were not
materially different from their carrying amount due to their short term
nature.

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Group's valuation process

The fair values of financial assets in Level 1 and Level 2 are measured
by reference to quoted market prices and brokers' quotes, respectively.
The Group has engaged an independent professionally qualified valuer,
International Valuation Limited, to perform the valuation of financial
instruments in Level 3 for financial reporting purposes. These valuation
reports are sent to the finance department and the Audit Committee
for discussion at least twice per annum, which is in line with the
Group's reporting dates.

At each financial year end, the finance department reviews all
significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments used to
measure the fair values of financial instruments in Level 3. Changes in
fair values of financial assets in Levels 2 and 3 are analysed at each
reporting date.
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42 et R PR B (2
cRmEENABBEANRAFE

42. Financial risk management (continved)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

(&)

BRAFEFENTHTAE

AFESH

TREALREESRTANRY

the Group's financial instruments: B 25H:
Assets measured at fair value: BERAFEFENEE:

As at 31 December 2020

Non-current
Financial assets held for trading and

FRE
RIFEERRESREE

Quoted

prices in
active markets
(Level 1)

3
mEHRE
(B14)
HK$'000
TER

72020512 H31H

Fair value measurement using
RANTREANDTEE
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
EXA EXREE
Ex2y Ex2y
(%E24R) (%E3#)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER

Total

a5t
HK$'000
TER

investments
— Unlisted fixed income securities - FFEMEEKEE S - 5,878,878 - 5878878
— Unlisted convertible securities —EEmABRES - - 195,758 195,758
— Unlisted equity securities —FETRAE H - - 730,985 730,985
Financial assets at fair value through R AFEFABFEN SR
profit or loss BE
— Financial products - EREm 309,887 4,149,699 5,711,354 10,170,940
309,887 10,028,577 6,638,097 16,976,561
Current 8
Financial assets held for trading and FIFEEREBEN SR
investments EE
— Listed equity securities - FHRAE S 1,439,070 - - 1,439,070
— Listed debt securities - tEBES - 15,683,053 — 15,683,053
— Unlisted fixed income securities - FEMETEREEF - 5,261,345 — 5,261,345
Financial assets at fair value through ~ EZAFEFAEEZN S
profit or loss BE
— Unlisted fund investments -FLEMEERE - 1,986,769 - 1,986,769
— Other financial instruments - Hpe@mTE - 225,618 - 225,618
— Financial products - SRER 1,928,282 25,558,371 1,854,496 29,341,149
Financial assets at fair value through ~ HAFEFAEMBEER
other comprehensive income HAERAEE
— Unlisted debt securities - FETREEES - 105,574 - 105,574
Derivative financial instruments fTESBIEA - 1,261,354 - 1,261,354
3,367,352 50,082,084 1,854,496 55,303,932
3,677,239 60,110,661 8,492,593 72,280,493
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

276

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2019

Non-current
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

e
BRAFEAARZNEE
BE

Quoted prices in
active markets
(Level 1)

A BB

Mz aE
(B18)
HK$'000
TAT

42. @b R e B E @)

A
i

(%)

MEERABENATFE

BAFEFENTHTAE)

NEEEFRE)
A2019%12A31H

Fair value measurement using
RANTEENATEE
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs

(Level 2) (Level 3)
EREE
BE2YU
(£38%)
HK$'000
TET

HKS'
FHT

— Unlisted fixed income securities —FEmETEkREESH = 1,594,507 = 1,594,507
— Financial products - ¢REm 367,710 1,117,294 4,782,781 6,267,785
367,710 2,711,801 4,782,781 7,862,292
Current mE
Financial assets held for trading FIEEBSREE
— Listed equity securities - FTRAES 710,798 = = 710,798
— Listed fixed income securities - FEEREEF = 14,065,739 — 14,065,739
— Unlisted fixed income securities - kETEEREES = 2,493,982 = 2,493,982
Financial assets at fair value through ~ EAFEFABZMNEH
profit or loss BE
— Listed fund investments - rTmESRKE 2783 = = 2783
— Unlisted fund investments - kImESEKE = 1758,316 = 1758,316
— Other financial instruments - HiemIA = 250,731 = 250,731
— Unlisted convertible promissory - A RRAR
note 2B - - 4,298 4,298
— Financial products - ¢REm 4,339,137 25,181,242 2,321,880 31,842,259
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA = 155,652 = 155,652
5,052,718 43,905,662 2,326,178 51,284,558
5,420,428 46,617,463 7,108,959 59,146,850
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42. bR e B B w)
tREENMNBENAFE

42. Financial risk management (continved)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(&)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) HRAFEGEN G TAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) N EERE)

Liabilities measured at fair value: BAFEFENAE:

As at 31 December 2020 #2020%12H31H

Fair value measurement using
RAUTEENAFETE
Significant Significant
observable  unobservable
inputs inputs
(IEW)) (Level 3)
E R EXT EXEE
mERE BE2R BEEx28
(E14%) (5528) (%3%) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TER TR

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

Non-current
Debt securities in issue designated at B EZE A FEFABEMN
E

_____ fair value through profit and loss ETEHE - (4311695  (5981,835) (10,293,530)
- (4,311,695) (5,981,835) (10,293,530)
Current mE
Debt securities in issue designated at TR A FAEFABEMN
fair value through profit and loss BETEEES —  (20,424,131)  (1,854,497) (22,278,628)
Financial liabilities held for trading FEEESRAR
— Listed equity securities - FRAES (263,722) - - (263,722)
— Listed debt securities - I HEBE - (2.956,878) - (2.956,878)
Financial liabilities designated at fair BERRTEFMARE
value through profit or loss Memar
— Financial products - SREM - (2,968,586) - (2,968,586)
— Third-party interest in - MAGHREEEH
consolidated investment funds FohER - (477,074) - (477,074)
_ Derivative financial instruments TESBIEA - (862,429) - (862,429)__
(263,722) (27,689,098) (1,854,497) (29,807,317!"
(263,722)  (32,000,793) (7.836,332) (40,100,847)
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42. @b R e B E @)
cPREENMNBENAFE

42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(4 )
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) EBERFEGENzHTAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZERE)

Liabilities measured at fair value: (continued) BAFEFENAG: ()

As at 31 December 2019 M2019%12H31H

Fair value measurement using

RRANTSENRYENE

Significant Significant
Quoted prices in observable  unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
&R EDNG| BERER
(F15%) (524) (E38]) wEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TAET TET
Non-current ERE
Debt securities in issue designated at I8 ER A FEFABEL
fair value through profit and loss ERTEBES = (1,009,692) (5114328)  (6,124,020)
Current nE
Debt securities in issue designated at B ER A FEFABEL
fair value through profit and loss BRETEKRES - (18,369,478) (2,321,880)  (20,691,358)
Financial liabilities held for trading HIEEESRAR
— Listed equity securities - FTRAES (20,472) = = (20,472)
— Listed debt securities - LMEHES - (2,200,728) - (2,200,728)
— Other financial instruments - HEuemIA = (55,386) = (55,386)
Financial liabilities designated at fair BERATEAARR
value through profit or loss meRaR
— Financial products - SRERD = (4,103,810) - (4103,810)
— Third-party interest in - MAGHREESH
consolidated investment funds EZHER = (430,184) = (430,184)
Derivative financial instruments TESBMIA = (149,851) = (149,851)
(20,472) (25,309,437) (2,321,880)  (27,651,789)
(20,472) (26,319,129) (7.436,208)  (33,775,809)
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(a)  Financial instruments in Level 1
The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets
are based on quoted market prices at the end of the reporting
period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, or broker and
those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market
transactions on an arm's length basis. The quoted market prices
used for financial assets and financial liabilities held by the
Group are the current bid price and the current ask price.

(b)  Financial instruments in Level 2
The fair values of financial instruments that are not traded in
an active market (for example, over-the-counter) are determined
by using valuation techniques. These valuation techniques
maximise the use of observable market data where it is available
and rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs used in the valuation for financial instruments
are observable, the financial instruments are included in Level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs are not based on
observable market data, the financial instrument is included in
Level 3.

42. iR EIE 2)

TREEMBENRAFE
(%)
BAFEFENTHTAE)
RNEEFZRE)

(a) H1FTETE
RAEBMEEENERTA
NP EREHREHROT
BHEE - AENMSE
AAREERARRIZH - R
Z8  RELBRERENT
% M ERERRIZQF
ERETHNERREHELE
MMERS - NEBFFE
MEERERABGBMANT
LHRERERNERENE
B’E-

bl 2o @mMTHA

I Ik 5 7E BB T 45 (f 40 35 S
MBEEENERMTARYF
BNERBERNERE ° %
F A E T 2RI B 5K A AT 8
EMSHE(WAE) ZET
KBEENFEMRHT - g
BITAMBEMBNMBEAX
2BARAEBER2H %2
BT RIAF2R -

WAE-—EXZEEKRSH
WIHRAABERTERER
HE Ze@ITAIAZES
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42. Financial risk management (continved) 42. & &Y E b B IR o)
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) TRMEENBENATE
(%)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) A FEGTEN 2 TR E)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) NEEZERE)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 () Z3F&mTHE
The following table presents the changes in Level 3 financial T & 25 # = 20204 2019
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019. F1R2ANBLILEFE @ F3xE
BMITAEMmES -
Level 3 financial assets EREE SN g
For the year ended 31 December 2020 B ZE2020F12A31ALLEE

Unlisted
Unlisted  convertible Unlisted
equity  promissory  convertible Financial
securities note  securities products
(note 20)  (note 20)  (note 20)  (note 20)

#LEm FEmAH kLt
BAESZ REARE TREREZ IHEM
(K200  (F&E20)  (MP&E20)  (RE&E20) At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TER

At 1 January 2020 12020 1A18 - 4,298 — 7,104,661 7,108,959
Purchases BE 730,985 - 195,758 161,827 1,088,570
Disposal HE - (4,298) - (91,854) (96,152)
Transfer to level 2 (note) 8\ 24 (i 5) - - - (695734) (695734
Net gain recognised in profit or ~ FMB 2 A FE R M U
loss @R = - - 1,086,950 1,086,950
At 31 December 2020 12020612 H318 730,985 - 195,758 7,565,850 8,492,593
Note: The shares of the investee company were linked to American MizE: WEREARBRGOIHEFA
Depository Receipts listed in the New York Stock Exchange during ERAOBHFRGF LN
the year, thus the fair value of the investment was based on quoted MEBRGTREZEH -
market price. HitZRENRFET)

ERPTIMME -
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42. Financial risk management (continued) 42. TR BB EIE )
Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued) THEENBENATE
(#)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued) HRAFEGEN G TAE)
Fair value hierarchy (continued) N EERE)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued) (c) 3@ TH (&)
Level 3 financial assets (continued) SE3A 4 T B ()
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BIE2019F12A31HLLFE
Unlisted
convertible Financial
promissory products
note (note 20) (note 20)
FE AT IR %
EHEE SHRE®R
(ff&E20)  (FfF 7% 20) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FB T FB T F7B T
At 1 January 2019 201941818 23,847 8,218,681 8,242,528
Purchases BEE - 1,199,111 1,199,111
Disposal s - (294,000)  (294,000)
Receipt on maturity 2] HA B U B (19,579) = (19,579)
Transfer to level 1 A E1R - (38,268) (38,268)
Accrued interest income FE & F B WA 53 = 53
Net loss recognised in profit or loss A8 28 A fE R A& 1B
F R (23)  (1,980,863) (1,980,886)
At 31 December 2019 72019412 A31H 4,298 7,104,661 7,108,959
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42.
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Financial risk management (ontinved)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

Level 3 financial liabilities

For the year ended 31 December 2020

42. @b R e B E @)

THEENBENATFE
(%)
BRFEGTEN L TAE)
NEEZERE)
() 3T HE (#F)
3 4 b AL
B ZE2020F12A831HLEE

Financial Debt securities

products in issue

(note 28) (note 27)

28T

SRER BEES
(Kt 3£ 28) (Kt &F27) et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THERT THERT
At 1 January 2020 20201818 - 7,436,208 7,436,208
Issuance BAT - 57,271 57,271
Transfer to level 2 (note) A E2% (K 5E) - (695,732) (695,732)
Redemption on maturity 7 31 B 5 FE o) - (48,760) (48,760)
Net loss recognised in profit or loss A8 &5 fE 32 /) &5 1 3 58 - 1,087,345 1,087,345
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A318 - 7,836,332 7,836,332

Note: The structured note issued was related to an investment on a pre-
IPO company. The shares of the investee company were linked to
American Depository Receipts listed in the New York Stock Exchange
during the year, thus the fair value of the investment was based on
quoted market price.
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42. Financial risk management (ontinved) 42.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(c)

Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

Level 3 financial liabilities (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

TRt E Mk EE

cMEENBENAFYE
(%)
BN FEFENLHTAE)
NEEERE)
(c) =3k mTH (4&)
EIR LA (E)
HZE2019%F128318LLEE

Financial Debt securities

products in issue
(note 28) (note 27) Total
CREMR BETELSES
(PBF 7E28) (BT x27) @at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAxT FAxT
At 1 January 2019 720191818 32,095 8,633,629 8,665,724
Issuance BT = 4,286,560 4,286,560
Transfer to level 1 LN N = (38,060) (38,060)
Redemption on maturity PR HA B g [ (32,095) (3,449,821) (3,481,916)
Net gain recognised in profit or loss REZHHER K R F5 = (1,996,100) (1,996,100)
At 31 December 2019 7201912 A31H — 7,436,208 7,436,208
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the TXASETAER20205F K&
valuation of financial instruments as at 31 December 2020 and 201912 A3MBEEMNE X
2019: BZEBRE2HME:

31 December 2020

2020F12A31H

Sensitivity of the
fair value to the

Average  input

AFEHZEHD

Valuation Significant
technique unobservable input
SRR R EXELBESY
Unlisted equity securities Recent transaction N/A
FEMBRAEH ®OR5 i F
Unlisted convertible securities Recent transaction N/A
FE LT AR E H ARG TE A
Financial products Net asset value N/A
SREM EEFE i@ A
Debt securities in issue Net asset value N/A
BEETERES EESE 35 A

HRE
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42. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)
Fair value hierarchy (continued)
(c)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (continued)

31 December 2019

Valuation technique

5 i

Significant unobservable

input
EABLERSH

Average

. EREREEE®

cHEENBENAFEE

(4 )

BN FEGENzHTAGE)

NEEEFRE)

() Z3F&mTH (&)
2019412 A31H

Sensitivity of the
fair value to the input

¥4 AFEESBHHBE

Financial products

Financial products

SHEM

Unlisted convertible
promissory note

ESE: 3 ¥ )
B

Debt securities in
issue

BRTEKES

Debt securities in
issue

BRTEBES

Market approach

5%

Net asset value
EEFE

Discount cash flows

BRAERE

Market approach

mi5A

Net asset value

BERE

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used to
determine the estimated equity
value of the Project Company:
— Price to earnings multiple

ARETEB ARG REEE
MHISAE LB AR E R
fi&

B
Bt

N/A
T EH

Discount rate

LLER

Pricing multiples of market
comparable companies used to
determine the estimated equity
value of the Project Company:
— Price to earnings multiple

ARETEE QR REEE
HMI5 A A LB AR H)E B

284 Guotai Junan International Holdings Limited e 2020 Annual Report

7.8 10% increase or decrease in the
underlying stock price, the fair
value would be increased by
HK$70 million or decreased by
HK$70 million, respectively.

M ERE LAk E10% - AF
B 5 B M70E & T 308
LIABET

NA  N/A
TER TEH

12%  10% increase or decrease in
the discount rate, the fair
value would be increased by
HK$33,000 or decreased by
HK$33,000, respectively.

ERRREIE MR 0% © AFE

1 & 9 Bl 1% 1133,000 7T 3K
033,000/ 7T °

7.8 10% increase or decrease in the
underlying stock price, the fair
value would be increased by
HK$70 million or decreased by
HK$70 million, respectively.
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42. Financial risk management (continved)

Capital management

The Group's objectives for managing capital, which represent a broader
concept than the "equity” on the face of the statement of financial
position, are:

° to comply with the capital requirements under the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures (Financial Resources) Rules for its
subsidiaries which are licensed corporations;

° to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders;

° to support the Group's stability and growth; and

° to maintain a strong capital base to support the development
of its business.

The liquid capital is monitored daily by each individual licensed
subsidiary's management based on the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules. The required information is filed with the SFC on a
timely basis. The SFC requires each licensed corporation to maintain
a level of required liquid capital which is the higher of the floor
requirement ranging from HK$0.1 million to HK$15 million and 5% of
the aggregate of its adjusted liabilities and clients' margin. All licensed
corporations within the Group complied with their required liquid
capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

A subsidiary of the Company is a member of the Hong Kong
Confederation of Insurance Brokers and is required to maintain
a minimum net asset value of HK$0.1 million at all times. Two
subsidiaries of the Company are registered with the Monetary
Authority of Singapore and are required to maintain a minimum base
capital requirement of SG$250,000 and SG$1,000,000 at all times,
respectively.

The capital of the Group mainly comprises its total equity.

42. TR BB EIE )

BERERE
AEBEAEENBEEHR L
MERRERN R ERERM
B

s HASFRFEEIENMEA
AmE NEEERHFLE
5 (MBER) RANERR

E

s REAKESBELZMNRE
B CAHE B SRR AR 0
R RBEAMMF D EREN S

s HBRAKENBERER:
K

s ABREMBARAER  AX
FHEBHER -

ERENBEATNEEEREE
FEHE(HHRER RANTKE
ERESEs TERHAZESR
EMHER BEERTE BF
fEBBRET S R E AKE
BN T0IEBEETLEISAESE BT
NREERRELCHAEEERE
FRZECEMAS0MEFHE S
% o PN A £20204 K& 2019412 A
JBLEFE  AEEETHER
REBHFETE RS E 2KF
FE °

KRR —RMBARIREBRR
FEHEBMEKERBEEMEAKIE
HPBFHEEEFEOLBEEBT -
RAFIMRMBRREIRINE &
7 & 32 5 (Monetary Authority of
Singapore) & 52 R /B 1L FT B R &k 5

Il 4 5 B K B RN B AN K3 FE 250,000
1 h03% 7T %1,000,000% 3% 7T °

AEENEATROEHEEDR
B e
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43. Offsetting financial assets and financial

286

liabilities

43.

The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
Continuous Net Settlement (CNS) money obligations receivable and
trade payables with HKSCC and it intends to settle on a net basis as
accounts receivable from or accounts payable to the Stock Exchange.
The net amount of CNS money obligations receivable or payable with
HKSCC and the guarantee fund placed in HKSCC do not meet the
criteria for offsetting in the financial statements and the Group does
not intend to settle the balances on a net basis.

Gross amount

of recognised

financial

Gross amount (assets)/
of recognised liabilities
financial offset in
assets/ the financial
statements
EEASH EHEHEHER
BE/(BfE) ¢R(BE)/
e BEAE

HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TAL

(liabilities)

HEcHMEERESMERE

AEEBRIEE B EATAITER
BHEEFEZFENREFEIK
(BEFEARBEBREEZZE
MR URRFREEERE
WHENBZXAEREH - 25
BB 1 R R M R R X
BNENFEMTFRREEGEE
MRBEBESI AR BRK
MR HE IR - REB T HIRF
MEEGEABARAR -

Net amounts
of financial Related
assets/ amounts not
(liabilities) set off in
reflected in the statement
the financial  of financial
statements position
ZiMer HRREER
BE/(BfF) RREHY
B8 EBtHE

HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL THET

As at 31 December 2020 12020124318
Financial assets SREE
Accounts receivable arising from EECE S Y Y GO
brokerage
— the Stock Exchange and other - R PR E A &
clearing houses g 6,385,553 (4,743,631) 1,641,922 - 1,641,922
Loans and advances to customers BIRPHERRBZ 15,604,244 — 15,604,244 (15,214,093) 390,151
Financial liabilities tRERE
Accounts payable arising from brokerage 4% 42 % % B {3 578
— the Stock Exchange and other — B A AT R B
clearing houses HHT (6,108,930) 4,743,631  (1,365,299) - (1,365,299)
As at 31 December 2019 72019612 A318
Financial assets tREE
Accounts receivable arising from BEEBERZE
brokerage
— the Stock Exchange and other - BRI AT R E A
clearing houses EERH 3,105,263 (1,739,867) 1,365,396 - 1,365,396
Loans and advances to customers BIZFMERRBR 11,715,902 = 11,715,902 (11,253,415) 462,487
Financial liabilities tRAE
Accounts payable arising from brokerage 4% 42 % 7% JE {5 5008
— the Stock Exchange and other - BT R EAM
clearing houses HEEM (2,485,479) 1,739,867 (745,612) - (745612)
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B %5 k3 Bt &E
31 December 2020
20204124318

43. Offsetting financial assets and financial 43. KEeMEEHESHRARE
liabilities (continuea) (&)
The tables below reconcile the "net amount of financial assets/ TR¥E EXFE IR R
(liabilities) presented in the statement of financial position”, as set out KREBMWERMEE (ARE) FHE
above, to the amounts presented in the statement of financial position. B BRAKRERNSEETY
EE o

2020 2019
20205 20194

HK$'000 HK$'000
TRERT TAET

Net amount of accounts receivable arising = 3¢ f it K 85 18 4% 40 %
from brokerage after offsetting as stated % FE W 5K IR 5

above
— the Stock Exchange and other — B AZ PR N Bt 4
clearing houses EFT 1,641,922 1,365,396

Accounts receivable other than the Stock B 22 P K ELAth 45 & P DA

Exchange and other clearing houses SN Y FE IR 7Kk 18 4,003,106 2,792,531
Less: Loss allowance Vo SE=EE L] (6,231) (6,906)
Accounts receivables in the statement of B 765 iR O 3k A B M SR 1B

financial position 5,638,797 4,151,021

Net amount of accounts payable arising from — _E£ 3 By 3t 5 $5 18 45 4
brokerage after offsetting as stated above B ENRIA /%‘»r%ﬁ

— the Stock Exchange and other — B PTR E A
clearing houses EEFRT 1,365,299 745,612
Accounts payables other than the Stock Bt 32 Pft I LA, 45 B PR A
Exchange and other clearing houses SN EY FE 5 R I8 21,417,933 13,841,760
Accounts payables in the statement of Eﬁﬁ%ﬂk)ﬂ%‘%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ
financial position 22,783,232 14,587,372
The "net amounts of financial assets/(liabilities) reflected in the L XETE AR B R R R RO A
financial statements", as set out above, is included in “accounts eRMEE(AE)FHEIDRBE
receivable and accounts payable arising from brokerage — the Stock FEFIERRM 18R 24K [ £ 40
Exchange and other clearing houses" in notes 18 and 24 to the TS FE MR IE R BT FRIA — B AZ P
financial statements, respectively. FEMGEER] -

B2 B 2 B R R IR A A « 20205 287



Notes to Financial Statements

B 75 B 5
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2020412 A31H

44. Business combination

44. 7% & ot

On 6 December 2019, the Company, acquired 50.97% interest in IVS
for a consideration of approximately HK$128,975,000. IVS is listed in
the Hanoi Stock Exchange in Vietnam and is engaged in securities
dealing and broking and margin financing business. The goodwill of
HK$20,473,000 arising from the acquisition is attributable to trading
rights and technical know-how for trading in the Vietnam market.

Goodwill recognised from this acquisition is non-deductible for income
tax purpose. The goodwill was not impaired during the year.

The Group incurred transaction costs of HK$2,758,000 in relation

M2019F12A6H © & 2 7 W B
IVS #950.97% # z= + K B & &
128,975,000/ 7T ° IVSH L FE A
BHERG LN REEBEHRXS -
BERTRBEEY -z WHSE
T8 Ffr 7 A 7522 20,473,000 7T 3 53
FRAMEMmERINRZERE
Eg

ZWEEREINFETATEN
FREH - BERFARLRRE -

AEERZWBEHREERHK

7K2,758,0008 7T - KR H K AE X
o Wit ASREEBERPFAHEAM

to this acquisition. The transaction costs have been expensed and
included in other operating expenses in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

NI EIEEE - VS B 54
EREEQATENT :

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of IVS as at the date
of acquisition were as follows:

HK$'000
TAT

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REE 4174
Statutory deposits VR TE 7K 2,292
Loan and advance to customers BTEPHER KB R 49,354
Accounts receivable FE W 3R 22
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FBATFRIE ~ e & E A e WK IA 1,640
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss EAFEFAEZNEMEE 3,318
Restricted cash X R &IE & 128,975
Client trust bank balances REETXRTEH 24,449
Cash and bank balances He MIBITER 27172
Accounts payable &~ 708 (24,352)
Other payables and accrued liabilities HEpEMRIERETEE (4,186)
Total net identifiable assets at fair value ARAFEFIERA A #BHEE LR 212,858
Non-controlling interests FEPR AR AE 25 (104,356)

108,502
Goodwill on acquisition WESHEEANFE 20,473
Consideration paid in cash AR & R (E 128,975
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31 December 2020
20204124318

44. Business combination (continued)

The fair value of the loan and advance to customers as at the date
of acquisition amounted to HK$49,354,000. The gross contractual
amount of loan and advance to customers was HK$49,379,000, of
which HK$25,000 ECL was provided.

The fair value of non-controlling interest in IVS as at the date
of acquisition was estimated as the non-controlling interest's
proportionate share of the IVS's net identifiable assets.

IVS generated revenue of HK$14.8 million and contributed a loss of

HK$17.1 million since the acquisition date.

An analysis of the cash flow in respect of the acquisition of the
subsidiary is as follows:

A4, ¥ 8 Btw)

RWEAS  HFTEFHNERK
B H AT E A 49,354,000 7T °
BTEFNERERBTNEEH
4 %8 /349,379,000 7T+ H A FHE
25,0008 TR TEHA{E B XK -

RUEEHER - IVSIEERER D
FEMEAIEEREREIVSH 3
MEEFBEPIENLIIME -

B U B ERAE - IVSE £ U A14.8
BEEBThENKNEBEEIIBEE SR

JC °

WEHBRRMBRERANMOT

HK$'000
TAET

Cash consideration BeRE (128,975)
Cash and bank balances of the subsidiary WEAREIRE RIBITE S 27,172
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included in FAREEHR S RNE K
cash flows from investing activities ReSEMRLFE (101,803)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included in cash  stAKLEBIH S AU ESHE
flows from operating activities R 5 AR (2,758)
(104,561)
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45. Statement of financial position of the

Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company

at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

2020
20204

HK$'000
FRERT

45. 75 5] B 3 AR R 3R

BRAARE R S B R E iR
MR ERIT

2019
20194
HK$'000
FA T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries 1% & M B A7 7,812,698 7,823,934
Deferred tax assets RIEFRIBEE E 1 1
7,812,699 7,823,935
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables Bt IE « & & K&
E A & IR 8,821 10,413
Amount due from subsidiaries & U B /8 A B 5 IR 19,682,414 6,537,278
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBEEEY 11,273 4,020
_Total current assets RBEELTE 19,702,508 6,551,711
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable JE {5 5108 - (29)
Accrued liabilities it A E (121,551) (71,371)
Debt securities in issue BEITEEE S (14,650,768) (4,372,507)
— At amortised cost — B A (11,626,675) (3,446,273)
— Designated at fair value through - EEERATE
profit or loss FFAE &= (3,024,093) (926,234)
Tax payable FES B IR (1,311) (2,299)
Total current liabilities REBEEALE (14,773,630) (4,446,206)
Net current assets REBEEFE 4,928,878 2,105,505
Non-current liabilities kRBEEB
Debt securities in issue BRTEERES (1,744,655) (1,555,874)
— At amortised cost — FRHE S P R (1,549,564) (1,555,874)
— Designated at fair value through - BEZRQATE
profit or loss FTAE &= (195,091) —
_________________________________________ (1,744,655) (1,555,874)"_
Net assets EEFE 10,996,922 8,373,566
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45. Statement of financial position of the 45. AQFE BRI T @)
Com pany (continued)

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHE T FBT
Equity =
Share capital LN 10,899,780 8,116,887
Currency translation reserve ERRERE 187 187
Share-based compensation reserve VAR 1 A BT vl B R 41,606 56,089
— Share option reserve (note) - BREREE
(B 5%) 32,521 30,513
— Share award reserve (note) - RO BB
(BfF 7%) 9,085 25,576
Shares held under the share award BHEBETEETHE
scheme (note) "9 R% 1D (M9 5E) (30,672) (73,058)
Retained profits (note) R ) (KT 5E) 86,021 273,461
Total equity HEm B 10,996,922 8,373,566
Dr. YIM Fung Mr. LI Guangjie
Bl ERANTE
Director Director
- -
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45. Statement of financial

292

Com Pany (continued)

Note:

position

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

of the 45. KRQTE KRR K&

Currency
translation
reserve

EREE
1]
HK$'000
TRER

Share
option
reserve

BRE
i
HK$'000
TER

B 2 -

ARBHEEHELT :

Share held
under the
share award
scheme
B3 % B
SEET
BEEHRRG
HK$'000
TET

Share
award
reserve

gnE3 ]
1]
HK$'000
TER

Retained
profits

RE A
HK$'000
TR

At
HK$'000
TER

As at 1 January 2019 R2019F1 718 - 37,816 28,370  (142,051) 281,710 205,845
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERREE 187 - - - 488,820 489,007
Perpetual securities distribution KEZEHED K - - - - (7,316) (7.316)
Perpetual securities repurchase KEFRHBD - - - - (12,916)  (12,916)
Recognition of equity—settled share—based ~ B R AER & E AR D BER

payments (notes 32 and 33) 0 5 31 (B 5E32 33) - 6,798 57,325 - - 64,123
Purchases of shares held under the share BERMDRBHAETHEN

award scheme (notes 33 and 34) Rt (Fff 733 %.34) - - - (4,004) - (4,004)
Vesting of shares for the share award B 2Bt Bl F B R 17

scheme (notes 33 and 34) (P 5£33%34) - - (60,119) 72,997 (16,632) (3,754)
Transfer of share option reserve upon the — BREXAMERERERE

forfeiture of share options - (14,101) - - 14,101 -
Final dividend paid for 2018 (note 10) F1F2018F K 8 Bk B (B £ 10) - - - - (152,995)  (152,995)
Interim dividend paid for 2019 (note 10) 20195 R B AR 8 (B 5£10) - - - - (321,311)  (321,311)
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020  #2019F12A318 &

2020417318 187 30,513 25,576 (73,058) 273,461 256,679

Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERRLE - - - - 356,046 356,046
Shares repurchased (note 31) B (I E31) - - - - (19903)  (19,903)
Recognition of equity—settled share—based ~ B R IAER & EA KD BER

payments (notes 32 and 33) 0 5 1 (B #E32 ]%33) - 6,239 19,223 - - 25,462
Vesting of shares for the share award BROEBHEZBRN

scheme (notes 33 and 34) (M 7¥331%34) - - (35714) 42,386 (9.469)  (2.797)
Shares issued upon exercise of share options & Bk # 5 &) 78 N 17 B FR 8

under the share option scheme (note 32) e A ERY) - (983) - - - (983)
Transfer of share option reserve upon the  BERERMMEZERERE

forfeiture of share options - (3.248) - - 3,248 -
Final dividend paid for 2019 (note 10) 20195 R B Ak 8 (B 3510) - - - - (191,628) (191,628)
Interim dividend paid for 2020 (note 10) X 1920209 # fk & (B 5 10) - - - - (325734) (325.734)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A316 187 32,521 9,085 (30,672) 86,021 97,141
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